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Vision
Box Hill Institute will be recognised as Australia’s No. 1 global vocational education and training provider.

Mission
The mission of Box Hill Institute is centred on students, skills and staff. The mission is:
• to provide students with a positive learning environment and give them the opportunity to excel in the

global employment market
• to provide industry and the community with highly skilled and well educated people capable of making

productive contributions
• to provide a working environment that attracts and nurtures leaders in vocational education, training and

services.

Values

Service to students, other customers, the community and one another.
Excellence in everything we do, by adopting the highest professional standards.
Learning which contributes to our growth as individuals and a community.
Integrity through honesty, fairness, transparent communication and trusting relationships.
Accountability to those we serve and each other.
Achievement by recognising and rewarding achievers, responsible risk taking, creativity and innovation.
Equity & access by providing people with fair and reasonable opportunities to participate and excel on merit.
Caring for the wellbeing of our diverse community and maintaining a balance between our personal and
professional lives.
Teamwork which encourages participation and empowers people to exercise initiative and responsibility.
Leadership which consistently inspires mutual respect and outstanding performance.
Continuous development of staff, learning programs, our environment and systems.
Partnerships with Government, industry, employers, secondary schools and the local community which are
mutually beneficial.

Strategic platforms
Leaders in learning
Learning is the Institute’s core business. Our future lies in our capacity and commitment to supporting high
quality learning to our local, national and international communities and within the Institute.

Leaders in community relationships
As a leader in vocational education and training, Box Hill Institute will work with a range of industry and
educational partners to strengthen its position and to maximise both the education and employment
opportunities of its students and the Institute’s corporate business opportunities.

Leaders in technology
In order to provide state of the art facilities, products and programs to capitalise on business opportunities and
support government policy, we need to maintain our leadership role in the use of technology in innovative
teaching and service delivery.

Leaders globally
Box Hill Institute will flourish in an increasingly globalised education and training marketplace. Similarly we will
give our students the vocational resilience they need to sustain lifelong careers in a globalised economy.

Managing students and customers
We will maximise our position in the marketplace by developing a positive learning environment for students
and a corporate approach to business clients. The focus of all staff will be on our students and their future
study or employment needs as well as the future needs of employers.

Managing capacity and capability
The efficient management and development of the Institute’s staff and infrastructure allows the Institute to
make the most of its service potential and manage the associated risks and costs within available resources.
This provides a positive learning and working environment for both staff and students.

Managing business growth
Box Hill Institute is recognised as being entrepreneurial, innovative and creative with a reputation for excellence
in the vocational education and training sector. The Institute must build on its reputation and respond to new
business opportunities predominantly related to out targeted industry areas.

Managing business performance
Sound business performance will ensure Box Hill Institute’s long-term financial viability. vi
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2004 was a very pleasing and rewarding year for Box Hill Institute.

We were the winner of the Large Training Provider of the Year Award for the
state of Victoria before going off to the national titles where we were
acknowledged as one of the best four TAFEs in the country. This achievement
acknowledges the enormous commitment and dedication from my fellow
Council members, CEO John Maddock, the Management team and all the
staff at Box Hill Institute.

As we go into 2005, the Institute is on the verge of some fantastic
opportunities as we start delivering three graduate degrees in Applied Music,
Biotechnology & Innovation and Information & Communications Technology
(Networking) in our own right. The move to allow TAFEs to offer degrees will
change the educational landscape of TAFE and Box Hill Institute in the next
five years. Our challenge is to deliver vocationally focused degrees in the
higher education environment alongside universities. I am confident that as we
make that big leap forward, we will establish a strategic point of difference for
both the Institute and its students.

We made excellent progress on the industry training plans in manufacturing,
biotechnology, and information & communications technology and we are well-
placed to meet the demand for skilled workers in these fields. Government
accreditation for the new Specialist Centre in Biotechnology Training -
BioSkills, was also a significant achievement in consolidating the Institute’s
position as a leader in biotechnology studies and further enhances our
commitment to delivering the new Bachelor of Biotechnology & Innovation.

In 2004, Box Hill Institute picked up the Medium to Large Business Award at
the Whitehorse Business Group’s Annual Excellence in Business Awards. This
was due to our solid record in business management, strategic alliances,
strong leadership and contribution to the local economy. The Centre for
Management and Small Business, also had its day winning the Strategic
Partnership Award

The Institute is taking seriously its risk management responsibilities with the
progressive implementation of its Risk Management Plan. This is an ongoing
process requiring all Centres across the Institute to incorporate risk
management principles into every day work practice.

Following an extensive consultation process with staff and government, the
Institute has produced a draft Human Resources Strategic Plan that outlines a
framework for developing our existing excellent staff and attracting new highly
skilled staff during the coming years. Our staff will be crucial in leading Box Hill
Institute into an exciting and innovative educational future.

Associate Professor John Rasa
President - Box Hill Institute Council
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In the second half of the year, we successfully
implemented the PACCT Staff Certified
Agreement 2004, which delivered pay
increases to all PACCT staff across the
Institute, and the Multi-Employer Certified
Agreement (MECA) 2004, which included pay
rises and a new set of employment
classifications for teachers.

Our $19.5 million investment in infrastructure
has seen the completion of the new Elgar
Campus Building 8 development. Funded
through a combination of government capital
grants and Institute reserves, the development
will allow us to improve the learning
environment for our students and industry.

While maintaining our current government
support, we can continue developing the
advantages that commercial revenue brings us
in enhancing the quality of our teaching
programs and facilities for students. We have
continued our successful relationships with
business and industry such as Cisco,
Sidchrome and Aveda.

The financial management of the Institute has
been strong with our books balancing firmly in
the black. We are financially stable – one of
only two TAFEs in Victoria to have recorded
positive results against all four indictors of
financial condition reported in the Victorian
Auditor-General’s May 2004 report on the
review of the financial viability of TAFE
Institutes. This is a pleasing result and is a
credit to the responsible management skills of
our Management team, staff and Council.

The Council has made progress in further
developing our strategic direction in line with
the 2003-2007 Strategic Plan, particularly
during Council’s Planning Day in early July.

We face many interesting challenges in the
upcoming years. However, the government
maintains a strong focus on skills acquisition,
seeing it as a key driver in maintaining a strong
labour market and economic growth. Given our
track record in relevant and timely skills training
and our investment in infrastructure and
innovation, we have a strong platform on which
to build the Institute’s future and to compete
effectively across the whole education market.

I thank my fellow Council members, Chief
Executive Officer, John Maddock, our
Management team and all our staff for their
dedication and commitment over the past year.

In particular, I acknowledge the work of Philip
Moran in his role as Councillor and President.
Philip resigned from Council on 27 May 2004.

Associate PrAssociate PrAssociate PrAssociate PrAssociate Professor John Rasaofessor John Rasaofessor John Rasaofessor John Rasaofessor John Rasa
President
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Box Hill Institute is moving closer and closer to its stated objective of being
Australia’s number one vocational education and training provider in the global
market.

The fact that we were named the best TAFE in Victoria and ranked in the top 4
TAFEs in Australia means that our vision and its implementation is hitting the
mark with students, staff, industry, community and government at all levels.

Our 2004 student enrolment numbers were 11 per cent better than last year
with a total of 37,150 enrolments and the delivery of 106 per cent of our
contracted student contact hours.

This year, our financial performance remained sound with an operating result of
$5.709 million and a working capital ratio of 1.77:1 achieved.  These results
continue to ensure that the Institute manages its financial resources and
reserves prudently.

The results of the student satisfaction survey in October 2004 showed that
more than 80 per cent of students said they would recommend Box Hill
Institute as a place to study and believed what they were learning would make
them more employable.

John Maddock
Chief Executive Officer
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Each year the Australian National Training
Authority through the National Centre for
Vocational Education Research surveys TAFE
graduates about their satisfaction with the
course they have  studied and their
employment outcomes.  Significantly 82% of
Box Hill Institute students rated the quality of
their course 4 or more out of 5 with 83% saying
they had achieved or partly achieved their main
reasons for doing the course.

We excelled in all of our strategic platforms that
are incorporated in our 2003-2007 Strategic
Plan.

In the international business market, we are
now seen as a legitimate training provider in
many countries and our challenge is to grow
that business while maintaining our high quality
standards. That must be through a targeted
marketing approach and first class service for
those who come to Australia and for those we
teach in their own countries. In 2004, we saw
an increase in international students across
several disciplines. We have recorded
particularly strong growth in offshore
enrolments in our hairdressing, floristry and
business courses.

During 2004, a tremendous amount of work
was done in further developing our international
extended campuses with some excellent
results in China and with a new campus
planned for development in Kuwait. Training
programs in business, management, ICT and
engineering were delivered in Malaysia,
Vietnam, Fiji, Chile, Papua New Guinea and
Indonesia.

As we strive to prepare students for work in a
global labour force, we are continuing to build
on our international linkages with like-minded
educational institutions such as Southern
Alberta Institute of Technology in Canada and
Kirkwood Community College in the US.
Through these partnerships, as part of our
Global Education Network, more than 70 staff
and students partipated in exchanges that
have been enriching to all parties.

This year, I was delighted to travel to China to
attend the graduation ceremony of the first
students to complete the Advanced Diploma of
Business (International Business) and
Engineering Technology offered in a joint
partnership between the Institute and Shanghai
College of Machinery and Technology. We also
hosted the first graduates from the KOTO
(Know One Teach One) initiative that offers
homeless Vietnamese youth the chance to gain
a hospitality qualification.

Our new degree offerings in Applied Music,
Biotechnology & Innovation and Computer
Systems (Networking) have significantly
boosted our reputation as leaders in learning.
We are the first TAFE in Australia to offer
degrees in these fields. This will give our
students even more options for learning at Box
Hill Institute with the chance to study abroad
and the opportunity of later entering university
courses. Also, the Centre for Health &
Community Services this year accepted its first
enrolments into the newly-accredited
Certificate IV in Health (Nursing).

Our training businesses are still performing
strongly and giving our students exceptional
work experience opportunities. Some examples
in 2004 include the entertainment students
setting up the lighting and sound equipment
hire firm Lash (Lighting & Sound Hire) and the
completed work on the new day spa training
centre in the Centre for Hair, Beauty & Floristry.

I want to recognise the talents and
achievements of our students including those
who once again scooped awards at Worldskills
and the Melbourne International Flower &
Garden Show. Box Hill Institute trainee Vinnie
Ruane of Melton Country Club won the
Tattersalls 2003/2004 Most Outstanding
Performance in Service Excellence. Box Hill
Institute apprentices also won six out of eight
awards at the Victorian Housing Industry’s
Inaugural Apprentice Awards.

Our Outstanding Students of the Year were:
Tony Van De Hoef – Best Third Year
Apprentice; Stephen Frith – Best Second Year
Apprentice; Alistair Morris – Best First Year
Apprentice; Althea Brooks – Vocational
Category; Yvonne Vincent – Rotary Club of Box
Hill Achievement Award.
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Box Hill Institute awarded the first Victorian
Indigenous Scholarship to VCAL student Dylan
Kane. The $2000 scholarship builds on the
Institute’s Wurreker Implementation Plan, which
aims to increase the participation and
awareness of Koori students within the
Institute.

Our graduates and students continue to excel
within their chosen industries. Music graduate
Michael Trappett has taken on the role of Bjorn
in cover band BABBA while performing arts
graduate Shane Wakker is now the drummer
with popular rock band Bodyjar.

Our teaching staff are leaders in learning in the
truest sense as they are responsible for guiding
our students to be the best. Our general staff
once again supported and provided the
backbone that makes the Institute a truly great
place to work. We recognised the excellent
contribution made by our staff, without whom
our success would not be possible. We also
congratulate all the nominees and winners for
the Staff Achievement Recognition Program.

The 2004 winners were: Craig Brittle –
Employee of the Year, Sue McFarland –
Teacher of the Year, Adrian Lea – Leaders
Globally, Craig Brittle – Leaders in Learning,
Janis Munro – Leaders in Community
Relationships, Dominic Pentony – Leaders in
Technology, Cameron Clayton – Managing
Students and Customers, Raul Estevez –
Managing Business Growth, Phillip Lucas –
Managing Capacity and Capability, Jude Royle
– Managing Business Performance, and
Malcolm Burt, Katherine Stewart and Saroj
Sharma – Team of the Year.

We once again continued to be leaders in
community relationships, demonstrating
responsible corporate citizenship by again
winning multiple awards at the Whitehorse
Business Group’s Annual Excellence in
Business Awards. Also, the Institute’s former
students Lea-Ann Brighton and Joann Wood
won the Small Business Category and the
Environmental & Sustainability Award
respectively.

Cabinet making
graduate Jayme-
Lee Cooney was
declared Victoria’s
top apprentice
tradesperson by
the National
Association of
Women in
Construction for
her success in the
cabinet making
industry.

Meanwhile, automotive student Amber Sarda
obtained an apprenticeship with Porsche.
These students have not only demonstrated
exemplary technical skills but have also broken
into fields traditionally dominated by men.
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We won the award for the nation’s Best
National Business Enterprise Centre (BEC) at
the Small Business Development Conference
run by Business Enterprise Centres (Australia).

During 2004, we maintained our strategic
partnerships with companies including
Sidchrome, Aveda, Baker’s Delight, GSS and
Unigraphics. These partners and many others
have supported our students with donations of
equipment, supplies, scholarships and other
forms of sponsorship.

As leaders in technology, we invested heavily in
infrastructure and technology particularly in the
new $19.5 million Elgar Campus development,
which is now operational. This development
includes new facilities for biotechnology and
animal sciences, business programs and
hairdressing, is wireless enabled and features
the most advanced facilities for our students.

The Centre for Hospitality & Tourism Studies
and Online Services together began delivering
SMS notifications to students. This proved a
very successful and popular initiative.

We have many partnerships with industry
leaders in technology such as Cisco, who have
continued to support the Institute with its
scholarship, and Dell, who have generously
provided computers for many of our community
initiatives. This year, we strengthened our
relationship with Microsoft which has opened
up the possibility for future commercial
activities.

The new organisational structure, approved by
Council on 30 September 2004, moves us a
little more towards a line organisation structure
whilst still retaining the strengths of the matrix
arrangements for cross-Institute functions.

Lastly, I want to thank the Council, our
dedicated and committed staff, our industry
and community partners and sponsors both
locally and overseas, and our students for
making this a most enjoyable and productive
year.

John MaddockJohn MaddockJohn MaddockJohn MaddockJohn Maddock
Chief Executive Officer

The Institute entered a car in the Variety Club
Vic Bash. Students and staff from the Centre of
Automotive, Transport & Engineering built the
car with the support of local sponsors.  Money
raised went to the Box Hill Hospital’s Children’s
Ward. Also, the proceeds from the third annual
Black Tie Ball, along with contributions from
the Rotary Club of Nunawading and other local
Rotary Clubs and the Child & Family Care
Network, gave us enough money to begin
construction on the House for Homeless Youth.
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Ongoing appointment - Chief Executive Officer
Mr John Maddock

Ministerial appointments
Mr Philip Belcher Appointed 29/01/2001 for 3 years

Reappointed 09/03/04 for 3 years
Mr Peter Seamer Appointed 27/03/2003 for 3 years
Ms Elizabeth White Appointed 26/04/2002 for 3 years

Ministerial appointments - industry
Associate Professor John Rasa Appointed 27/03/2003 for 3 years
Mr Glenn Von Bibra Appointed 29/01/2001 for 3 years

Reappointed 09/03/04 for 3 years
Ms Genevieve Webb Appointed 26/03/2003 for 3 years

Co-opted appointments
Ms Christine Kilmartin Appointed 27/02/2002 for 3 years
Mr Philip Moran Appointed 27/02/2001 for 3 years

Resigned 27/05/04
Mr Bruce Thompson Appointed 25/02/2003 for 2 years

Elected staff representative
Mr Fergus Hudson Appointed 01/06/2003 for 2 years

Elected student representative
Ms Pheobe Garside Appointed 01/04/2003 for 1 year

Reappointed 01/04/04 for 1 year

Office bearers

PrPrPrPrPresidentesidentesidentesidentesident
Mr Philip Moran Appointed to 27/05/04
Associate Professor John Rasa Appointed from 27/05/04

VVVVVice Price Price Price Price Presidentsesidentsesidentsesidentsesidents
Associate Professor John Rasa Appointed to 27/05/04
Ms Genevieve Webb
Ms Elizabeth White Appointed from 27/05/04

Back row (left to right):
Philip BelcherPhilip BelcherPhilip BelcherPhilip BelcherPhilip Belcher, Fergus Hudson, Jenni Perry, Fergus Hudson, Jenni Perry, Fergus Hudson, Jenni Perry, Fergus Hudson, Jenni Perry, Fergus Hudson, Jenni Perry, Glenn V, Glenn V, Glenn V, Glenn V, Glenn Von Bibraon Bibraon Bibraon Bibraon Bibra
Front row (left to right):
John Maddock, John Rasa, Elizabeth WhiteJohn Maddock, John Rasa, Elizabeth WhiteJohn Maddock, John Rasa, Elizabeth WhiteJohn Maddock, John Rasa, Elizabeth WhiteJohn Maddock, John Rasa, Elizabeth White
Absent:
Peter SeamerPeter SeamerPeter SeamerPeter SeamerPeter Seamer, Genevieve W, Genevieve W, Genevieve W, Genevieve W, Genevieve Webb, Christine Kilmartin,ebb, Christine Kilmartin,ebb, Christine Kilmartin,ebb, Christine Kilmartin,ebb, Christine Kilmartin,
Bruce Thompson, Pheobe GarsideBruce Thompson, Pheobe GarsideBruce Thompson, Pheobe GarsideBruce Thompson, Pheobe GarsideBruce Thompson, Pheobe Garside



Global Educators 11

Council committees
All committee members are independent of
management
• Audit Committee

Glenn von Bibra (Chair), Philip Belcher,
Elizabeth White, John Rasa
John Maddock (non-member attending)

• Council Executive Committee
John Rasa (Chair), Genevieve Webb,
Elizabeth White, John Maddock

• Council Finance Committee
Glenn von Bibra (Chair), Peter Seamer,
Bruce Thompson
John Maddock (non-member attending)

• Council Remuneration Committee
John Rasa (Chair), Genevieve Webb,
Elizabeth White, John Maddock

Council biographies

Associate Professor John Rasa is Director of
The Edge Management Consulting in
Melbourne. John has had extensive experience
in the health services industry and has held
CEO positions including Box Hill Hospital, and
three NSW Area Health Services. He served as
Professor of Health Services Management at
Charles Sturt University for three years and
currently serves on a range of Health Services
committees and is on the Board of the
Victorian Branch of the Australian College of
Health Service Executives. John holds a
Bachelor of Arts (Clinical Psych), a Diploma in
Industrial Law & Industrial Relations, Masters
Degree in Health Planning, and is a Member of
the Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Ms Genevieve Webb is an Executive at City of
Melbourne.  She has extensive experience in
management consulting and information
technology, having worked across the public,
private and community sectors both within
Australia and overseas. Genevieve served on
the Audit Committee of a State Government
office and on the Board of a transitional
housing organisation.  She holds a Bachelor of
Arts (Hons) in Psychology and a Bachelor of
Applied Science in Computing, and is a Fellow
of the Australian Institute of Company
Directors.

Ms Elizabeth White is the Principal Consultant
for DeakinPrime, the corporate training body of
Deakin University, responsible for managing the
business relationship with the Ford Motor
Company. She has previously held corporate
positions within the real estate sector and also
has a background in education administration.
Elizabeth holds teaching qualifications, a
Bachelor of Arts and a Masters in Education.

Mr John Maddock has been CEO of Box Hill
Institute since 1999.  Prior to this, John was
CEO of Gordon Institute and during his career
has held a variety of management roles in the
TAFE sector.  Before starting his career in
education, John was employed by Arthur
Andersen & Co. working in the business
consultancy area. John is also a Board
member of Deakin University Council, is the
Deputy Chair of the Victorian Tertiary
Admissions Centre and serves on a number of
key state and national Boards and Committees,
with a particular focus on education, IT, and
business skills. John has tertiary qualifications
in Education and Business (Accounting).

Mr Philip Belcher is the Managing Director for
StorageTek Australia/New Zealand Pty. Ltd.
Philip has had an extensive career in sales
leadership and general management within the
Information Technology and
Telecommunications sector. Phillip holds an
MBA, tertiary qualifications in Technology
(Electronics) and is a Fellow of the Australian
Institute of Company Directors.

Ms Pheobe Garside is the elected student
member to Council. Pheobe has been very
involved in student activities at the institute over
the last 3 years, and has a keen interest in
assisting people to attain their personal goals.
Pheobe has tertiary qualifications in Sport and
Recreation (Business), Fitness Instruction and
Personal Training.

Mr Fergus Hudson is a long-standing teacher
at Box Hill Institute and is the elected staff
Council member. Fergus has had significant
industrial experience in various countries and
holds teaching qualifications and an Arts
Degree ( Hons )  He is also a Council member
of the AEU Vic Branch.

Ms Christine Kilmartin is employed by the
Victorian Department of Sustainability and
Environment as a researcher, working on the
integration of sustainability into policy and
action. She worked previously at the Australian
Institute of Family Studies, providing research
on trends for federal policy. She also
contributes to initiatives to maintain viable
communities. Christine holds a degree in Social
Studies.
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Mr Peter Seamer is the CEO of Federation
Square Management.  He commenced his
career in engineering, planning and
management working for a number of years as
a consultant in Canberra and in London
working on major town planning exercises and
large project design. Peter has Masters
degrees in Engineering and in Urban Planning
and had an extensive career in local
government.

Mr Bruce Thompson is a Director and the CEO
of Keycorp Limited, a global provider of secure
electronic transaction solutions. Bruce has
extensive experience in the IT Industry and in
corporate governance. Bruce serves on a
number of boards and industry associations,
has a Degree in Economics and is a Fellow of
the Society for Chartered Practising
Accountants.

Mr Glenn von Bibra is the Director of V.I.P.
Personnel Pty Ltd, one of Victoria’s foremost
hospitality recruitment companies and a
Hospitality consultancy business “Bibra
Consulting”. Glenn has had an extensive and
distinguished career in the Hospitality Industry,
and catering and food retailing in particular,
both within Australia and overseas. Glenn
serves on a wide range of industry associations
and has qualifications in Human Resource
Consulting as well as Cookery.

Phillip Moran has been the CEO of Moreland
Community Health Services for the past 7
years, working in the community health and
welfare services industry across the northern
suburbs of Melbourne. Prior to his resignation
from Council in May 2004,Phillip held office as
Council President. Other career appointments
have been as a Town Planner and Ministerial
Advisor. He has a Bachelor of Arts (Hons) and
Post Graduate Business qualifications.

Additional InformationAdditional InformationAdditional InformationAdditional InformationAdditional Information

Council training
• John Rasa undertook the AICD Company

Directors Non-Residential Program, 20-24
September 2004.

• Christine Kilmartin attended the VTA State
Conference, 28-30 May 2004.

• Philip Belcher attended the 2 week
StorageTek Global Executive Program,
Colorado.

Meeting attendance
The Council held 10 meetings in 2004. Member
attendance was as follows:
Phillip Moran 5 (Resigned June 2004)
John Rasa 10
Christine Kilmartin 10
Pheobe Garside 9
Elizabeth White 10
Fergus Hudson 9
Bruce Thompson 8 (Granted leave of absence)
Genevieve Webb 9
Peter Seamer 3 (Granted leave of absence)
Glenn von Bibra 6 (Granted leave of absence)
Philip Belcher 7 (Granted leave of absence)
John Maddock 10

Functions of council
The function of the Council is to establish the
Institute’s strategic direction, to oversee and
ensure the effective and efficient management
of the Institute, to approve management plans,
and to ensure that the community is serviced
effectively with technical and further education
programs which are responsive to its needs.
The Council is committed to the adoption of
ethical conduct in all areas of its responsibilities
and authority.  In so doing it binds its members
to the principles and practices as determined in
the Council’s Code of Conduct.
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Responsible person

The Honourable LThe Honourable LThe Honourable LThe Honourable LThe Honourable Lynne Koskyynne Koskyynne Koskyynne Koskyynne Kosky
Minister for Education and Training

Directors of Box Hill
Enterprises Ltd
The names and relevant details of the Directors
in office at the date of this report are:

John Maddock, (Managing DirJohn Maddock, (Managing DirJohn Maddock, (Managing DirJohn Maddock, (Managing DirJohn Maddock, (Managing Director)ector)ector)ector)ector)

Philip BelcherPhilip BelcherPhilip BelcherPhilip BelcherPhilip Belcher

Fergus HudsonFergus HudsonFergus HudsonFergus HudsonFergus Hudson

Christine KilmartinChristine KilmartinChristine KilmartinChristine KilmartinChristine Kilmartin

Philip Moran (Chair) - rPhilip Moran (Chair) - rPhilip Moran (Chair) - rPhilip Moran (Chair) - rPhilip Moran (Chair) - resigned 27/05/04esigned 27/05/04esigned 27/05/04esigned 27/05/04esigned 27/05/04

John RasaJohn RasaJohn RasaJohn RasaJohn Rasa

Peter SeamerPeter SeamerPeter SeamerPeter SeamerPeter Seamer

Bruce ThompsonBruce ThompsonBruce ThompsonBruce ThompsonBruce Thompson

Glenn VGlenn VGlenn VGlenn VGlenn Von Bibraon Bibraon Bibraon Bibraon Bibra

Genevieve WGenevieve WGenevieve WGenevieve WGenevieve Webbebbebbebbebb

Elizabeth WhiteElizabeth WhiteElizabeth WhiteElizabeth WhiteElizabeth White

Establishment
Box Hill College of Technical and Further
Education (TAFE) was established by an Order
in Council dated 25 January 1984, under the
Victorian Post-Secondary Education Act 1978,
following an amalgamation with the Whitehorse
College of TAFE.

The Governor in Council approved orders
changing the name of Box Hill College of TAFE
to Box Hill Institute of TAFE on 12 September
1995.

The functions, powers and duties of the
Institute are set out in the Vocational Education
and Training Act 1990 and the Constitution of
the Council of the Box Hill Institute of TAFE.

The relevant Minister for Education and
Training is:

The Honourable LThe Honourable LThe Honourable LThe Honourable LThe Honourable Lynne Kosky MPynne Kosky MPynne Kosky MPynne Kosky MPynne Kosky MP

Management

Chief Executive OfChief Executive OfChief Executive OfChief Executive OfChief Executive Officerficerficerficerficer
John Maddock

Deputy CEODeputy CEODeputy CEODeputy CEODeputy CEO
Darrell Cain

General Managers

Campus ServicesCampus ServicesCampus ServicesCampus ServicesCampus Services
Dermot O’Sullivan

Corporate ServicesCorporate ServicesCorporate ServicesCorporate ServicesCorporate Services
Joanne James

GoverGoverGoverGoverGovernment Initiativesnment Initiativesnment Initiativesnment Initiativesnment Initiatives
Jill Baird

Industry InitiativesIndustry InitiativesIndustry InitiativesIndustry InitiativesIndustry Initiatives
Jim Irwin

Students & LearStudents & LearStudents & LearStudents & LearStudents & Learningningningningning
Angela Hoare-Lippmann

TTTTTeaching & Leareaching & Leareaching & Leareaching & Leareaching & Learningningningningning
Anne Jones

Organisation DevelopmentOrganisation DevelopmentOrganisation DevelopmentOrganisation DevelopmentOrganisation Development
Angela Hutson
Delia McIver - appointed 16/08/04

CommerCommerCommerCommerCommercial Developmentcial Developmentcial Developmentcial Developmentcial Development
John Italiano

Institute committees
• Board of Studies
• Enterprise Bargaining Agreement (EBA)

Consultative Committee
• Finance and Budget Committee
• Occupational Health and Safety Committee
• Student Management Business Process

Redesign Steering Committee
• Risk Management Steering Committee

Advisory teams
• Commercial Advisory Committee
• Institute Development Advisory Committee
• Marketing Advisory Committee
• Apprenticeship Marketing Working Party
• Global Education Network Working Party
• Information and Communication Technology

Working Party
• International Extended Campus Unit

Working Party
• Overseas Marketers’ Working Party
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Campus
locations

Ceylon
Campus
30-32 Ceylon Street
Nunawading 3130

Phone (03) 9286 9122
www.bhtafe.edu.au

Elgar
Campus
465 Elgar Road
Box Hill 3128

Phone (03) 9286 9222
www.bhtafe.edu.au

Ellingworth
Campus
4 Ellingworth Parade
Box Hill 3128

Phone (03) 9286 9631
www.bhtafe.edu.au

Nelson
Campus
853 Whitehorse Road
Box Hill 3128

Phone (03) 9286 9222
www.bhtafe.edu.au

Whitehorse
Campus
1000 Whitehorse Road
Box Hill 3128

Phone (03) 9286 9222
www.bhtafe.edu.au

Secondary schools
extended campuses
Aquinas College
Avila Secondary College
Balwyn High School
Berwick Secondary College
Box Hill Senior Secondary College
Brentwood Secondary College
Canterbury Girls Secondary College
Carey Baptist Grammar
Catholic Ladies College
Chandler Secondary College
De La Salle College
Donvale Christian School
Echuca and District Vocational
Education and Training
Eltham College
Eltham High School
Emmaus College
Fairhills High School
Ferntree Gully Secondary College
Fintona Girls School
Forest Hill Secondary College
Genazzano FCJC
Heatherwood School
Heathmont College
Highvale Secondary College
Ivanhoe Grammar School
Killester College
Kingswood Secondary College
Koonung Secondary College
Latrobe Secondary College
Lilydale Adventist Academy
Lilydale Heights Secondary College

Loreto Manderville Hall
Mater Christi College
Mazenod College
Melbourne Girls College
Methodist Ladies College
Montmorency Secondary College
Mooroolbark Heights Secondary College
Mt Lilydale Mercy College
Mt Waverley Secondary College
Mullauna Secondary College
Our Lady of Mercy College
Our Lady of Sion College
Our Lady of the Sacred Heart College
Parkwood Secondary College
Presbyterian Ladies College
Ruyton Girls School
Sacre Coeur College
Salesian College
Shelford Girls Grammar School
Siena College
St Catherine’s School
Strathcona Girls Grammar School
Templestowe Secondary College
Tintern Girls Grammar
Upper Yarra Secondary College
Upwey High School
Viewbank College
Warrandyte High School
Wellington Secondary College
Wheelers Hill Secondary College
Whitefriars College

International campuses
• China – Shanghai College of Electrical and Machine Technology
• Fiji – New Zealand Pacific Training Centre (11 campuses)
• Malaysia – Selangor Human Resource Development Centre
• Saudi Arabia – Multinational School
• Sri Lanka – OpenArc International Scholar Institute
• Vietnam – Hanoi Open University
• Vietnam – KOTO (Hanoi)
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Summary of number of persons
employed
 November 2004
 Teaching staff Full-time Part-time Total EFT
 Ongoing Female 78 74 152 127.50

Male 163 19 182 175.40
 Fixed term Female 6 19 25 17.60

Male 12 10 22 19.30
 Sessional Female 153 153 29.80

Male 166 166 39.10
 Total Teachers 259 441 700 408.70

 Non teaching staff Full-time Part-time Total EFT
 Executive Officers Female 4 1 5 4.90

Male 7 7 7.00
 Management Female 15 15 15.00

Male 19 1 20 19.60
 PACCT Ongoing Female 113 52 165 144.40

Male 48 5 53 51.10
 PACCT Fixed Term Female 32 16 48 41.30

Male 9 4 13 10.80
 PACCT Casual Female 7 7 2.50

Male
 Other Staff Ongoing Female 2 2 4 3.00

Male 35 4 39 37.10
 Other Staff Female 34 34 3.30
- fixed term and casual Male 1 21 22 1.80
SUB TOTAL - all staff Female 250 358 608 389.30

Male 294 230 524 363.00
TOTTOTTOTTOTTOTAL StafAL StafAL StafAL StafAL Staffffff 544544544544544 588588588588588 11321132113211321132 752.30752.30752.30752.30752.30

 November 2003
 Teaching staff Full-time Part-time Total EFT
Ongoing Female 77 63 140 117.26

Male 159 15 174 168.59
Fixed term Female 10 30 40 27.95

Male 12 9 21 17.85
Sessional Female 148 148 47.70

Male 168 168 64.40
Total Teachers 258 433 691 443.75

 Non teaching staff Full-time Part-time Total EFT
Executive Officers Female 5 5 5.00

Male 6 6 6.00
Management Female 16 1 17 16.52

Male 18 1 19 18.6
PACCT Ongoing Female 106 42 148 132.38

Male 49 4 53 51.20
PACCT Fixed Term Female 32 24 56 44.31

Male 8 6 14 11.10
PACCT Casual Female 13 13 4.21

Male 3 3 0.70
Other Staff Ongoing Female 2 2 4 3.05

Male 27 5 32 30.56
Other Staff Female 24 24 6.67
- fixed term and casual Male 1 16 17 4.62
SUB TOTAL - all staff Female 248 347 595 405.05

Male 280 227 507 373.62
TOTTOTTOTTOTTOTAL StafAL StafAL StafAL StafAL Staffffff 528528528528528 574574574574574 1101.521101.521101.521101.521101.52 778.67778.67778.67778.67778.67
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box hill institute
management chart
EfEfEfEfEffective frfective frfective frfective frfective from 1 January 2004 to 31 October 2004om 1 January 2004 to 31 October 2004om 1 January 2004 to 31 October 2004om 1 January 2004 to 31 October 2004om 1 January 2004 to 31 October 2004
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The Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Darrell Cain, is accountable for the
achievement of the following objectives:
• to deliver at least 100% of contracted student contact hours within the

apprenticeship and non-apprenticeship profiles as well as specially
identified training program priorities

• to plan and implement the customer satisfaction studies program, report
key findings to customers and staff and implement improvements to
address key issues arising from the studies

• to expend funds in accordance with grant specifications, ministerial
guidelines and service standards

• to ensure that the Institute complies with all significant statutory obligations
deriving from the Vocational Education and Training (VET) Act and an
ongoing process is in place to review compliance

• to ensure that the Institute follows best practice corporate governance
processes

• to ensure the Institute meets the requirements of the Australian Quality
Training Framework

• to ensure the Institute meets the requirements of the Whistleblowers
Protection Act.

2004 Operational performance
Box Hill Institute ensures that vocational education and training is responsive
to individual student needs while meeting the future directions of the Victorian
economy by committing to a strategic management framework within a matrix
organisational structure. The organisation ensures that the Institute’s strategic
platforms are implemented in an innovative environment. General Managers
provide strategic leadership and are responsible and accountable for a range
of initiatives, which are reflected in the Institute’s four strategic and four
management platforms. These platforms are:

Strategic platforms Management platforms

Leaders Globally Managing Students and Customers

Leaders in Learning Managing Business Growth

Leaders in Community Relationships Managing Capacity and Capability

Leaders in Technology Managing Business Performance

The Institute’s student management system (SMART) recorded 37,150
enrolments in 2004 compared to 32,865 in 2003. Total enrolments at Box Hill
Institute over the past 10 years are shown in Chart 1.

Darrell Cain
Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Key areas:

Managing students and
customers
• Client satisfaction studies

Managing business growth
• Government funded profile
• Student enrolments

Managing capacity and
capability
• Quality assurance

Managing business
performance
• Delivery of student contact

hours
• Performance and funding

agreement obligations
• Legal obligations

associated with the VET Act
• Corporate governance

processes
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Chart 1: Box Hill Institute – 10 Year Comparison of Total Enrolments

Enrolments under state recurrent funding constituted 46.1% of total enrolments (compared with
47.2% in 2003, 50.4% in 2002 and 51.8% in 2001).

State government recurrent funding, in non-apprenticeship/traineeship areas, had total enrolments
of 13,080 (an increase of 11.5% on 2003), and were distributed as follows:
• 2,983 full-time (a decrease of 2.2% on 2003)
• 8,750 part-time (an increase of 15.5% on 2003)
• 1,347 off campus (an increase of 21.8% on 2003).

Apprenticeship/traineeship enrolments of 4,064 (an increase of 7.1% on 2003) produced a total of
17,144 enrolments (an increase of 10.4% on 2003)

The remaining 20,006 enrolments (an increase of 15.4%) came from short courses, fee for service
courses, other government funded programs and international students. These non-recurrent
enrolments included 2,444 full-time and 17,562 part-time enrolments.

Chart 2: Comparison of 2002, 2003 and 2004 Proportional Distribution of Enrolments by Program
Type
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Student contact hours generated in 2004 were 7.38m compared with 7.17m in 2003 (an increase
of 2.9%).

Total student contact hours at Box Hill Institute over the past 10 years are compared in Chart 3.

Chart 3: Box Hill Institute – 10 Year Comparison of Total Student Contact Hours

The student contact hours generated from state recurrent funding were 4.56m compared with
4.49m in 2003 (an increase of 1.5%), representing 61.8% of student contact hours in the Institute
in 2004 (compared to 62.6% in 2003).

Recurrent student contact hours generated comprised:
• 1,989,140 for full-time government general profile (a decrease of 3.3%)
• 1,319,846 for part-time government general profile (an increase of 3.5%)
• 1,107,325 for apprentices/trainees (a decrease of 11.5%)
• 141,084 for off-campus students (a decrease of 0.3%)

The remaining 2,820,504 student contact hours were generated through non-recurrent funding (an
increase of 10.4%).

Chart 4: Comparison of 2002, 2003 and 2004 Proportional Distribution of Student Contact Hours
by Program Type
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The Institute participated in the Australian
National Training Authority TAFE Student
Outcomes Survey 2004 (based on students
who completed in 2003), which was managed
by the National Centre for Vocational Education
Research. However, results from the 2004
survey are relevant at a state and national level
only. Institute-level reports are provided
biennially.

Box Hill Institute graduates exceeded the State
and National average in almost all the key
survey areas, with 96% of Box Hill graduates
working or in further studies after 30 May 2003,
compared to the national average of 82% prior
to commencement of a course. Of these
graduates, 23% were employed in their first
full-time position, and 32% made a significant
change of occupation as a result of training.

The following table (Table 1) outlines the major findings, specific to Box Hill Institute from this
survey.

Table 1: Selected Institute results from the 2003 Student Outcomes Survey (NCVER)

Item Box Hill Victorian Australian
Institute Average Average

At 30 May 2003:
- Graduates who were employed 84% 78% 74%
- Graduates who were unemployed 9% 12% 13%
- Graduates who were not in the labour force 6% 9% 11%

Graduates unemployed before commencing
their TAFE course who found work by 30
May 2003 56% 47% 45%

Graduates who gave main reason for doing
the course as ‘to get a job or own business’
who were employed at 30 May 2003 72% 67% 64%

School leavers (graduates starting course
within 12 months of leaving school) who were
employed at 30 May 2003 84% 78% 78%

Graduates who were employed in their first
full time job 23% 24% 24%

Graduates who were employed or in further
study after their training as at 30 May 2003 96% 95% 92%
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A key initiative in 2004, to ensure the Institute’s
ongoing viability in this area, was the
development of the Institute’s Program Profile
Plan 2005 – 2010, which provides an
organisational perspective on the medium term
modelling of Program Profile delivery to 2010,
considering a broad range of factors affecting
core business planning across the organisation.

The five-year Profile Plan is based on the
interplay between four key elements:
• strategic priorities of Box Hill Institute and

the State Government
• program cost effectiveness
• industry sector employment growth
• market share growth.

Key initiatives included:
To deliver at least 100% of contracted student contact hours within the
apprenticeship and traineeship (L) and non-apprenticeship and traineeship (P)
profiles as well as specially identified training program priorities…

The Institute achieved its Student Contact Hour (SCH) delivery requirements under the 2004
Performance Agreement with the Office of Training and Tertiary Education (OTTE).

Under the Performance Agreement the Institute was required to deliver a minimum of 4,278,332
SCH, and achieved actual delivery of 4,557,395, which represents 106.5% of target.

The contribution of individual Teaching Centres to the achievement of the Institute’s Performance
Agreement targets is demonstrated in Chart 1, which depicts the percentage of the Institute’s
2004 Recurrent (P and L) Student Contact Hours delivered by each Teaching Centre.

Chart 1: Percentage of 2004 Recurrent Profile Delivery by Centre

The formation of the Program Profile Plan
paralleled the development of the key Victorian
Learning and Employment Skills Commission
report into demand and priorities for VET in the
eastern metropolitan area of Melbourne. Box
Hill Institute was heavily involved in this.

To plan and implement the customer
satisfaction studies program, report key
findings to customers and staff and
implement improvements to address
key issues arising from the studies…
The Institute is required to plan, implement and
report on a customer satisfaction studies
program, as part of its Performance Agreement
with OTTE.
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In 2004, the Institute undertook the Student
Satisfaction Survey. In consultation with an
external company, the Student Survey was
reviewed and completely revised taking into
account:
• planning and implementation of the survey

from a logistical perspective
• the methodology of the survey process
• the structure and format of the survey tool
• the questions asked in the survey tool.

The focus group stage of the survey found that
the most important aspects of the educational
experience at Box Hill Institute for students
were, in order:
• quality teaching and learning
• teaching and learning environment
• assessment process
• communication.

More than 80% of students said:
• they would recommend the Institute as a

place to study and believe what they are
learning will make them more employable

• they were provided with unit/subject
outlines at the commencement of the unit/
subject

• the teaching approaches used have helped
them to learn

• they feel teachers treat them appropriately
and with respect, and have adequate
opportunities to communicate with teachers
about their learning

• they feel Box Hill Institute provides a safe
and comfortable environment that assists
their learning

• they have adequate access to timetable
information and the library

• they were provided with accurate
information about the enrolment sessions
and were appropriately informed about fees
and payment requirements for their course.

To expend funds in accordance with
grant specifications, ministerial
guidelines and service standards…
The Institute spent Financial Advances
provided under its Performance Agreement
with OTTE in accordance with grant
specifications, ministerial guidelines and service
standards. These advances included funds for
disability support, curriculum maintenance
management, apprenticeship and traineeship
subsidies, indigenous programs, building
maintenance and professional development.

To ensure that the Institute complies
with all significant statutory obligations
deriving from the VET Act and an
ongoing process is in place to review
compliance… and to ensure that the
Institute follows best practice corporate
governance processes…
During 2004 the Institute continued to
emphasise matters of Corporate Governance
and compliance with legislation.

To ensure the Institute meets the
requirements of the Australian Quality
Training Framework…
Box Hill Institute is required under its
Performance Agreement with OTTE to
implement the National Training Framework,
which includes Training Packages and the
Australian Quality Training Framework (AQTF).
Adherence to the National Training Framework
enables consistency, quality and national
recognition of the Institute’s teaching and
assessment services. Quality as defined by
ANTA, is the level of satisfaction with the
effectiveness of Box Hill Institutes’ vocational
education and training, our products and
services, established through conformity with
the requirements set by clients and
stakeholders.
 
The AQTF compliance and conformity audit for
the purposes of reregistration undertaken
during May 2004 states the following: “The
Institute has effective quality assurance
processes in place and is considered to be fully
AQTF compliant,” and recommended that Box
Hill Institute of TAFE should be re-registered as
an RTO for a period of five years.
  
To ensure the Institute meets the
requirements of the Whistleblowers
Protection Act...
The Institute’s current policy and procedures
relating to the Whistleblowers Protection Act
2001 are laid out on the website. There was
one disclosure made to the Institute during the
year and one disclosed matter was referred to
the Institute by the Ombudsman.
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Anne Jones
General Manager - Teaching and Learning

Key areas:
Degrees
• Accreditation
• Implementation/capability

building

Global Education Network
• Global staff and student

experiences
• Global partners network

and curriculum

Chair, VET Board of Studies
• Education program

development, research
capability, professional
practice – teaching

E-learning
• Capability building

Universities relationships
• Pathways

Educational program
management and delivery/
operational report
• Staff management
• Student management
• Improvement plans (staff

and students)
• Centre plan development

and implementation

The General Manager Teaching and Learning, Anne Jones, is accountable for
the achievement of the following Institute objectives:
• to establish and nurture a culture of learning at the Institute, enabling it to

become a leader in local and global learning communities
• to ensure the Institute achieves excellence in professional practice and

cultivates a culture of reflection and research amongst staff
• to lead the development of the Global Education Network to provide

globally relevant and benchmarked opportunities for students and staff.

Key initiatives included:
To establish and nurture a culture of learning at the Institute,
enabling it to become a leader in local and global learning
communities…

New prNew prNew prNew prNew programs: Degrograms: Degrograms: Degrograms: Degrograms: Degrees at Box Hill Instituteees at Box Hill Instituteees at Box Hill Instituteees at Box Hill Instituteees at Box Hill Institute
Box Hill Institute has obtained approval to offer a new range of career-focused
degrees. The first three will be delivered in 2005:
• Bachelor of Applied Music
• Bachelor of Biotechnology and Innovation
• Bachelor of Computer Technology (Networking).

Our degrees will prepare capable graduates for 21st century jobs.

The hallmarks that define Box Hill Institute degrees are:
• learning that embraces both knowledge and practical skills
• curriculum that has been benchmarked against the best available

internationally and locally
• industry support for our program design
• delivery methods that stimulate creativity and innovation
• student experiences that will lead to employment opportunities.

Teams have also worked extremely hard during 2004 in order to submit
Associate Degrees in the following areas: Commerce, Biotechnology and
Innovation, Computer Systems (Networking), Applied Music, IT Software and
Fashion.

Implementation of higher education at Box Hill Institute has required the
coordination of various areas within the Institute to build our capability to
deliver degrees. The Institute has made substantial improvements to its library
resources as well as to systems for academic oversight of degrees. Staffing
capability has been developed through formal and informal professional
development and through the recruitment of new staff where appropriate.
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A Higher Education Community of Practice has
been formed. This Community of Practice
enables staff responsible for teaching and
coordinating the degree courses to meet on a
regular basis. Monash University has provided
a facilitator to assist with developing the group.
Members share experiences, work together on
interdisciplinary projects and participate in
professional development activities. The aim is
to ensure uniform standards in the approach to
delivering the degrees, encourage innovation
and provide a community of support as staff
deliver degrees for the first time.

BoarBoarBoarBoarBoard of Studiesd of Studiesd of Studiesd of Studiesd of Studies
A Higher Education Board of Studies was
introduced to support the delivery of degrees.
The Board encompasses an external Chair,
external academic representatives, Centre
Managers from each of the Bachelor degree
areas as well as the Executive Director,
Learning and Academic Affairs, and the
General Manager, Teaching and Students. The
Board will operate in parallel with the Institute’s
existing Vocational Education and Training
(VET) Board of Studies.

The Higher Education Board of Studies provides:
• high level of oversight for all higher

education programs
• moderation of higher education assessment
• oversight for the appointment of higher

education course leaders
• oversight of higher education program

course reviews and endorsement of
accreditation

• associated applications for submission to
the Office of Higher Education.

The VET Board of Studies continues to support
programs such as the Teaching and Learning
Symposium, internal and external research,
and teacher development. In 2004 the Board
sponsored several innovative projects
including:
• an attrition study in VCE Units 1 and 2
• the development of a new ‘learning

community’ approach to delivering VCE
Units 1 and 2

• benchmarking flexible and online delivery at
Box Hill Institute against that at Canberra
Institute of Technology.

To ensure the Institute achieves
excellence in professional practice and
cultivates a culture of reflection and
research amongst staff…

TTTTTeacher education and preacher education and preacher education and preacher education and preacher education and professional practiceofessional practiceofessional practiceofessional practiceofessional practice
Box Hill Institute is now able to offer a complete
teacher education and assessor certification
pathway from initial to postgraduate teacher
education.

In 2004, 15 Box Hill Institute staff graduated in
the Graduate Certificate in Vocational
Education and Training.

The Box Hill Institute and Monash University
partnership continues to flourish with the
delivery of the two Masters programs: Master
of Education (Work and Learning) and Master
in Organisational Leadership. A total of 40 staff
involved in the program have completed three
units to date. The groups will merge in 2005
and embark on research and project based
units.

At the end of 2004 more than 60 Institute
teaching and non-teaching staff are enrolled in
post-graduate degrees including Masters
programs in ICT and Music as well as the
Monash courses. This initiative is in part to
prepare for higher education delivery. However
it is also a result of our international
benchmarking and our intention to build Box
Hill Institute’s positioning as a globally
competitive leader in vocational education and
training.

To lead the development of the Global
Education Network to provide globally
relevant and benchmarked
opportunities for students and staff…

Global Education Network (GEN) activitiesGlobal Education Network (GEN) activitiesGlobal Education Network (GEN) activitiesGlobal Education Network (GEN) activitiesGlobal Education Network (GEN) activities
Box Hill Institute hosted the GEN conference in
March 2004.  Southern Alberta Institute of
Technology (SAIT), Calgary and new partner,
Kirkwood Community College, Cedar Rapids,
Iowa joined Box Hill Institute in a week of
discussions and activities.

During 2004, both SAIT and Box Hill Institute
hosted the following exchange of students and
staff:
• Four SAIT students enjoyed a three-week

study tour at Box Hill Institute. Three
students were in hospitality and tourism
studies, and one in computer technology.

• Nine students and two staff members from
Box Hill Institute visited SAIT for two weeks
on a study tour.

A major project has been the development of
the course in International Studies. This course
will be a Box Hill Institute copyright, externally
accredited program. It is designed to sit
alongside any diploma, advanced diploma or
degree course to produce a dual award
combination. This will enable the Institute to
support programs for a semester abroad in any
of these courses without students experiencing
time penalties.
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Angela Hoare-Lippmann
General Manager - Students and Learning

The General Manager Students and Learning, Angela Hoare-Lippmann, is
accountable for the achievement of the following Institute objectives:
• to provide students with a positive learning experience
• to lead the Institute’s development and provision of learning options for

youth
• to promote quality processes, delivery and outcomes in all teaching centres

including compliance with the Australian Quality Training Framework
• to lead and enhance the Institute’s relationship with secondary colleges and

other VET providers
• to lead and promote the appropriate use of technology in teaching centres

across the Institute.

Key initiatives included:
To provide students with a positive learning experience…

Servicing studentsServicing studentsServicing studentsServicing studentsServicing students
The General Manager Students and Learning managed the implementation of
a key recommendation of a report into Student Support Services to
consolidate all support service provision into one Centre. In 2003, the Youth
Unit and the Student Activities and Representative Committees (SARC)
combined and co-located with the Corporate Communications Officer. In
2004, the Institute Counsellors, the Disability Liaison Service, the Welfare
Officer, the Careers Advisor and the Study Support Officer joined them to form
the Centre for Student Support Services.

To lead the Institute’s development and provision of learning
options for youth…

LearLearLearLearLearning options for youthning options for youthning options for youthning options for youthning options for youth
In 2004, new staff were recruited into the Youth Unit; a Victorian Certificate of
Applied Learning (VCAL) Coordinator, two Youth Pathways positions (one
responsible for Youth Pathways and Professional Development and one
responsible for Youth Pathways and Student Welfare). Along with a Youth
Worker position located in the Centre for Vocational Access and Education,
these staff have provided the students, their parents and the teaching staff
with a high level of support to ensure the success of our VCAL program. There
have also been new Media Officer and Activities Officer appointments in
SARC.

Key areas:

Servicing students
• Student management
• Institute complaints/

concerns

Education program

Management and delivery/
Operational report
• Staff management
• Improvement plans (staff

and students)
• Centre plan development

and implementation

Australian Quality Training
Framework
• Implementation

Technology leadership

Learning options for youth
• Youth policy and youth

strategies

Secondary schools
relations
• VCAL, VETIS, GAP
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VCAL continued to be successfully delivered at
the Institute in 2004. Our retention rate of
approximately 70 per cent was much higher
than the state average. This can be attributed
to the commitment of the staff of both the
Youth Unit and the various teaching Centres,
which include, Building, Health and Community
Services, Hairdressing and Floristry, Hospitality
and Multimedia.

To promote quality processes, delivery
and outcomes in all teaching centres
including compliance with the
Australian Quality Training Framework…

Quality systemsQuality systemsQuality systemsQuality systemsQuality systems
The General Manager Students and Learning
continued in a lead role in the implementation
of quality systems in the delivery of vocational
education and training including compliance
with the Australian Quality Training Framework
(AQTF) and the Australian Higher Education
Quality Assurance Framework.

The Institute was audited under the AQTF for a
statewide reregistration process. We gained a
five-year unconditional registration.

The introduction of degrees at the Institute has
resulted in the need to develop quality
processes and principles appropriate to the
higher education sector. A quality system,
which is applicable to both the VET and the
higher education sectors, is currently being
refined for implementation in 2005.

Under the auspices of the Institute Board of
Studies, three quality projects have been
piloted during 2004 utilising the Institute’s
Distributed Learning Support System (DLSS).
Staff from the Centre for Computer Technology
developed a framework, which outlines
teaching and assessment details and strategies
for each course. Staff from this Centre also led
the development and piloting of a unit/module
evaluation tool. The third project, which came
from an initiative of the Centre for Information
Sciences, is an electronic Recognition of Prior
Learning (RPL) tool that was also piloted during
the year. All three projects will be rolled out
Institute-wide during 2005.

To lead and enhance the Institute’s
relationship with secondary colleges
and other VET providers…

Secondary school rSecondary school rSecondary school rSecondary school rSecondary school relationselationselationselationselations
VET in Schools (VETIS) and Growth and
Pathways (GAP) programs are important
conduits from secondary schooling to
vocational training and/or employment.

In 2004, the Institute had contractual
arrangements in place with more than 70
secondary schools.

During 2004 the Institute continued VCAL
projects in television and electronics with Box
Hill Senior Secondary College, and continues
to enjoy a special collaborative working
relationship with that college.

The Institute continued involvement at the
Committee of Management level with the
Gateway Local Learning and Employment
Network to further improve the outcomes of
learners in the Cities of Manningham, Monash
and Whitehorse.

To lead and promote the appropriate
use of technology in teaching centres
across the Institute…

TTTTTechnology in the classrechnology in the classrechnology in the classrechnology in the classrechnology in the classroomoomoomoomoom
During 2004 the Institute was successful in
obtaining funding from OTTE for the purchase
of high-end manufacturing equipment which
includes the integration of higher-level design
concepts to enable our students to train on
industry standard equipment in the areas of
building, cabinet making and engineering.

Staff from the Centre for Educational Product
Services carried out a benchmarking exercise
of Institute teaching equipment and of
strategies to learning, utilising technology
against those at Canberra Institute of
Technology during 2004. The report of their
findings will inform our planning for equipment
purchases over the next planning cycle.

To provide students with a positive
learning experience…

Client satisfactionClient satisfactionClient satisfactionClient satisfactionClient satisfaction
The ‘What’s Happening’ feedback system
continued to work effectively across the
Institute with feedback being recorded either in
writing on postcards, email or by letter to the
Corporate Communications Officer and
through SARC. A quarterly report on student
feedback is compiled for information and action
by the Management Team.

A student satisfaction survey was completed in
Term 4. Part of the process to develop the
survey was a series of focus groups, which
identified what part of a student’s experience at
Box Hill Institute they rated as most important
to least important. More than 80 percent of the
student population surveyed said that they
would recommend Box Hill Institute as a place
to study.
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Key areas:

Institute budget
Financial management/
Financial viability
Financial statutory
compliance and audits
• Audit compliance

Other non-financial
statutory compliance
• eg: Privacy, Whistleblowers,

Records management,
ESOS

Sound business
performance management
and business processes
• Commercial contracts and

trading arrangements
• e-Business

Company secretary:
Box Hill Enterprises -
Corporate compliance

The General Manager Corporate Services, Joanne James, is accountable for
the achievement of the following Institute objectives:
• to ensure that the Institute’s annual operating and capital expenditure

budgets and financial plans reflect the Institute’s strategic and management
plan objectives and that resources are allocated to enable achievement of
these objectives

• to ensure that revenue, expenditure and surplus targets are achieved,
liquidity ratios and investment balances are maintained at financially
prudent levels and that the Institute’s investment in assets is maximised

• to ensure compliance with all relevant financial management and other
financial statutory requirements for Box Hill Institute of TAFE and Box Hill
Enterprises Limited within an appropriate internal control and audit
framework and as required by the Victorian Auditor General and the
Council Audit Committee

• to ensure that the Institute’s commercial contracts development processes,
policies and procedures are in accordance with sound commercial
principles and that a robust framework is in place for the management and
monitoring of profitable trading arrangements

• to enable the Institute to capitalise on the efficiencies to be obtained from
E-Business infrastructure and processes

• to ensure that the Institute has an appropriate Risk Management
Framework to manage key risk areas and that there are processes in place
to ensure continuous improvement, monitoring and review of the Institute’s
Risk Management policies and procedures.

Key initiatives

2004 Financial r2004 Financial r2004 Financial r2004 Financial r2004 Financial resultsesultsesultsesultsesults
For the year ending 31December 2004, the Institute and its controlled entity,
Box Hill Enterprises Limited, recorded a consolidated operating result from
ordinary activities of $5.709 million.

The operating result before government contributions for specific projects,
depreciation and net movements in the long service leave provision totalled
$3.667 million. This result, whilst a reduction on the previous year, was in
excess of budget targets.

Major contributing factors to the reduction in surplus were:
• the impact of unfunded increases on the provisions for employee

entitlements
• the impact of the unfunded component of the salary adjustments arising

from implementation of the teachers’ Multi Employer Certified Agreement
and the Enterprise Bargaining Agreements for administrative, maintenance
and cleaning staff

Joanne James
General Manager - Corporate Services
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• the Institute’s aging property, plant and equipment stock requiring increasing expenditure on
building repairs and maintenance costs over and above government contributions.

Summary of significant changes in financial position during the yearSummary of significant changes in financial position during the yearSummary of significant changes in financial position during the yearSummary of significant changes in financial position during the yearSummary of significant changes in financial position during the year
At 31 December 2004, current assets of $21.165 million represented a decrease of 19.2% on total
current assets recorded at 31 December 2003. The decrease was attributable to the Institute’s
requirement to partially fund from its own reserves a component of the Institute’s new Elgar 8
building on Elgar road. This investment was included in the Institute’s budget for the building
works and has been achieved whilst still maintaining financially prudent working capital levels.

Current liabilities for 2004 have increased as a result of year-end commitments for the completion
of the Elgar 8 development together with an increase in the service values underpinning the
provision for annual leave. The latter was a result of salary adjustments arising during the year from
implementation of the teachers’ 2004 Multi Employer Certified Agreement together with various
enterprise bargaining agreements. All material liabilities outstanding at year-end have been
identified and incorporated in the financial statements.

The net effect of these changes was a reduction in the consolidated entity’s working capital from
2.56:1 to a ratio of 1.77:1 as at 31st December 2004.

Given the Institute’s heavy reliance on commercial surpluses to fund our strategic initiatives,
support its fixed overheads and fund the annual asset replacement program, together with the
Institute’s required contribution to partially fund the Elgar East development during 2004, this level
of working capital is considered prudent in order for the Institute to adequately manage its financial
management risks.

During the year, the value of non current assets represented by Property Plant and Equipment
increased by 22.2% due to a revaluation of land and buildings undertaken at 31 December 2004,
resulting in a corresponding increase as reflected in the Institute’s Asset Revaluation Reserve.

Non-current liabilities, representing annual leave and long service leave entitlements, increased by
3.3% due to an increase in the underlying service values upon which the liability is based.

Five year consolidated financial summaryFive year consolidated financial summaryFive year consolidated financial summaryFive year consolidated financial summaryFive year consolidated financial summary

Non – Academic Fees and Charges
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For the year ended 31 December 2004, the Institute:
• collected amounts totalling $576,985 in compulsory non-academic fees, subscriptions and

charges from students and prospective students
• spent those fees, subscriptions and charges collected on counselling, student support and

learning resources
• did not make any payments of the fees, subscriptions and charges to student organisations.....

ConsultanciesConsultanciesConsultanciesConsultanciesConsultancies
Details of consultancies engaged during 2004 are as follows:

InterInterInterInterInternational Financial Reporting Standarnational Financial Reporting Standarnational Financial Reporting Standarnational Financial Reporting Standarnational Financial Reporting Standardsdsdsdsds
(IFRS)(IFRS)(IFRS)(IFRS)(IFRS)
For reporting periods beginning on or after the
1 January 2005, all Australian reporting entities
are required to adopt the financial reporting
requirements of the Australian equivalents to
International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS). The Institute made significant progress
in implementing the new requirements during
2004. Major milestones achieved during the
year were:
• the establishment of a steering committee

to oversight the IFRS transition and
implementation

• IFRS training undertaken by all steering
committee members

• the establishment of a reporting mechanism
to the Institute’s Audit Committee to raise
awareness and monitor IFRS transition and
implementation

• the completion of a detailed impact analysis
report for the Institute and its controlled
company, Box Hill Enterprises Limited

• the identification and quantification of the
required opening balance adjustments to
the Institute’s and Company’s 1 January
2004 opening balances to give effect to the
transition requirements

• the identification of finance system
requirements to ensure that the Institute is
well placed to adopt the new requirements
for the 2005-reporting year.

These engagements relate to various consultants primarily engaged for the provision of
architectural, quantity surveyor and design services for the Institute’s Elgar East construction
project and various minor capital works projects undertaken during 2004, as well as fulfilling the
Institute’s obligations under its Performance and Funding Agreement to manage the statewide
Management Information Systems (MIS) Project.
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Statements of Pecuniary InterStatements of Pecuniary InterStatements of Pecuniary InterStatements of Pecuniary InterStatements of Pecuniary Interestestestestest
Box Hill Institute has implemented procedures
that require relevant officers to complete
Statements of Pecuniary Interest.  All such
statements have been duly completed.

No senior officers held shares as nominee or
held beneficially in a statutory authority or
subsidiary.

Fraud and Corruption Management PlanFraud and Corruption Management PlanFraud and Corruption Management PlanFraud and Corruption Management PlanFraud and Corruption Management Plan
During 2004, the Institute developed a
comprehensive Fraud and Corruption
Management Plan for implementation at the
Institute.  This plan was audited by the
Institute’s internal auditors and approved by
Institute Council.

The Institute’s Fraud and Corruption
Management Plan, formulated in accordance
with Australian Standard AS 8001-2003 on
Fraud and Corruption Control, encapsulates
the Institute’s fraud and corruption
management framework and includes common
activities that the Institute could be exposed to
together with appropriate management
strategies to mitigate these exposures.

A key activity for 2005 is to implement the
communication requirements of the plan to
raise all stakeholders’ awareness in relation to
the Institute’s attitude to fraud and corruption
and the mechanisms in place to prevent,
detect, investigate and report such activities,
should they occur.

Risk ManagementRisk ManagementRisk ManagementRisk ManagementRisk Management
As part of its annual Risk Management
program, the Institute revised its five year Risk
Management Plan, undertook a revision of all
risks identified in the Institute’s Corporate Risk
register and ensured that risk treatment plans
were developed and in place for all risks
identified as high risk.

The Institute’s Risk Management Steering
Committee has the responsibility of ensuring
that all key risk activities as approved by
Council and the Chief Executive Officer are
implemented, reviewed and monitored on a
timely basis and in accordance with the
Institute’s Risk Management Policy and Plan.

The Institute achieved an improved result in
relation to the Victorian Management Insurance
Authority’s risk management performance
assessment tool (RIMPAT) with a rating for
2004 of 76.28 compared to 64.56 for 2003 and
a 2004 state average of 69.  The Institute
utilises this tool to assist with its assessment of
performance in relation to risk management
and to ensure that best practice guidelines are
considered, and implemented as appropriate,
in relation to its risk management practices.

National Competition PolicyNational Competition PolicyNational Competition PolicyNational Competition PolicyNational Competition Policy
The Institute has in place policies and
procedures to ensure compliance with the
National Competition Policy which take into
account Victorian Government’s “Competitive
Neutrality: A Statement of Victorian Policy”
requirements.

Other Relevant InformationOther Relevant InformationOther Relevant InformationOther Relevant InformationOther Relevant Information
Consistent with the requirements of the
Financial Management Act 1994, Box Hill
Institute has prepared material on the following
items, details of which are available on request
and in accordance with the Institute’s Freedom
of Information Policies:
• changes in prices, fees, charges, rates and

levies
• declarations of pecuniary interests
• major external reviews
• major research and development activities
• overseas visits undertaken
• publications
• occupational health and safety assessments

and measures
• industrial relations issues
• major committees sponsored by Box Hill

Institute.

Enquiries should be addressed to:

The Freedom of Information Officer
Box Hill Institute
465 Elgar Road,
Box Hill 3128
Telephone: (03) 9286 9222
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The General Manager Campus Services, Dermot O’Sullivan, is accountable for
the achievement of the following Institute objectives:
• to ensure infrastructure is developed and managed to provide a positive

working and learning environment for staff, students and clients
• to ensure working conditions are safe and secure for all facility services

carrying out minor new works and maintenance.

Key initiatives included:
To ensure infrastructure is developed and managed to provide a
positive working and learning environment for staff, students and
clients...

Facilities master planningFacilities master planningFacilities master planningFacilities master planningFacilities master planning
The 2004 Commonwealth Capital Infrastructure Program allocated planning
funds for the conduct of a feasibility study on the redevelopment of the
Whitehorse Campus. This study identified a range of options that would enable
the redevelopment of the site into a facility appropriate for the delivery of a
diverse range of programs. Significant implications were the need to integrate
the campus with its immediate surroundings and to maintain the benefit of the
campus location to public transport users. The compilation of the study relied
on two key groups, customers and consultants. The assessment of technical
aspects was conducted by a consultancy team with specialist skills, with
particular attention being paid to risk assessment, regulatory briefing and
environmentally sustainable design options. This was accompanied by an
iterative process of accommodation briefing and the subsequent conduct of
focus groups. The consultant team then tested their interpretation of the
requirements through further briefing sessions and workshops. The result was
a study that considered all stakeholders’ views while maintaining a technical
discipline that will enable a ready transition to the concept design stage.

Capital worksCapital worksCapital worksCapital worksCapital works
The major capital project undertaken during 2004 was the Elgar Development
Project. The construction phase of this two-year project was completed in
December 2004, with the final project packages for the building and surrounds
being prepared for occupation in January 2005 and the commencement of
learning activities in February 2005. During November and December a series
of familiarisation activities were conducted for the proposed building
occupants, Facilities staff and neighbours.

Key areas:

Facilities master planning
• Estate management
• Space and accommodation

planning
• Infrastructure and services

development

Property operations and
facilities services
• Environment management
• Physical safety

Capital works

Security

e-Infrastructure

Dermot O’Sullivan
General Manager - Campus Services
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Key features of this facility include its
contribution to neighbourhood traffic flow and
road safety, with significant Institute resources
being directly allocated to linking the new
building across Elgar Road to the adjacent site
via a high-level enclosed pedestrian bridge,
together with a light-controlled pedestrian
crossing at ground level. An initiative designed
to improve both amenity and access to
information is the integration of Library
computer access with the onsite café. This and
the wireless capacity of the building will provide
flexibility to students. This suits the evolving
methods of teaching delivery which result from
the innovative distributed learning models being
developed by the Institute’s educational staff.

Compliance with the Building Act 1993Compliance with the Building Act 1993Compliance with the Building Act 1993Compliance with the Building Act 1993Compliance with the Building Act 1993
Box Hill Institute has implemented procedures,
which ensure that all building works requiring
approval have certified plans, with work in
progress inspections and occupancy permits
issued by independent building surveyors. The
Institute ensures that all plans are lodged with
the relevant local authority through accredited
building surveyors. A register of works is
maintained by Box Hill Institute.

To ensure working conditions are safe
and secure for all facility services
carrying out minor new works and
maintenance…

Occupational Health & SafetyOccupational Health & SafetyOccupational Health & SafetyOccupational Health & SafetyOccupational Health & Safety
A number of initiatives were put in place in
2004 through the safety improvement drive,
which has been an important and continuing
theme within the Institute in recent years.

The Occupational Health & Safety Committee
was expanded to include wider participation by
staff-elected representatives. This diversity has
resulted in a most productive year, with
sufficient staff available to enable an activities
subcommittee to be formed. This
subcommittee arranged a number of
educational sessions targeting specific areas
of risk.

The subcommittee also organised and
conducted the Institute Safety Week program
with great success. In its new form the
Committee was also able to report formally on
its progress against objectives and provide
high-grade advice to the CEO and Executive.

The continuing drive to improve safety systems
within the Institute has resulted in the
upgrading of the Occupational Health & Safety
Coordinator’s position to a manager level
appointment. The integration of safety
management into day-to-day operational
practice at all levels in the Institute is an
important platform in safety culture
improvement. The appointment of a safety
professional at this level is designed to assist
operational managers with these
responsibilities, and provide staff and students
with the best possible support.

EnvirEnvirEnvirEnvirEnvironmental performanceonmental performanceonmental performanceonmental performanceonmental performance
Box Hill Institute is committed to environmental
performance improvement and to meeting and
exceeding Government targets for
environmental performance. During 2004 the
Institute continued the implementation of
various environmental improvement strategies.

A review of Occupational Health & Safety and
environmental risks indicated that there were a
number of items that required immediate and
detailed attention. To address this, and in
addition to the funds routinely allocated for
safety works and programs through both the
Occupational Health & Safety and Facilities
Centre budgets, an additional capital
expenditure program was implemented. This
was based on items requested from operating
Centres, and priorities determined by the
Occupational Health & Safety Committee. The
program included:
• installation of specialist extraction systems
• improved ventilation
• upgraded lighting
• removal of trip hazards
• acquisition of additional personal protective

equipment
• machine guarding
• major reconfiguration of workshops and

office space
• chemical storage improvements
• emergency stop switches
• furniture replacement program
• security works.
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Delia McIver
General Manager - Organisation Development

Key areas:

HR policy and procedure
• Development and

implementation

EBA working parties
• Prime responsibility

Organisational capability
• Including Human Resource

management and
professional development

Human Resources
Information System OH&S
• Work practices and

behavioural aspects

The General Manager Organisation Development, Delia McIver, is accountable
for the achievement of the following Institute objectives:
• To to create a culture within Box Hill Institute that values learning and

places a high priority on providing learning opportunities for staff.
• to ensure human resource needs are identified and human resource plans

developed to support the Institute’s strategic, educational and business
directions

• to foster positive working relationships between the Institute, staff and
unions

• to ensure a comprehensive range of human resource services are available
to the management and staff of the Institute, consistent with Institute
policies and legislative requirements.

Delia commenced her position as General Manager in August. Angela Hutson
filled the position until August.

Key initiatives included:
To create a culture within Box Hill Institute that values learning…
• A full-time Organisation Learning Manager was appointed in February 2004.

• Office of Training and Tertiary Education (OTTE) staff development funds
were distributed to Centres based on the staff numbers in each Centre.
This enabled the Centre Managers to determine priorities for staff
development within their own Centres, utilising both OTTE and Institute
funding.

• Box Hill Institute is not directly subject to the directions from the
Commissioner for Public Employment under the Public Sector
Management and Employment Act 1998. However, the Institute is required
to comply with the public sector employment and conduct principles
contained in it. Box Hill Institute’s employment policies and processes are
based on the principle of merit, relevant award and statutory requirements,
and best-practice public sector approaches.

The Institute’s Code of Conduct guides all staff about expected behaviour
and professional conduct and is based on the Institute values, the Victorian
Public Sector Model and other best-practice examples. Box Hill Institute is
committed to equal opportunity and fair processes in all human resource
management procedures.

• The Box Hill Institute Code of Conduct was developed and promoted
throughout the Institute during 2004 and is an integral part of the induction
program for new staff. Four workplace behaviour workshops specifically
designed for Institute staff were conducted for 134 staff. The training
covered all forms of workplace harassment including bullying behaviour and
the relevant legislation.
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• A Community of Practice for all Program
Coordinators and Frontline Managers was
established, currently facilitated by the
Organisation Learning Manager. Over 40
staff have attended and issues covered
included AQTF compliance, Recognition of
Prior Learning and an outline of the Program
Profile for 2005.

• Two hundred staff attended the annual
Teaching and Learning Symposium entitled
‘Changing the Face of TAFE’. This was
organised through the Office of the General
Manager Teaching and Learning.

• An introductory course in online learning
techniques for 38 staff was conducted
during Semester 1, followed by a part-time
Internship during Semester 2 developing
online learning materials. This program has
been conducted by the Centre for
Educational Product Services and funded
by Organisation Development. This is the
third year that this program has been
conducted and a Community of Practice for
previous participants has been established
to update the knowledge and skills of those
already trained.

• Institute-funded workshops for managers in
relation to WorkCover were conducted in
conjunction with the Institute’s WorkCover
agent and provided up-to-date information
in relation to incident reporting, entitlements,
return to work plans, and roles and
responsibilities under the Accident
Compensation Act.

• The Institute’s WorkCover premium rate for
2004 was almost 5% down on the previous
year’s rate, reflecting positive claims
management during the past 12 months.
The total number of days lost through
incidents resulting in WorkCover claims in
2004 was 231.4.

• Organisational Development managed the
Staff Achievement Recognition Program.
Winners are listed in the Centre reports.

To ensure human resource needs are
identified and human resource plans
developed…
• A pilot workforce planning project was

conducted to trial a methodology for roll out
across the Institute. The pilot project
identified key statistical and other data to
assist in analysis of the current workforce
profile, identified key future trends and
business requirements and developed
strategies that could be used to support
future workforce needs.

• Individual work plans were introduced for
PACCT staff to clarify work objectives and
identify development needs and strategies
to address these needs. Specific training to
implement the work plan strategy was
conducted for 222 staff.

• Significant consultation occurred with
Centre Managers throughout the Institute in
relation to specific human resource needs
and appropriate strategies were developed
to address these needs.

• Organisational reviews were conducted for
the Centres of Hospitality and Tourism
Studies; Media, Design and Arts; and
Educational Product Services.

The overall intent of the reviews was to
enhance the operational effectiveness of
each of these Centres. The implementation
of the findings of the reviews began in 2004
and will continue in 2005.

• Council approved an organisational
restructure of the Management team, put in
place on 1 November for full implementation
from 1 January 2005. There were a number
of internal and external drivers that were the
impetus behind the organisational
restructure. The restructure will:
- bring a strong focus on leadership and

management in teaching operations
- strengthen the focus on academic

leadership and management including
the implementation of degrees

- encourage a focus on building
commercial business

- strengthen responsibilities,
accountabilities and reporting lines
including ensuring that Centre Managers
report to their designated senior
manager on all operational matters.

• The following General Manager and Centre
Manager appointments were made:
- General Manager – Organisation

Development (Delia McIver)
- General Manager – Teaching and

Directorate (Kerri Ferguson)
- General Manager – Teaching and

Innovation (Robert McAllister)
- Executive Director – International and

Enterprises (Noel Lyons)
- Centre Manager – International Student

Office (Robyn Blake)
- Centre Manager – Electrical and

Refrigeration Trades (Robert Wain)
- Centre Manager – Student Services

(Julie Hotton)
- Manager – Workplace Relations (Chris

Heazlewood).
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To foster positive working relationships
between the Institute, staff and
unions…
The Institute has implemented the Multi
Employer Certified Agreement (MECA) for
teaching staff. The MECA was negotiated for
all TAFE Institutes and provides a consistent
framework of employment and includes
commitments to workplace consultation.

Enterprise agreements for PACCT employees,
maintenance employees and cleaners have
been negotiated and certified by the Australian
Industrial Relations Commission.

Regular meetings of consultative committees
for teaching and PACCT staff have continued
and provide a forum to discuss issues arising
from the enterprise agreements and
employment issues generally.

To ensure a comprehensive range of
human resource services is available…
• During 2004, recommendations in relation

to the structure and staffing resources of the
Organisation Development function have
been implemented. These included the
appointment of a Manager Workplace
Relations, and Organisation Learning
Manager. Recruitment is proceeding for a
Workplace Support and Services Manager.

• The induction program is being
progressively redesigned and enhanced. In
2004, some significant changes were made
to both the induction checklist and the
induction workshop. An additional online
induction component to address key
compliance areas such as OH&S, privacy,
and EEO is also being developed.

• A review of the online payslip resulted in a
significantly redesigned payslip which will be
launched in 2005. The payslip will provide
more information to staff in a format that is
easier to read and understand.

• The Human Resources (HR) intranet site
was reviewed and updated to make more
information more easily available to our
customers.
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• HR Services implemented an e-recruitment
system as part of a consortium of 12 other
TAFE Institutes. Applicants apply for jobs
online, and recruitment assessment results
are also recorded online. Some of the
benefits of this system include:
- all applications have the same format

making them easier to review
- applicants can be pre-screened for

reasons such as residency status
- HR recruitment processes are

streamlined through automatic measures
that eliminate manual recording of
applicant details, print out applications
and send acknowledgement letters.

• Human Resources Centre staff continued to
provide a range of human resource
management services including recruitment,
provision of payroll, WorkCover claims
management and advice and assistance to
employees.

• There were 127 positions advertised in
2004, including 55 PACCT staff, 52
teaching staff, seven Centre Manager
positions, four General Manager positions,
and nine other Institute positions.
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Key areas:

Leaders globally

Managing business growth
• Commercial activities and

business development
• Capturing and managing

international business
opportunities

• Capturing Information and
Communications
Technology (ICT)
opportunities

• Industry partnerships

The General Manager Commercial Development, John Italiano, is accountable
for the achievement of the following Institute objectives:
• to increase commercial activities that contribute to profitable business

outcomes for the Institute
• to develop appropriate strategies and plans to increase our markets

nationally and overseas for international inbound students and project work
• to position Box Hill Institute to capture training and business opportunities

in the field of Information & Communications Technology (ICT)
• to maintain current partnerships and develop further strategic partnerships

with industry.
Other responsibilities include meeting government performance targets in
curriculum maintenance management in the area of electrical and electronics,
engineering and automotive.

Key initiatives included:
To position Box Hill Institute to capture training and business
opportunities in the field of ICT…
The key Centres involved in the delivery of training in the ICT field have
maintained strong relationships with industry in 2004. The key relationships
continued to be with Cisco Systems, Cisco Learning Institute, Panduit, Oracle,
IBM, Microsoft and NHP.  The Centres continued to provide fee-for-service
training in the field to a large range of companies ranging from Small to
Medium Enterprises to corporations such as Telstra and several private
individuals.

This year the Institute embarked on the development of an ICT Strategic
Industry Training Plan that is designed to scope the current delivery of Box Hill
Institute’s programs against the needs of industry in the short to medium term.
The aim firstly is to ensure that the Institute is positioned to deliver timely
upgrade training on a fee-for-service basis to industry, and secondly to
continue to attract strong school exit numbers to feed the recurrent programs
supported by Government.

The issue of skills shortages is key to the outcome of the training plan and
while there is a perceived oversupply of people with ICT skills, the key areas
that the Institute has identified so far are experiencing undersupply.

The continued relationship with Cisco Systems has led to further contracts
being signed to deliver quality assurance services for the Cisco Academy
Program across the Asia-Pacific and to continue to deliver training to a range
of trainers throughout the region.

John Italiano
General Manager - Commercial Development
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In the final part of 2004 the work undertaken in
Malaysia in the ICT industry improved markedly.
The finalisation of delivery of a program to
Motorola Malaysia in telecommunications,
followed by the signing of a contract to deliver
e-Business online in Malaysia, indicates strong
preference for the technology programs that
the Institute can deliver.

To maintain current partnerships and
develop further strategic partnerships
with industry…
Strong relationships with companies such as
Cisco, NHP, DELL, Sidchrome, Aveda, GSS,
Bakers Delight, Unigraphics and many others
continue to contribute to our growth in
government and commercial fields. The Centre
for Automotive, Transport and Engineering
successfully negotiated a major initiative by
securing a computer integrated manufacturing
system incorporating a robotic arm. This will
support the push into new areas of training by
the Centre.

Box Hill Institute has long been delivering
training in the area of software and network
management. In 2004 a very strong
relationship evolved with Microsoft to the point
where the software giant provided funding to
the Institute to conduct a proof of concept
project with some new products. In July 2004
Institute representatives attended a two-day
briefing session at the Microsoft headquarters
in Seattle, USA.

CommerCommerCommerCommerCommercial developmentcial developmentcial developmentcial developmentcial development
Many challenges both in the local and the
international markets were presented in 2004.
The Institute continued to perform extremely
well in commercial activities in the Government
sector, again being awarded contracts to
operate the New Apprenticeship Centre and
also to deliver in the New Enterprise Incentive
Scheme. In addition there was continued
strong demand from the VET in Schools area.

InterInterInterInterInternational activitiesnational activitiesnational activitiesnational activitiesnational activities
International extended campus activities
continued to grow strongly, particularly in
China. Vietnam, Fiji and Malaysia also
continued to perform well.

Our international campus activity has focused
around the Centre for Computer Technology,
the Centre for Automotive, Transport and
Engineering, and the Centre for Business
Programs. Also, the Centre for Information
Sciences delivered library studies programs in
Vietnam. This coincides with our targeted areas
and confirms our strategy as appropriate to our
clients.

International inbound student activities
continued to be a major source of revenue and
students for the Institute. We have students
coming to the Institute from more than 50
countries.

Australian domestic activitiesAustralian domestic activitiesAustralian domestic activitiesAustralian domestic activitiesAustralian domestic activities
The target market for our domestic activities is
both the Government and non-Government
sectors. The relationships currently being
developed with both sectors have been quite
strong with improved activity out of some key
manufacturing and Government sectors.

A key component of our commercial activity in
the local marketplace is the strength of
Performing Arts with its full-fee-paying
programs. This is very well supported with
full-fee-paying programs in Hairdressing and
Beauty.

A key performer in the local market continued
to be the Centre for Computer Technology with
computer networking programs and high level
ICT delivery.
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Key areas:

Securing Government
commercial contracts
• Local Government

(emphasis on City of
Whitehorse and City of
Manningham)

• State Government
• Commonwealth

Government

Meeting Government
commercial contracts
• DEST - NAC and WELL,

Centrelink, OTTE, DEWR -
NEIS and Job
placements, Human
Services, ANTA, City of
Whitehorse

International business
development and
management
• Study tours
• Global franchises/

agencies - off shore

Regional China’s market

The General Manager Government Initiatives, Jill Baird, is accountable for the
achievement of the following Institute objectives:
• to increase government commercial income and profitability within the

Institute
• to ensure Centres have appropriate systems and processes in place,

including implementation plans to deliver government initiatives and
programs to ensure compliance with contract requirements

• to establish the International Extended Campus Unit to provide effective
and consistent management of extended campuses

• to institutionalise a formal process for effectively managing international
study tours to support business development and growth

• to undertake the role of Country Manager for China
• to target appropriate sectors in the Chinese market and ensure the Institute

has the capacity and capability to sustain current activities and further
growth revenues and profits.

Key initiatives included:
Government commercial…

Australian National TAustralian National TAustralian National TAustralian National TAustralian National Training Authority (ANTraining Authority (ANTraining Authority (ANTraining Authority (ANTraining Authority (ANTA)A)A)A)A)
In 2004 the Institute successfully completed projects including the Toolbox II
Rework contracts in chemicals and legal administration in partnership with
TAFE New South Wales. Another contract awarded to the Institute during
2004 was the Diploma of Government for the Department of Primary Industry.
Work is due to begin on this early in 2005. The Centre for Industrial Sciences
and Online Services Unit were responsible for these achievements.

AusIndustry (Small Business Enterprise CulturAusIndustry (Small Business Enterprise CulturAusIndustry (Small Business Enterprise CulturAusIndustry (Small Business Enterprise CulturAusIndustry (Small Business Enterprise Culture Pre Pre Pre Pre Program)ogram)ogram)ogram)ogram)
The Centre for Management and Small Business led a consortium to win the
Business Breakthrough program. This is part of the Small Business Enterprise
Culture Program (SBECP), an incentive of AusIndustry to foster business
growth via skills development and mentoring.

CentrCentrCentrCentrCentrelinkelinkelinkelinkelink
The Institute’s long-term association with Centrelink continues to thrive, with
the Centre for Business Programs maintaining delivery of excellent training
during 2004. Programs included external assessor services and workplace
training in government, business and community service courses. The Institute
is once again the preferred supplier of training to Centrelink in the West, South
East and North Central areas of Victoria.

Department of Education, Science & TDepartment of Education, Science & TDepartment of Education, Science & TDepartment of Education, Science & TDepartment of Education, Science & Training (DEST)raining (DEST)raining (DEST)raining (DEST)raining (DEST)
The Centre for Industry Education and Training continued delivery for the
Workplace English Language and Literacy (WELL) programs for the
Construction Material Processors Association and Qenos. The Centre also
won a DEST contract for VET Priority Places.

Jill Baird
General Manager - Government Initiatives
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The Centre for English Language Services
conducted Language, Literature and Numeracy
(LLNP) and Children’s Services programs.

The New Apprenticeship Centre (NAC)
continued to fulfil its demanding role, offering a
comprehensive service to prospective
employees and employers. Despite the general
downturn in numbers across Australia, the NAC
met targets.

Department of Employment & WDepartment of Employment & WDepartment of Employment & WDepartment of Employment & WDepartment of Employment & Workplaceorkplaceorkplaceorkplaceorkplace
Relations (DEWR)Relations (DEWR)Relations (DEWR)Relations (DEWR)Relations (DEWR)
For the sixth consecutive year Box Hill Institute
has successfully led the Greater Melbourne
Employment and Training Services (GRAMETS)
consortium. GRAMETS delivers the New
Enterprise Incentive Scheme (NEIS) through its
Business Enterprise Centres (BECs). The
Department of Employment & Workplace
Relations gave GRAMETS an excellent annual
appraisal in March. The consortium scored
100% for actual commencements compared
with contract requirements, and was ranked
top in both of its labour market regions. On the
basis of our performance, the consortium was
offered an additional 50 places to be achieved
by 30 June 2004, and again succeeded. In
November we were offered a further 24 places
to be spread over the remainder of the three-
year contract.

At the National Conference for the Business
Enterprise Centres (Australia) National NEIS
Association and Australia & New Zealand
Association of Business Incubators, Box Hill
Institute’s BEC was awarded the “Best National
BEC 2004”.

OfOfOfOfOffice of Tfice of Tfice of Tfice of Tfice of Training & Training & Training & Training & Training & Tertiary Education (OTTE)ertiary Education (OTTE)ertiary Education (OTTE)ertiary Education (OTTE)ertiary Education (OTTE)
The Institute was successful in attracting OTTE
funding for the “Skill Up” Program that
facilitates retraining for employees who are
facing redundancy. The Centre for Industry &
Education Training delivers this program. The
Management and Small Business Centre
successfully ran the Centre of Specialisation for
Small to Medium Enterprises (SME) which
commenced in 2003.

Other government programs delivered in 2004
included Frontline Management for the
Department of Human Services, Samarinda
Lodge and the Royal Botanic Gardens; Small
Business Growth Program for Whitehorse City
Council; Workplace Training for the Department
of Justice, Reframing the Future, Learnscope,
Victorian WorkCover Authority Worksafe, and
ANTA Flexible Leader Scholarship. New
incentives included customer service training
for security guards at Federation Square and
the Streetlife Program for the Shire of Nillumbik
funded by the Department of Innovation,
Industry & Regional Development.

International Extended Campus Unit...
The International Extended Campus Unit (IECU)
was established in 2003 to meet increasing
demands from new activities in our extended
campuses in China, Vietnam, Fiji, Sri Lanka,
Saudi Arabia and India. During 2004 the IECU
team issued a pilot of manuals and Standard
Operating Procedures for the Chinese
extended campus, and is currently producing
manuals for Vietnam and Fiji. The introduction
of online administrative systems was piloted
successfully.

International study tours…

Study toursStudy toursStudy toursStudy toursStudy tours
Guidelines and processes for study tours have
been developed as well as a communication
strategy and a register for study tours and
delegates. The number of study tours visiting
Box Hill Institute was maintained during 2004.
Groups comprised delegates and students
from China, Uzbekistan, Thailand and Vietnam.

Business developmentBusiness developmentBusiness developmentBusiness developmentBusiness development
A contract was signed with a significant
industry client to take over the selection and
administrative support of their traineeship
program. The Centre for Health & Community
Services is now working with clients in
Shepparton and other regional areas to offer
aged care programs. Several Labour Market
Programs targeted parents returning to work,
long term unemployed people and people with
disabilities.

Country Manager for China…
Business activity expanded significantly in
China during 2004. Several new extended
campus programs commenced including the
Advanced Diploma of Engineering, Diploma of
International Business and Certificate IV in
Transport Distribution. Contracts were signed
for the Advanced Diplomas of Electronics and
Multimedia and the Diploma of Fashion
(Textiles, Clothing & Footwear). Many new
teachers in both Australia and China have been
trained  to deliver these programs. Box Hill
Institute and Shanghai College of Electricity
and Machinery Technology (SCEMT)
commenced a second three-year contract for
in-country delivery and Australian certification
based on the Institute’s extended campus
model. Similar three-year alliances have been
established with Shanghai Pharmaceutical
School, Guangzhou College of Textile and
Garment, Jiangyin Polytechnic College and
Wuxi City College. Eighty six students
graduated in the Advanced Diploma of
Business (International Business) in the first
graduation ceremony at SCEMT in September.
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Key areas:

Commercial activities/
Business development
• Short courses management
• Capturing and managing

industry project work

Capturing and managing
inbound students

Primary responsibility as
Industry drivers/Specialist
Centre development
• Small Medium Enterprises

(SMEs)

Relationship management
• ICON relationship

The General Manager Industry Initiatives, Jim Irwin, is accountable for the
achievement of the following Institute objectives:
• to expand existing industry relationships and establish new relationships

across strategic industries
• to expand and strengthen existing international student opportunities
• to encourage and market the Institute for the improvement of international

education opportunities.

Key initiatives included:
To expand existing industry relationships and establish new
relationships across strategic industries…

Business developmentBusiness developmentBusiness developmentBusiness developmentBusiness development
During 2004, the Institute built on its base of solid long-term industry
relationships, moving into new areas of cooperation with various existing and
new partnerships, which included:
• Management development training conducted onsite in Dandenong and

Ballarat for Frontline Australasia, a major engineering company, with
positive outcomes leading to an extension of that work into 2005

• Oracle Database Professional Certification training in conjunction with
Terasys Australia, was conducted at the Institute’s Nelson Campus
throughout the year.

Business managementBusiness managementBusiness managementBusiness managementBusiness management
The Short Course Service Centre managed the enrolment of more than 10,500
short course clients in 2004. The most popular short course areas included
automotive, electronics, electrical and business. Other areas continuing to
grow included animal studies, hospitality, languages, arts and design.

The popularity of Fountains Restaurant continued as many thousands of
patrons enjoyed business breakfast functions, a la carte lunches and dinners,
and a range of business and social functions.

A particular highlight was a fundraising dinner with all four Australian Olympic
basketball teams – the Boomers, Opals, Gliders and Rollers – which featured
the food of Geoff Lindsay’s Pearl Restaurant at Fountains in July.

Jim Irwin
General Manager - Industry Initiatives
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Relationship managementRelationship managementRelationship managementRelationship managementRelationship management
The Bakers Delight Centre of Excellence at the
Institute’s Elgar campus provided bakery
training to more than 100 apprentices, hosted
training of franchise, and was the venue for
Australasian baking competitions.

The Institute’s longstanding relationship with
Life Saving Victoria (LSV) has developed into an
approved proposal for collaboration.

The Institute’s long-term relationship with
Crown Ltd continued with a new contract to
promote food and beverage service training
and assessment to more than 150 employees
onsite at the casino.

To expand and strengthen existing
international student opportunities…

InterInterInterInterInternational inbound student opportunitiesnational inbound student opportunitiesnational inbound student opportunitiesnational inbound student opportunitiesnational inbound student opportunities
The Institute’s international reputation for
quality education combined with the
International Student Office’s (ISO) marketing
efforts to attract more than 1,081 enrolments
from more than 50 countries.

To encourage and market the Institute
for the improvement of international
education opportunities…

InterInterInterInterInternational marketingnational marketingnational marketingnational marketingnational marketing
During 2004 new project work began in
Vietnam, Malaysia, Fiji, China and Chile.

The Institute entered arrangements with new
clients in banking, automotive, healthcare and
English language training in Indonesia during
2004, with renewed activity in that country
indicating a bright future ahead.
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s Centre for Automotive, Transport &
Engineering
The Centre for Automotive, Transport and
Engineering offers a diverse range of programs
across the industry areas of automotive
service, transport and distribution, as well as a
wide range of engineering disciplines.

In 2004, the Centre saw the initiatives that
began in 2002 come to fruition. The youth
programs at Certificate II level have become
very popular. Most of our apprentices have
previously come through these programs in
engineering or automotive.

The Centre’s international student programs
have grown from approximately 15 students in
2002 to 60 students in 2004. These students
are spread across mechanical and civil
engineering, and automotive programs.

The Centre’s international project has been
expanded from the original Shanghai College of
Electrical and Machinery Technology program
in China to now include Shanghai
Pharmaceutical College. The Centre has been
involved with training at OK Tedi mine for
approximately ten years and our role is
changing as the mine moves towards closure.

Curriculum development
The Centre continued the implementation and
consolidation of training packages. During
2004 the Centre developed resources for
delivery in automotive air-conditioning. The
Certificate II resource package has been well-
received by industry.

Professional development
Staff were involved in professional development
through our engineering senate, in Learnscope
projects, internships, Masters programs and
industry-focused specialist training.

Projects and partnerships
This year has seen the commencement of a
Certificate II in Warehousing at Shanghai
Pharmaceutical College in China. Staff visit the
College on a regular basis for quality checks
and teaching.

Special events and initiatives
The Centre has for a number of years
supported the Victorian Variety Bash through
vehicle presentation or maintenance support.
This year we entered a vehicle of our own. Our
automotive students prepared the vehicle and
the entry fee was raised through a charity golf
day.

The proceeds were returned to our charity, Box
Hill Hospital Children’s Ward, through the
Variety Club of Victoria.

Lodi Francesconi from the Child and Family
Care Network, fourth-year apprentice Shaun
Rosenthal and the Centre Manager participated
in the event and enjoyed the sense of
community spirit around the large group of
people involved in the ‘Bash’.

Awards

Box Hill Institute’Box Hill Institute’Box Hill Institute’Box Hill Institute’Box Hill Institute’s Stafs Stafs Stafs Stafs Staff Achievementf Achievementf Achievementf Achievementf Achievement
Recognition PrRecognition PrRecognition PrRecognition PrRecognition Program - ogram - ogram - ogram - ogram - Employee of theEmployee of theEmployee of theEmployee of theEmployee of the
YYYYYear Aear Aear Aear Aear Awarwarwarwarwarddddd
Craig Brittle

A number of students across all of our
programs were put forward for special
achievement awards. This year we had our first
special awards recognition evening at
Fountains Restaurant, which was a huge
success with students, family, employers,
sponsors and staff enjoying a night of student
successes.
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Centre for Biotechnology & Animal Sciences

The Centre for Biotechnology & Animal
Sciences delivers a range of training programs
from Certificate II to Advanced Diploma level
across the areas of biotechnology, laboratory
operations, animal science, zoo keeping, horse
studies and veterinary nursing. Courses are
also conducted on a commercial basis in
nursing and management of wildlife, dog
grooming and introduction to veterinary
nursing.

In 2004, the Centre conducted a new short
course in molecular biology methods (PCR) for
the biotechnology industry with pleasing
results.

The Centre enjoyed a successful year in 2004
with new initiatives in the area of commercial
business development and maintained a key
focus in the area of biotechnology. The
successful distance delivery of veterinary
nursing training in Hong Kong continued. The
Animal Technology team continued their
success with the Growth and Pathways (GAP)
program, which gave students the opportunity
to learn handling and basic animal husbandry
skills.

Curriculum development
The Bachelor of Biotechnology and Innovation
was accredited and an extensive marketing
campaign was conducted with delivery
scheduled for 2005. Development of the
degree was a major focus for the Centre
throughout 2004.

The Centre was involved in the development of
the Animal Care and Management Training
Package, which incorporates animal
technology, animal care, veterinary nursing,
companion animal husbandry, zoo keeping,
dog grooming and animal control and
regulation.

With the introduction of the new training
package, staff spent many hours developing
new learning materials and resources to meet
the needs of existing clients, other Registered
Training Organisations and schools across
Australia.

The Centre delivered the Certificate II in Equine
Studies through the VET in Schools program.
Students at school undertake this training
package over two years as part of their VCE
and gain a scored assessment on completion
that contributes to their ENTER.

Professional development
Staff in the Veterinary Nursing team attended
the annual Australian Veterinary Nurses’
Conference and two members of the Applied
Science team attended the TAFE Science
Network Conference in Perth. Other
professional development activities included
attendance at the Australian and New Zealand
Society for Laboratory Animal Science
Conference (ANZSLAS) in Queensland and the
Australian and New Zealand Council for Care of
Animals in Research and Training (ANZCCART)
in Sydney.

One staff member from the Animal Technology
team participated in the internship program at
Educational Product Services (EPS) where she
developed an online resource, ‘Care and
Handling of Laboratory Rats’.

Centre staff undertook units in the Certificate IV
in Workplace Assessment and Training and the
Diploma of Vocational Education and Training.
One staff member graduated from the
Graduate Certificate in Vocational Education
and Training and two staff successfully
completed subjects in the Monash Masters
programs.

Projects and partnerships
The Institute was appointed the Specialist
Centre for Biotechnology by the State
Government. The Specialist Centre, known as
BioSkills, is a network of TAFE Institutes with
Box Hill Institute as the lead agent. It was
formed to foster a coordinated and
collaborative approach to the development of
biotechnology-related programs and services
within the Victorian TAFE system.
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The Institute was successful in obtaining State
Government funding for capital equipment to
support our delivery capability in the expanding
global biotechnology industry.

The partnership established with the
Department of Primary Industries at the
Institute for Horticultural Development at
Knoxfield has proved highly successful with the
second-year laboratory technology students
participating in a two-days-per-week practical
placement project.

A staff member was invited to present an
outline of the new Animal Care and
Management Training Package at the
Australasian Society of Zoo Keeping
Conference held in New South Wales. She also
participated at the Zoo’s Annual Career
Conference presenting to 320 students over
four days.

Special events and initiatives
The Centre participated in the Australian
delegation to BIO2004 in San Francisco and
had a booth at the Ausbiotech 2004 National
Conference in Brisbane. These proved highly
successful initiatives with excellent industry
networking. BioSkills was also represented at
the BioFestival 04 in Melbourne.

Awards

LLLLLyn Lupton Memorial Ayn Lupton Memorial Ayn Lupton Memorial Ayn Lupton Memorial Ayn Lupton Memorial Awarwarwarwarwarddddd
Sponsor: The Tolley Family
Certificate III in Outdoor Recreation (Equestrian)
Kerri Nosworthy

Certificate II in Equine Studies (VETIS)Certificate II in Equine Studies (VETIS)Certificate II in Equine Studies (VETIS)Certificate II in Equine Studies (VETIS)Certificate II in Equine Studies (VETIS)
Christopher Blanks
Jessica Eberbach
Jessica Sonneveld

Centre for Biotechnology & Animal Sciences
cont’d

Student AStudent AStudent AStudent AStudent Awarwarwarwarwards for Excellence andds for Excellence andds for Excellence andds for Excellence andds for Excellence and
Outstanding AchievementOutstanding AchievementOutstanding AchievementOutstanding AchievementOutstanding Achievement

Veterinary Nursing - Sponsor: Novartis
Sian Kelly

Veterinary Surgical Nursing - Sponsor: Pfizer
Amanda Grivell

Dental Nursing - Sponsor: Iams
Donna Peppina Phillips

Merial AMerial AMerial AMerial AMerial Awarwarwarwarward for Critical Card for Critical Card for Critical Card for Critical Card for Critical Care and Emergencye and Emergencye and Emergencye and Emergencye and Emergency
NursingNursingNursingNursingNursing
Cheryl Laks

Three teaching staff were nominated for the
Institute Teacher of the Year Award;
Sue McInnes, Will Synnott and Sandra
Simpson.
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Centre for Building & Furniture Studies

The Centre for Building & Furniture Studies is a
large and diverse Centre delivering training in
the following areas:
• diploma level training in building design and

technology; building; and interior design
and decoration

• pre-apprenticeship and apprenticeship
training in building construction, furnishings,
cabinet making, general construction, off-
site construction (shopfitting, joinery,
stairbuilding), plumbing and mechanical
services

• programs designed for secondary school
students such as Growth and Pathways
(GAP), Victorian Certificate of Applied
Learning (VCAL) and VET in Schools
(VETIS).

The Centre also delivers a number of industry-
related short courses and general interest
courses on a fee-for-service basis.

Curriculum development
Staff spent significant time preparing learning
resources for the Certificates II and III in
Furniture Making, Certificate III in Furniture
Making (Cabinet Making) and Certificates II and
III in Picture Framing.

The Plumbing and Mechanical Services Unit
prepared learning resources and test banks
ready for the introduction of the national
training packages.

Professional development
Plumbing and Mechanical Services staff
participated in a statewide in-service at Albury,
and four staff participated in the Australia New
Zealand Reciprocity Association Biennial
Conference in Tasmania. Furnishings staff
participated in a national training conference in
Sydney where issues about the National
Training Package were discussed.

Building Construction staff participated in the
statewide in-service and one staff member
went to the National TAFE Building
Construction conference in Brisbane.

As part of the progression towards the online
availability of course materials, staff from
across the Centre continued to prepare
materials for the Institute’s Distributed Learning
Support System (DLSS).

Projects and partnerships
The Carpentry Unit continued to provide onsite
assessment to parts of the industry as well as
off-the-job training and onsite assessment for
students employed by the HIA Group Scheme.
The Centre has been working in conjunction
with Mooroolbark Secondary College, Box Hill
Senior Secondary College and Eltham High
School to conduct training as part of the VETIS
program.

Special events and initiatives
The student exchange arrangement between
Box Hill Institute and Horsens Polytechnic,
Denmark, continued to allow Institute students
the unique opportunity to travel to Denmark to
study for a semester. In return, Box Hill Institute
hosted three Horsens students. The demand
for student travel from Horsens to the Institute
has increased and the continuation of the
exchange program is anticipated.

Awards

National Association of WNational Association of WNational Association of WNational Association of WNational Association of Women inomen inomen inomen inomen in
Construction’Construction’Construction’Construction’Construction’s Outstanding Achievement bys Outstanding Achievement bys Outstanding Achievement bys Outstanding Achievement bys Outstanding Achievement by
an Appran Appran Appran Appran Apprentice Tentice Tentice Tentice Tentice Tradespersonradespersonradespersonradespersonradesperson
Jayme-Lee Cooney

Housing Industry Association (HIA)Housing Industry Association (HIA)Housing Industry Association (HIA)Housing Industry Association (HIA)Housing Industry Association (HIA)
Best Overall ApprBest Overall ApprBest Overall ApprBest Overall ApprBest Overall Apprentice Aentice Aentice Aentice Aentice Awarwarwarwarwarddddd
Sam Booth

HIA Occupational Health and Safety AHIA Occupational Health and Safety AHIA Occupational Health and Safety AHIA Occupational Health and Safety AHIA Occupational Health and Safety Awarwarwarwarwarddddd
Duff Swanson

HIA Best Fourth YHIA Best Fourth YHIA Best Fourth YHIA Best Fourth YHIA Best Fourth Year Apprear Apprear Apprear Apprear Apprentice Aentice Aentice Aentice Aentice Awarwarwarwarwarddddd
Jay Abbott

HIA Best Second YHIA Best Second YHIA Best Second YHIA Best Second YHIA Best Second Year Apprear Apprear Apprear Apprear Apprentice Aentice Aentice Aentice Aentice Awarwarwarwarward andd andd andd andd and
Outstanding Achievement AOutstanding Achievement AOutstanding Achievement AOutstanding Achievement AOutstanding Achievement Awarwarwarwarward ford ford ford ford for
Community ServiceCommunity ServiceCommunity ServiceCommunity ServiceCommunity Service
Alistair Morris

HIA Best First YHIA Best First YHIA Best First YHIA Best First YHIA Best First Year Apprear Apprear Apprear Apprear Apprentice Aentice Aentice Aentice Aentice Awarwarwarwarwarddddd
Jason Allot

Master Plumbers’ AMaster Plumbers’ AMaster Plumbers’ AMaster Plumbers’ AMaster Plumbers’ Awarwarwarwarwardsdsdsdsds
YYYYYarra Varra Varra Varra Varra Valley Walley Walley Walley Walley Water Encouragement Aater Encouragement Aater Encouragement Aater Encouragement Aater Encouragement Awarwarwarwarwarddddd
Greg Meyerink
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Centre for Business Programs

The Centre for Business Programs offers a
range of programs that support business
industries. These programs include accounting,
administration, marketing, public relations,
human resources, sport and recreation
development, government, retail and
international business.

This year marked the final year of the Centre’s
tenure at the Whitehorse campus. In January
2005, the Centre moved to the Institute’s new
Elgar Building 8.

Curriculum development
The Centre delivered the first year of the Deakin
Bachelor of Commerce to international
students.

In addition, the Centre developed the Associate
Degree in Commerce, an initiative that will
enable the Centre and the Institute to maintain
its role as an innovator in the TAFE sector. The
Centre invested significant time and rigour in
creating this program and staff are justifiably
proud of the result.

The Centre was active in creating innovative
courses to meet industry requirements, with
courses developed and delivered for
international clients and domestic clients such
as Metcash and TelcoInABox.

Professional development
Staff continued their focus on professional
development in 2004. Four Centre members
continued higher degrees through the Institute’s
Master of Education program. Two Centre
members commenced higher degrees through
the Institute’s Master of Organisational
Development program. Several staff
participated in conferences with the goal of
retaining contemporary ideological and
management practices. Skill development
included human resources legal practices,
technology-based training, doing business in
Asia, teaching in a higher education setting and
business administration.

Projects and partnerships
Partnerships were continued and developed
with a number of Australian Government
agencies and private companies, and the vision
of ‘Global Educators’ was further developed
with our overseas partners.

The Centre’s partnership with Centrelink
continued with Business Programs delivering
the following qualifications: Certificate IV in
Business, Certificate IV in Government,
Diploma of Government and Certificate IV in
Community Services.

The Centre graduated its first group from the
Department of Primary Industries.

Overseas, the Centre delivered programs in Fiji
(New Zealand Pacific Training College), Vietnam
(Hanoi Open University) and China (Shanghai
College of Electricity and Machinery
Technology). These partners delivered
programs in accounting, marketing and
international business. In support of the
Institute’s commercial team and country
managers, further dialogue and negotiations
with overseas partners were held, and the
Centre can look forward to an ever-increasing
role in support of the Institute’s global
presence.

Members of the Centre moderated programs in
China, Vietnam and Fiji. While two Centre
members taught in Shanghai, we were
fortunate to have two members of our
Shanghai partner spend three months working
within the Centre.

In addition, agreements were put into place for
two new extended campuses in China and one
in Malaysia.

The Centre conducted a successful study tour
for managers of Hanoi Post and Telecom where
participants undertook comparative analysis of
the Vietnamese tax and finance system with
the Australian system. Staff also hosted the
group at a number of site visits and events.

During the year, two staff members delivered
marketing and finance modules to 13 middle
managers onsite at the Sheraton Fiji.

Special events and initiatives
The annual Business Programs Awards
Evening was held in May at the Box Hill Town
Hall. Graduates included students based at the
Box Hill campuses, people who completed
work-based traineeships and people who
completed programs with our commercial
partners.
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Awards

The Centre was again recognised for its
achievements with Carole Ross receiving
acknowledgement for her work in leading the
Centre’s Government Projects team.

The following students were presented with
awards at the Awards evening:

Accounting AAccounting AAccounting AAccounting AAccounting Awarwarwarwarward for Excellenced for Excellenced for Excellenced for Excellenced for Excellence
Sponsor: National Institute of Accountants
Kim Van Der Schoor

Haines Muir Hill Accounting ScholarshipHaines Muir Hill Accounting ScholarshipHaines Muir Hill Accounting ScholarshipHaines Muir Hill Accounting ScholarshipHaines Muir Hill Accounting Scholarship
Sponsor: Haines Muir Hill Accounting
Janto Hakim
Geoff Kloprogge

Human ResourHuman ResourHuman ResourHuman ResourHuman Resources Practice Aces Practice Aces Practice Aces Practice Aces Practice Awarwarwarwarward ford ford ford ford for
ExcellenceExcellenceExcellenceExcellenceExcellence
Sponsor: Frontier Software
Natalie Selemba

Marketing AMarketing AMarketing AMarketing AMarketing Awarwarwarwarward for Excellenced for Excellenced for Excellenced for Excellenced for Excellence
Sponsor: McGraw Hill
William Goldenberg

Public Relations APublic Relations APublic Relations APublic Relations APublic Relations Awarwarwarwarward for Excellenced for Excellenced for Excellenced for Excellenced for Excellence
Sponsor: Pearson Education
Alice Hannan

Sports and RecrSports and RecrSports and RecrSports and RecrSports and Recreation Aeation Aeation Aeation Aeation Awarwarwarwarward for Excellenced for Excellenced for Excellenced for Excellenced for Excellence
Sponsor: Box Hill Hawks
Roxanne Drakopoulos

AAAAAwarwarwarwarward for High Achievement in Diploma ofd for High Achievement in Diploma ofd for High Achievement in Diploma ofd for High Achievement in Diploma ofd for High Achievement in Diploma of
Business (Human ResourBusiness (Human ResourBusiness (Human ResourBusiness (Human ResourBusiness (Human Resources)ces)ces)ces)ces)
Sponsor: Software Publications
Patrick Abbott

AAAAAwarwarwarwarward for High Achievement in Diploma ofd for High Achievement in Diploma ofd for High Achievement in Diploma ofd for High Achievement in Diploma ofd for High Achievement in Diploma of
Sport & RecrSport & RecrSport & RecrSport & RecrSport & Recreationeationeationeationeation
Sponsor: Software Publications
Steven Baker
Jade Hottes
Rosemary Murphy

2003 Marketing Scholarship2003 Marketing Scholarship2003 Marketing Scholarship2003 Marketing Scholarship2003 Marketing Scholarship
Sponsor: the City of Whitehorse
Joshua Cullen

OfOfOfOfOffice Administration Afice Administration Afice Administration Afice Administration Afice Administration Awarwarwarwarward for Excellenced for Excellenced for Excellenced for Excellenced for Excellence
Sponsor: Software Publications
Liu Hong (Anna)

Public Relations APublic Relations APublic Relations APublic Relations APublic Relations Awarwarwarwarward for Excellenced for Excellenced for Excellenced for Excellenced for Excellence
Sponsor: Pearson Education
Marcelle Tully

Sports and RecrSports and RecrSports and RecrSports and RecrSports and Recreation Aeation Aeation Aeation Aeation Awarwarwarwarward for Excellenced for Excellenced for Excellenced for Excellenced for Excellence
Sponsor: Box Hill Hawks
Matthew Brebner
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Centre for Computer Technology

The Centre for Computer Technology offers a
wide range of recurrently funded,
apprenticeship funded and fee-for-service
Information and Communications Technology
(ICT) training that spans studies in three major
disciplines: computer systems, electronics and
telecommunications. Included in this training is
internationally recognised industry-accredited,
vendor and vendor-independent training eg
Cisco, Microsoft and CompTIA. Wherever
possible the training for industry accreditations
has been mapped into the Centre’s recurrently
funded computer systems programs.

Curriculum development

TTTTTraining packagesraining packagesraining packagesraining packagesraining packages
In 2004 considerable effort was devoted to the
ongoing development of curricula, skills
training, assessment methods and formal
recording of competency achievement in line
with the Australian Qualifications Training
Framework (AQTF) standards. This included an
upgrade to the training package.

The workplace assessment system of
Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL) for
upgrading past qualifications to the appropriate
current Advanced Diploma allowed industry
personnel the opportunity to align their on-the-
job training skills and be recognised and
accredited against an appropriate list of
dynamic national training competencies.

Cisco Local Academy TCisco Local Academy TCisco Local Academy TCisco Local Academy TCisco Local Academy Training Vraining Vraining Vraining Vraining Version 3.1ersion 3.1ersion 3.1ersion 3.1ersion 3.1
As a result of the need for training to be
consistent with the industry certification exam,
Cisco staff developed their curricula and
delivery into the required Cisco Version 3.1 for
2004. This included bridging training for
existing Cisco Version 3.0 trained local and
regional instructors and teachers.

Bachelor of Computer Systems (Networking)Bachelor of Computer Systems (Networking)Bachelor of Computer Systems (Networking)Bachelor of Computer Systems (Networking)Bachelor of Computer Systems (Networking)
After several years of preparation and
submissions, the Centre will deliver the
Bachelor of Computer Systems (Networking) in
2005. This course will provide our Advanced
Diploma of Computer Systems graduates with
a pathway into a three-year degree.

DLSS (Distributed LearDLSS (Distributed LearDLSS (Distributed LearDLSS (Distributed LearDLSS (Distributed Learning Support System)ning Support System)ning Support System)ning Support System)ning Support System)
To conform to AQTF standards 8 and 9, the
Centre’s staff were involved in writing and
uploading the following course material onto
the DLSS:
• subject information sheets
• weekly topics list
• assessment tools
• teaching material
• examination material.

The Centre’s processes and procedures were
uploaded onto the DLSS to demonstrate AQTF
compliance.

Professional development
To accommodate the new Bachelor of
Computer Systems (Networking), a select
number of staff have commenced a Masters
distance-education program with Charles Sturt
University.

An ongoing and extensive amount of formal
skills training has continued during 2004. This
staff training included:
• retraining and upgrading of Cisco local and

regional instructors’ skills base in
internetworking for the implementation of
Cisco CCNA Version 3.1

• the Cisco Academy program continuous
improvement and upgrades to the wireless
LANs (Local Area Networks), network
security, IT Essentials (PC hardware and
software), Unix and Java.

Projects and partnerships
The Centre enjoys very strong and ongoing
relationships with many industries,
organisations and the community, both locally
and internationally.



Global Educators 53

CCNA and CompTIA A+ training was
established for the provision of fee-for-service
theory and practical training to Canon service
technicians to enhance their on-the-job skills in
computer hardware and software areas plus
networking. The training included the sitting of
the internationally relevant external set exams.
This partnership has had exceptional results in
its first semester of operation this year.

Agilent personnel attended CCNA training with
an aim to complete their studies by May 2005.
At Bosch, training was specifically aimed at
practical hands-on surface mount soldering
and reworking activities for line personnel.

As a result of the implementation of Cisco
CCNA Version 3.0 into Version 3.1 and with the
expansion in scope of Academy programs,
instructors all over the world are required to
update their skills and knowledge. The Cisco
staff are involved in delivering this retraining
and upgrading for our Asia-Pacific (APAC)
partners. Specifically, this meant that in 2004
CCNP and CCNA instructor training was
delivered to university personnel in Taiwan,
Indonesia, Vietnam and the Fiji Institute of
Technology. It was also delivered to Australian
and New Zealand education establishments
using blended distance delivery.

The Centre devoted a specific space to house
and equip a simulated Tabcorp agency. This is
regarded as a major ongoing partnership and
project where Tabcorp technicians underwent
training in XP Professional, basic networking
and Tabcorp’s new communication equipment.

Currently the Centre is providing CompTIA
computer technician training to Telstra
personnel. As a result, Telstra has recruited
eight of the Centre’s students for their global
operations centre.

The Institute continues its collaboration with
Hanoi Open University, Vietnam, under the
extended campus agreement. This relationship
includes Hanoi students being enrolled in the
Diplomas of Computer Systems and
Telecommunications. This year, 42 Hanoi
students graduated with excellent employment
rates.

Special events and initiatives
The Centre conducted a number of special
events and initiatives in 2004.

These included:
• a graduation ceremony for students who

have completed their course of study
• an undergraduate encouragement award

presentation
• a Cisco graduation ceremony for students

who have completed their training
• selected staff being rotated into leadership

positions
• three students from the Centre attending a

three-week study tour in SAIT (Southern
Alberta Institute of TAFE) as part of the
Global Education Network (GEN) program

• the Centre hosting a student from SAIT for
three weeks in May

• increased importance of orientation
sessions each semester for new students

• increased importance of student/Institute
liaison coordinator for the first point of
contact for students requiring assistance
with their personal issues and studies

• dedicated staff providing RPL for
appropriate industry personnel against
national accredited competencies.

Awards

AndrAndrAndrAndrAndrew Jackson Memorial Scholarshipew Jackson Memorial Scholarshipew Jackson Memorial Scholarshipew Jackson Memorial Scholarshipew Jackson Memorial Scholarship
Robert Haines

Continuing Studies ScholarshipsContinuing Studies ScholarshipsContinuing Studies ScholarshipsContinuing Studies ScholarshipsContinuing Studies Scholarships
Angela Fletcher
Donald Heron
Scott Spendlove
Morgan Thomas
Trent Woodcock
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Centre for Electrical & Refrigeration Trades

Box Hill Institute’s Centre for Electrical &
Refrigeration Trades operates out of two
campuses, Nelson and Elgar, and diversifies
across four major areas of study: electrical,
refrigeration/air conditioning, security systems
and telecommunications cabling.

The Centre is the largest combined electrical
and refrigeration training centre in Victoria. In
both the electrical and refrigeration sections,
apprenticeship training is provided on the most
up-to-date equipment utilised in both
industries.

In 2004, the Centre provided training to
approximately 540 electrical, refrigeration and
building services apprentices. It remains the
only Registered Training Organisation in Victoria
to offer the Certificate III in Electrotechnology
Building Services (Security Systems)
apprenticeship.

The Certificate II in Telecommunications
Cabling, Telecommunications Open Cabling
Registrations courses and the Fundamentals of
Voice and Data courses have been offered to
meet the training needs of the
telecommunications and information
technology industry.

In 2004 the Centre provided off-the-job training
for trainees in business equipment servicing,
security systems and appliance servicing.

The Certificate I in Electrical – Pre-apprenticeship
maintained strong demand. The 130 selected
students attended the full-time course, with
more than 80 percent successfully gaining
employment in the electrotechnology industry.
The reputation of our pre-apprentice program
to provide quality work-ready staff has seen an
increased demand from employers, who
contact the Institute seeking to employ new
apprentices.

Curriculum development
Rail infrastructure employers Mainco (formerly
THIESS), Alstom and Works Infrastructure are
using Box Hill Institute as the preferred provider
for electrical/electronic signal rail training. As a
result, the Centre is actively involved in the
implementation of Certificates III and IV in
Electrotechnology (Signal Rail) with apprentices
completing modules toward both certificates.

Staff were involved in the development and
implementation of the new Panduit Networking
Infrastructure Essentials course (PNIE) a FVDC
Version 2 upgrade. This innovative training
series utilises the Cisco online training program
currently in use worldwide, in conjunction with
detailed classroom practical sessions based on
Panduit cabling products.

In January, a member of staff travelled to South
China University of Technology, Guangzhou
China to provide Cisco/Panduit Fundamentals
of Voice and Data Cabling instructor training.

Demand remains high for industry training in
the testing and tagging of portable electrical
appliances as required by AS/NZS3760. Staff
within the Centre conducted courses weekly at
the Institute and onsite throughout Melbourne.
Some of the organisations receiving onsite
training were: Qantas, The University of
Melbourne, Wesley College, The Independent
Schools Association and Bunnings Hardware.
The University of Melbourne has programmed a
series of courses to be conducted in 2005 as
part of their professional development program.

The Split Air Conditioning Systems course
developed by the Centre was conducted at
Box Hill Institute and Echuca.
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Professional development
Both permanent and casual staff have
undertaken training in the Certificate IV in
Assessment and Workplace Training and in the
Institute’s Distributed Learning Support System
(DLSS).

Centre staff continued to increase their
professional qualifications with graduates in the
following:
• Diploma of Vocational Education & Training
• Graduate Certificate in Vocational Education

& Training
• Certificate IV in Assessment and Training
• Diploma of Security Risk Assessment
• Bachelor of Education.

Teaching staff attended the third annual
Electrotechnology Forum held in Wangaratta.
The forum was attended by employers, training
providers and industrial control suppliers within
the Electrotechnology industry, who examined
emerging technologies and training
practicums.

Projects and partnerships
The training alliance with NHP Electrical
Engineering Products Pty Ltd and sponsorship
from the Middendorp Electric Company have
provided the Centre with access to leading
edge technologies and quality resource
materials.

Major sponsors for the Refrigeration section,
Carrier Air Conditioning, Toshiba Australia and
ECP (Australia) generously donated air
conditioning equipment. The Rotary Club of
Forest Hill along with NHP generously support
the Centre through the provision of
scholarships to assist apprentices who have
financial or other hardships.

Special events and initiatives
A pre-apprentice program was conducted in
partnership with Box Hill Senior Secondary
College. These Year 11 students where able to
complete both their Year 11 studies and the
pre-apprenticeship Electrical course in 2004.
The Honourable Bob Stensholt MP attended a
presentation ceremony at which each student
made a small presentation. These included
declarations stating that in 2003 they had
considered not continuing full-time studies.
Both students and parents found the program
had provided the students with an enjoyable
and practical learning environment.

Awards

Electrical ApprElectrical ApprElectrical ApprElectrical ApprElectrical Apprentice of the Yentice of the Yentice of the Yentice of the Yentice of the Yearearearearear

Third Year Apprentice of the Year
Mathew Ryan

Second Year Apprentice of the Year
Stephen Frith

First Year Apprentice of the Year
Stuart Bell

Refrigeration ApprRefrigeration ApprRefrigeration ApprRefrigeration ApprRefrigeration Apprentice of the Yentice of the Yentice of the Yentice of the Yentice of the Yearearearearear

Third Year Apprentice of the Year
Tony Van De Hoef

Second Year Apprentice of the Year
Mathew Griffith

First Year Apprentice of the Year
Daniel Stanley

Security System ApprSecurity System ApprSecurity System ApprSecurity System ApprSecurity System Apprentice of the Yentice of the Yentice of the Yentice of the Yentice of the Yearearearearear

Third Year Apprentice of the Year
Craig Mathews

Second Year Apprentice of the Year
Daniel Kennedy

First Year Apprentice of the Year
Graeme Downey

NHP ScholarshipNHP ScholarshipNHP ScholarshipNHP ScholarshipNHP Scholarship
Stuart Brunton

The Rotary Club of ForThe Rotary Club of ForThe Rotary Club of ForThe Rotary Club of ForThe Rotary Club of Forest Hill Scholarshipest Hill Scholarshipest Hill Scholarshipest Hill Scholarshipest Hill Scholarship
Tristian Cornish
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Centre for English Language Studies

The Centre for English Language Studies
delivers a range of English as a Second
Language (ESL) programs to students from
non-English speaking backgrounds.

Despite continuing world unrest and the
strengthening of the Australian dollar the
number of international students who attended
intensive English language classes was still
comparable to previous years. Some
international students came for a few weeks on
tourist or working holiday visas, but the majority
were long-term students who planned to
continue with mainstream studies at Box Hill
Institute upon reaching the required level of
English. While most of our international
students came from Japan, Korea, Thailand,
Hong Kong and China, we continued to see a
steady increase in students from Europe and
South America.

The Centre conducted two short-term study
tours, one from Thailand and one from China.
The students who came enthusiastically
enjoyed their English classes and the many
excursions around Melbourne. In addition, we
hosted a number of English teachers from
China who came to observe our classes as well
as take part in a number of ESL teacher
training sessions delivered by Centre staff.
Some of these teachers were from our
extended campuses in China.

In the migrant English program student
numbers were strong. We successfully
introduced the reaccredited ESL Framework
Curriculum. Furthermore, we were able to
deliver the DEST-funded Certificate III in ESL
(Employment) – Children’s Services. This
program gave students the opportunity to
study English with a specialist focus as well as
to study modules from the Certificate III in
Community Services delivered by the Centre
for Health and Community Services. Students
also undertook work placement in a childcare
centre and some were offered employment as
a direct outcome of this placement.

Professional development
One staff member completed a ten-week
internship with Online Services and Educational
Resource Development. She designed a series
of web exercises called ‘Interactive Australia’ to
be placed on the StudentWeb for use by our
migrant and international students.

Staff attended both internal and external
moderation sessions for the newly reaccredited
ESL Framework Curriculum.

The Program Coordinator spent two weeks in
one of our extended campuses in China
teaching ESL as well as introducing staff to our
curriculum and teaching methodology.
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Centre for Hairdressing, Beauty & Floristry

The Centre delivers a range of certificate level
courses for hairdressing, beauty and floristry,
including traineeships and apprenticeships.
Training programs are also offered for
secondary school students and for young
people at risk of not completing their
secondary education. In addition, the Centre
conducts several fee-for-service courses,
catering for both industry professionals and the
community.

The Centre has had another successful year
with enrolments, particularly with international
students, with 30 studying the Certificate III in
Hairdressing.

Curriculum development
Floristry students used the Distributed Learning
Support System for the first time to access
testbank questions and competency
checklists.

The Hairdressing team also updated the DVD
learning material to assist in the self-paced
delivery of the Design program in the
Certificate III in Hairdressing.

Professional development
All staff underwent professional development in
their various industries. The Beauty staff spent
time in Daylesford experiencing the day spa
industry at its best and aligning the curriculum
with the Beauty Training Package that now
offers spa competencies.

A number of the Centre’s staff graduated from
the Diploma of Vocational Education and
Training. Two staff members completed an
internship with Educational Product Services
developing more online resources for the
Centre.

Projects and partnerships
The Centre developed a partnership with
L’Oreal, Thalgo and HydroCo, which enabled
the Centre to offer students additional
exposure to these products and opportunities.

The Centre also continued to grow the floristry
sponsorship program in 2004, now having
eleven sponsors supporting the Centre.

Special events and initiatives
The Centre participated in the Hairdressing and
Beauty Industry Association (HBIA)
competitions and awards night.

It also held a parade at the HBIA annual charity
ball for Kids Help Line and raised almost
$20,000 for the charity.

A significant increase in student participation on
Open Day 2004 saw the Centre have a very
successful day, with hairdressing and floristry
competitions showcasing talent to industry and
the general public.

The Floristry teaching team participated in the
Melbourne International Flower and Garden
Show, involving students in the construction
and maintenance of an award-winning stand.
The Certificate IV in Floristry students
completed their window display, which
presented their talents and those of their
teachers to over 500,000 visitors to the show.

Floristry teachers and students coordinated
numerous functions for the Institute in 2004,
exposing students to corporate work they may
not have the opportunity to experience in small
floristry businesses.

In October 2004, the Centre opened its state-
of-the art day spa facility incorporating a Vichy
shower and hydrotherapy capsule tub
incorporating aroma steam, scotch hose,
colour therapy and oxygen treatments.

Box Hill Institute now offers day spa training
competencies from the National Beauty
Training Package in its Diploma of Beauty
Therapy and as a short course for beauty
therapists.

Awards

Florist of Distinction CompetitionFlorist of Distinction CompetitionFlorist of Distinction CompetitionFlorist of Distinction CompetitionFlorist of Distinction Competition
Mark Batstra (winner)
(represented Victoria and Tasmania at the
National competition)

Florist of the FuturFlorist of the FuturFlorist of the FuturFlorist of the FuturFlorist of the Future Competitione Competitione Competitione Competitione Competition
Lisa Cassidy (winner in Victoria, third National)

Floristry WFloristry WFloristry WFloristry WFloristry WorldSkills CompetitionorldSkills CompetitionorldSkills CompetitionorldSkills CompetitionorldSkills Competition
Jacinta Harding (winner in Victoria, third
National)

HairHairHairHairHairdrdrdrdrdressing Wessing Wessing Wessing Wessing WorldSkills CompetitionorldSkills CompetitionorldSkills CompetitionorldSkills CompetitionorldSkills Competition
Aurelie Litteri
(represented Victoria in the National
competition)
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Centre for Health & Community Services

The Centre for Health & Community Services
(HACS) offers job readiness skills in the fields of
nursing, aged care, youth work, disability work,
patient services and children’s services. Also
offered is a program for young people with a
history of learning difficulties, the Certificate I in
Work Education. Courses include traineeships
and training programs customised for industry
clients and delivered onsite.

The Centre enrolled the first group to undertake
the Certificate IV in Health (Nursing) in 2004.
This group completed part of their training in
the Centre’s practice hospital ward and will
undertake acute hospital placement at
hospitals in the Eastern Region.

The Centre also introduced the Marriage
Celebrant Training course. This was run in
consultation with the Federal Attorney-
General’s Department. On completion, all
participants are able to conduct civil
ceremonies and are eligible to apply to the
Attorney-General to become a marriage
celebrant.

Curriculum development
During 2004, the Centre developed the
curriculum for the delivery of the Certificate IV
in Health (Nursing). This was in line with the
requirements of the Nurses Board of Victoria.

The Centre developed learning resource books
for aged care and disability courses that align
to the Community Service Training Package.

Professional development
At the Community Services and Health Industry
Training Board Conference in July, the Centre
was awarded the Best Practice in Professional
Development Award.

Staff from the Centre were involved in a range
of professional development initiatives
including:
• attendance at the International Federation

on Ageing conference
• industrial release to Delmont Hospital and

Strathdon Nursing Home
• involvement in TAFE Flexible Learning Week

workshops
• attendance at the TAFE Child Care

Teachers’ annual conference
• undertaking internships with Online Services

(Children’s Services teachers)

• involvement by ten staff members in further
study including the Diploma and Graduate
Certificate in Vocational Education and
Training, and the Masters in Education.

Projects and partnerships
Partnerships in 2004 included the following:
• delivery of training in the Certificate III in

Aged Care to personal care assistants
employed by the Manningham City Council

• presentation of awards for 200 students
from Australian Homecare Services in the
Certificate IV in Disability Work. Graduation
ceremonies were held in Shepparton and
Melbourne in November

• delivery of the Certificate IV in Disability to
several community groups in Mildura

• delivery, by staff from the E. W. Tipping
Foundation and the Centre, of a workshop
at the Community Services and Health
Industry Training Board Conference in July.
The paper delivered was on client-centred
approaches to people with disabilities

• the continued successful partnership with
both SCOPE and St John of God Services
to provide disability training for carers

• a new partnership formed with Interchange
to deliver disability training

• the commencement of planning for the
training of 60 patient services assistants for
the Epworth Eastern Hospital.

Special events and initiatives
The Centre for Health & Community Services
continued to be a major sponsor in the
Community Services and Health Industry
Training Board’s conference and annual awards
night.

In September, the Centre had a trade booth at
the Seventh International Conference on
Ageing in Singapore. Staff from the Centre also
presented a paper on Aged Care Training at the
conference.

The Centre has been working with the
University of Indonesia’s Faculty of Nursing to
advise them on their nursing program. The
University is undertaking the upskilling of
Indonesia’s nursing workforce.
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Centre for Hospitality & Tourism Studies

The Centre for Hospitality & Tourism Studies
offers full-time hospitality, event management
and tourism Certificate and Diploma programs,
as well as apprenticeships in commercial
cookery and retail baking.

The Centre delivered the Victorian Certificate of
Applied Learning (VCAL) for the first time in
2004 as a complement to the Growth and
Pathways (GAP) and VET in Schools programs.

In the global arena, the Centre actively pursued
improvement in the delivery of the Hospitality
Diploma through its Fiji-based franchise with
the New Zealand Pacific Training College
(NZPTC) and a Centre staff member travelled
to Chile and delivered the Certificate IV in
Assessment and Workplace Training to a group
of students at Duoc UC in Santiago.

Commercial activity continued to increase
throughout 2004, with significant growth in
short courses and industry training including
projects with Coles Myer and Crown Ltd.

Curriculum development
The Centre participated in practice audits and
implemented strategies as part of the
Australian Quality Training Framework across all
teaching programs. In alignment with industry
and market trends, the Centre added several
new customised training products to its
portfolio.

The multi-option bakery training program at the
Bakers Delight Centre of Excellence was a
great success in 2004 with a 20 percent
increase in student enrolments. The Centre of
Excellence continued to offer short courses
aimed at developing franchisees’ baking skills
and hosted the annual Bakers Delight Ron
Gillespie Award.

Projects and partnerships
The relationship with the Global Education
Network (GEN) was further developed with a
visit to Southern Alberta Institute of Technology
(SAIT) Calgary, Canada, in October with four
students and two Centre staff members. The
visit coincided with a visit to SAIT by staff from
Kirkwood Community College Iowa, USA, the
most recent member of the GEN. Staff and
students at Kirkwood are keen to pursue study
options at Box Hill Institute during 2005.

The Centre continued to develop its
partnership with Crown Ltd and secured a
major food and beverage training project for
2004-2005. The Centre has employed a full-
time project officer to work onsite with Crown’s
human resources and training staff.

In conjunction with Employment Plus and
United Recruitment, the Centre delivered a new
labour market program called Canteen
Operations. The program was developed by all
three stakeholders for a group of long-term
unemployed jobseekers and included a
workplace component with clients of United
Recruitment. The trainees graduated with a
selection of units taken from the Certificate II in
Hospitality (Operations). The Centre will run this
program again in 2005.
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The Centre continued its long association with
Coles Myer and delivered a unique training
program for a new concept store at Caroline
Springs in Melbourne’s outer west. The project
included training all of the store’s staff in basic
food and beverage knowledge to equip them
with the skills to talk to customers about
purchasing and creating meal solutions.

The Centre completed the Office of Training
and Tertiary Education (OTTE) funded TAFE
Ambassadors pilot program. The web page
featuring TAFE ambassadors from the Centre is
a major feature of the project together with a
‘wall of fame’ and a database of ambassador
details for use by teachers in the Centre.

Special events and initiatives
A Centre staff member was a judge at the
WorldSkills Australia national final in Brisbane in
May and two staff members presented at the
annual Bonland Proud to be a Chef
competition in Sydney during June.

Awards
The following awards were presented to the
Centre for Hospitality & Tourism Studies
students:

Box Hill Institute’Box Hill Institute’Box Hill Institute’Box Hill Institute’Box Hill Institute’s Outstanding s Outstanding s Outstanding s Outstanding s Outstanding Student of theStudent of theStudent of theStudent of theStudent of the
YYYYYear Aear Aear Aear Aear Awarwarwarwarwardsdsdsdsds
Apprenticeship Category (Finalist)
Hayden MacFarland

Vocational Category (Finalist)
Sandra McGuinness

WWWWWorldSkills Australia National orldSkills Australia National orldSkills Australia National orldSkills Australia National orldSkills Australia National Competition -Competition -Competition -Competition -Competition -
Restaurant ServiceRestaurant ServiceRestaurant ServiceRestaurant ServiceRestaurant Service
Bronze Medal
Hannah Hearne

Bonland PrBonland PrBonland PrBonland PrBonland Proud to be a Chefoud to be a Chefoud to be a Chefoud to be a Chefoud to be a Chef
Finalist
Hayden MacFarland

Finalist
Melanie Schouten

Bocuse D’Or CompetitionBocuse D’Or CompetitionBocuse D’Or CompetitionBocuse D’Or CompetitionBocuse D’Or Competition
Finalist
Hayden MacFarland

Finalist
Liam Gallagher

VIC TVIC TVIC TVIC TVIC TAFE Cookery ChallengeAFE Cookery ChallengeAFE Cookery ChallengeAFE Cookery ChallengeAFE Cookery Challenge
Silver Medal
Shiona Robinson
Sharni Wenitong
Anthony D’Augello
Nick Franz

YYYYYarra Varra Varra Varra Varra Valley Salon Culinairalley Salon Culinairalley Salon Culinairalley Salon Culinairalley Salon Culinaireeeee
Silver Medal
Shiona Robinson
Nick Franz

Centre for Hospitality & Tourism Studies
cont’d
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Centre for Industrial Sciences & Extractive
Industries
The Centre for Industrial Sciences & Extractive
Industries trains new apprentices and existing
workers in laboratories, cement and waste
treatment plants as well as in chemical
manufacturing facilities, mines and quarries.
This training occurs wholly in the workplace by
combining knowledge development with the
acquisition of real skills, while minimising
disruptions to work schedules.

The Centre continued to maintain a strong
presence locally, nationally and internationally in
the provision of training and the development
of training resource materials.

Curriculum development
The Industrial Sciences team undertook
national projects to develop training resources
to support the Laboratory Operations Training
Package that is applicable to a range of
industries including process manufacturing,
pathology and food testing, as well as
environmental and biotechnology laboratories.
The projects included the Australian National
Training Authority (ANTA) Toolbox Initiative and
have involved the production of training
resources for online delivery. The Centre
successfully completed a Toolbox project to
update training materials to support the
chemical, hydrocarbons and oil refining sector.

Centre staff were invited to participate in and
chair the national Steering Committee for the
review of the Laboratory Operations Training
Package. This is a significant position that will
help to influence the direction of laboratory
training in a broad range of industries for the
next three years.

Professional development
Staff attended the Institute of Quarrying
national conference in Queensland where one
of our Diploma students received the major
award for academic excellence.

Projects and partnerships
Through its arrangements with the Construction
Materials Processing Association, Readymix,
Boral and Pioneer, the Extractive Industries
team continued to strengthen its position as the
premier provider of quarry and mine
management training in Australia. The team
focussed on meeting the needs of these highly
competitive industries through a unique blend
of training and assessment strategies that
included online, face-to-face and onsite
delivery modes.

The Centre continued a major training and
assessment project with the Victorian
WorkCover Authority to train field operations
inspectors for their Diploma of Government
(Workplace Inspection). TXU Energy plant
operations staff at the Iona gas plant were
trained for their Certificates in Plant Operations
as were staff at Qenos Altona (Australia’s
largest plastics manufacturer).

The Centre commenced a major competency
development initiative with the Qenos Altona
Olefins plant to train and assess 94 operators in
the workplace.

Centre staff also supported a variety of Institute
activities including training in the Workplace
English Language and Literacy program for
quarry safety (with the Centre for Industry
Education and Training) and development of a
TAFE Bachelor of Biotechnology and Innovation
(with the Centre for Biotechnology and Animal
Sciences).
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Centre for Industry Education & Training

The Centre for Industry Education & Training
continued its focus on the delivery of training
across the areas of teacher education,
workplace education, language, literacy and
numeracy support, leadership and safety.

In 2004 onsite training was provided to various
industry sectors, including the automotive,
extractive, health, community services, print,
ICT, hospitality and government sectors.
Training varied from literacy support to
providing onsite training for Certificate IV in
Assessment and Workplace Training and the
Diploma of Vocational Education and Training.

The Jobs Plus New Apprenticeship Centre and
Employment Service continued to provide
service to employers in the Melbourne region.
The Jobs Plus Employment Service achieved
high recognition for its success in job
placements and the design and
implementation of labour market programs.
These programs include Skill Up, VET Priority
Places, Job Network Training and Parents
Returning to Work.  The Centre experienced
considerable growth in the numbers of
participants enrolled in customised onsite
training delivery and flexible learning.

Curriculum development
Customised industry courses were developed
and delivered by staff for a number of our
industry clients including QENOS, Holden, City
of Whitehorse, ISIS, Mirvac, Cancer Council,
Work Safe and PMP Print.

A customised online training and assessment
program for School Service Officers was
delivered to 30 participants via the TAFE Virtual
Campus. Units from the Diploma of Vocational
Education and Training were also customised
for online delivery on WEBCT.

Professional development
The Centre was responsible for the delivery of
the Certificate IV in Assessment and Workplace
Training, and the Diploma of Vocational
Education and Training as professional
development for Institute staff. Fifteen staff
received a Graduate Certificate in Vocational
Education and Training at a formal graduation
ceremony.  In addition, 24 of the Institute’s
Facilities staff received competencies from the
Asset Maintenance Training Package.

The leadership team in the Centre spent time
completing action learning projects enabling
members to achieve frontline management
competencies.  Jobs Plus staff attended

training in management, customer service,
disabilities, first aid and supervisory skills.
Literacy support teachers participated in
Workplace English Language and Literacy
information sessions facilitated by
Manufacturing Learning Victoria.

In December 2004, together with staff from
Health & Community Services and
Management & Small Business Centres, Centre
staff were involved in the ‘Emotional
Intelligence’ and ‘Developing Proactive Sales
and Marketing Strategies’ residential
conference at the Deakin Management Centre.

Project and partnerships
The Employment Service expanded to include
job placement for graduate students and
jobseekers as well as coordinating the Parents
Returning to Work Program and the pilot
Labour Market programs in VET Priority Places,
Skill Up and New Apprenticeships Access
Program. Relationships with Job Network
providers such as Adult Multicultural Education
Services, Salvation Army and Ascendence
have been developed.

Workplace English Language and Literacy
projects funded by the Department of
Employment, Science and Training were
delivered to the Construction Material
Processors Association specialising in the work
safety, risk management and communications
units.

Holden Limited at Fishermen’s Bend also
received training in safety induction. The
Certificate IV in Assessment and Workplace
Training was customised for managers and
team leaders learning onsite at the new Holden
V6 plant, the Holden Engine Company and
Qenos Limited.

Leadership modules were delivered at Synnex,
the Mirvac Hotel Group and PMP Print.

Literacy support for direct and non-direct staff
at Kew Residential Services has now been
provided for the past ten years, with plans to
continue such programs.

Special events and initiatives
The team from Jobs Plus received the 2004
Institute Staff Achievement Award for Business
Development.

The Centre was responsible for the design and
organisation of the 2004 Teaching and
Learning symposium for all Institute staff.
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Centre for Information Sciences

The Centre for Information Sciences offers
courses for those wishing to pursue a career
either as information technology specialists or
in information management.

The Library Technician course was again very
successful with a pleasing increase in
enrolments. The Information Technology (IT)
courses showed a small decrease in student
contact hours from 2003. However, the plans
put in place last year to develop and deliver
new courses are showing promise and
offsetting decreases in older areas.

The IT training market is increasingly
competitive with Singapore and Hong Kong
expanding as preferred destinations.

International franchises had a busy year. Our
two current campuses provided steady work
with some consolidation. As planned, our
international project work expanded.

Curriculum development
AQTF compliance processes and
documentation were a focus in 2004 leading to
improvements in our processes.

Staff were involved in the updating of two
training packages. This involved meetings at
State and Federal level as people from all over
Australia worked together to implement these
major upgrades. Our ongoing work producing
textbooks for the distance delivery of the
Library course progressed well. We produced
three new books and updated four.

Professional development
To support the delivery of the new Advanced
Diploma of IT and E-Security, staff members
attended 30 days of training, and one person
has passed all the exams for delivering the
Oracle Database Administrator qualification.
Staff enjoyed attending specialist courses to
support content delivery of Library and
Information Services training. Two staff
completed their one-year teaching qualification
at the University of Melbourne.

Two staff are enrolled in the Institute-sponsored
Masters courses with Deakin University.

One staff member has successfully applied for
an internship to develop online course material
to support the delivery of SQL using Java
applets. Bluetooth wireless networking was
investigated with an eye towards future courses
and some pioneer applications involving the
control of external and remote devices were
developed.

Projects and partnerships
Consistent with the Institute’s strategic plan the
Centre started developing an Associate Degree
in IT that will articulate into Deakin University’s
Bachelor of Computing.

The Centre formed a commercial relationship
with the Cities of Whitehorse and Manningham
to qualify their library staff as technicians.

The Institute’s collaboration with RMIT has
enabled the Centre to work for RMIT Vietnam
to deliver library training in Danang. To support
the Institute’s AQTF process, a Recognition of
Prior Learning (RPL) application developed by
the Centre was tested in three Centres.

Special events and initiatives
In addition to the annual Awards Night, the
Centre conducted two career and employment
seminars for IT students, a three-day trip for
library students to investigate and explore the
National Library facilities in Canberra and an
evening at which we hosted employers from
our industry area. All events were highly valued
by the participants and the Centre plans to
continue to improve our services to clients with
similar activities.

Awards
Many industry partners including the Australian
Library Information Association, EBSCO
Australia, Technical Bookshop Melbourne,
Microsoft and Cisco have supported the
students with awards and prizes that will assist
their move to employment.
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Centre for Management & Small Business

The Centre for Management & Small Business
specialises in the customised design and
delivery of training in leadership and
management skills development for both public
and private sector corporations, and the
provision of business coaching and mentoring
for Start-Up, Micro/Home-Based, Small
Business, and Small to Medium Enterprises
(SMEs) with growth potential.

The Centre delivers approximately 85 percent
of this training to business owners, frontline
managers, senior managers and team leaders
onsite to organisations across diverse sectors,
including law enforcement, horticulture, human
services, councils, hospitals, manufacturing
industries, Small and Medium Enterprises and
the Government sector.

Our Centre of Specialisation for Services to
Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs)
provided its ‘Business Breakthrough’ business
development and mentoring program to
around 100 SMEs experiencing growth in their
business, primarily in Eastern, Western and
Southern Metropolitan and fringe areas of
Melbourne. A consortium approach was
adopted to implement this model and the
Centre worked in partnership with three other
Business Enterprise Centres (BEC), local
government, business and community
networks and trader groups meeting the
flexibility and other precise needs that SMEs
require to grow and expand.

The BEC also provided training, mentoring,
support and referral to approximately 350
brand new start-up businesses through the
New Enterprise Incentive Scheme (NEIS).

Curriculum development
In 2004, development of learning resources to
support upgrades to the Business Services
Training Package was completed. In addition,
much development was undertaken on
customising industry programs and creating
pathways for participants towards national
qualifications.

Professional development
Centre staff participated in the Conference for
the National Business Enterprise Centre
(Australia).

The Centre Manager was a reference group
member for the National ANTA Linker’s Project
‘Unlocking Opportunities for Small Business’.
The Small Business Coordinator was a national
judge for Yellow Pages Business Ideas Grant,
whilst another small business staff member
chaired the SME committee for CPA Australia.

During 2004, there was professional
development for staff in workplace training and
assessment, compliance, finance, mentoring,
and process improvement. In addition, the
small business team, facilitators and
consultants completed specialised mentoring
development programs.

The Centre’s residential staff development
program held at Deakin University Geelong
focused on the importance of ‘Emotional
Intelligence’ in the workplace and its impact on
business operations.

Projects and partnerships
Box Hill Institute is the lead agent in the Greater
Melbourne Employment and Training Services
(GRAMETS) consortium. This is the second
largest provider of NEIS programs in Australia.

New leadership, management development
and workplace training programs were
completed with many organisations including
Department of Justice, Centro Properties
Group Box Hill, Department of Defence
(Housing & Corporate Services), Clipsal,
Samarinda Lodge, Cardinia Shire Council,
Australian Industry Group, CRS Australia.

Our SME Specialist Centre managed the
Nillumbik Shire Council’s StreetLife project
‘Connecting Nillumbik’ working in partnership
with the Nillumbik Tourist Association, Eltham
Chamber of Commerce, Hurstbridge Traders
and Diamond Creek Traders Associations.

The Centre continued to provide retail
traineeships across Victoria with an
outstanding unit completion rate. The Centre
developed and implemented traineeships in
business and frontline management.
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Special events and initiatives
The Centre hosted the launch of the 2004
series of ‘Under New Management’ for the
Department of Industry and Innovation and
Regional Development. The series was
launched by the Honourable Marsha Thomson
MP, Minister for Small Business, in June at Box
Hill Institute.

City of Whitehorse Business GrCity of Whitehorse Business GrCity of Whitehorse Business GrCity of Whitehorse Business GrCity of Whitehorse Business Group’oup’oup’oup’oup’sssss
Excellence in Business AExcellence in Business AExcellence in Business AExcellence in Business AExcellence in Business Awarwarwarwarwardsdsdsdsds

Strategic Partnership AStrategic Partnership AStrategic Partnership AStrategic Partnership AStrategic Partnership Awarwarwarwarwarddddd
The Centre of Specialisation for Services to
Small and Medium Enterprises (winner)

Another highlight of these awards was seeing
award winners among the businesses trained
and mentored by the Centre.

MicrMicrMicrMicrMicro/Home-Based Business Ao/Home-Based Business Ao/Home-Based Business Ao/Home-Based Business Ao/Home-Based Business Awarwarwarwarwarddddd
A1 Admin of Blackburn (Sue Stott and Ruth
McIntosh)

A1 Admin gained benefit from our Business
Breakthough business development and
mentoring program developed by our SME
Specialist Centre.

EnvirEnvirEnvirEnvirEnvironmental and Sustainability Aonmental and Sustainability Aonmental and Sustainability Aonmental and Sustainability Aonmental and Sustainability Awarwarwarwarwarddddd
Joann Wood of Sandton Hair Gallery

Joann is a graduate of the City of Whitehorse
StreetLife growth program developed and
facilitated by our Small Business Centre

Best Start-Up Business ABest Start-Up Business ABest Start-Up Business ABest Start-Up Business ABest Start-Up Business Awarwarwarwarwarddddd
Ross Mitchell of NESSO, a NEIS graduate

Awards
The Business Enterprise Centre was awarded
the Best National BEC 2004 by Business
Enterprise Centres (Australia), from more than
100 others throughout Australia.
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Centre for Media, Design & Arts

The Centre for Media, Design and Arts offers
courses in design and technology, the arts and
technology and multimedia.

In 2004, the Centre delivered educational
programs to over 2,000 students (including 80
international student enrolments) in more than
50 courses on three campuses.

Curriculum development
With our visual arts, design and craft courses
moving to the new training package, Centre
teachers were the key staff working with the
Arts Curriculum Maintenance Manager (CMM)
in developing the Purchasing Guide for
Victorian TAFE Institutes. Staff also worked on
refining and reviewing the Entertainment
Training Package Purchasing Guide.

In collaboration with the Centre for Automotive,
Transport and Engineering, staff won a contract
with the Victorian Qualifications Authority (VQA)
to develop Certificates III and IV units of
competency for the new Victorian Qualification
Framework for Design.

Fashion staff spent time developing an
associate degree which the Centre plans to
deliver in 2006.

Professional development
The Centre ran a number of activities internally,
including a Fashion in-service and a Visual Arts
Training Package preparation. The Fashion
Senior Educator proposed a Community of
Practice for the Institute’s senior educators,
which has now been institutionalised with
active supportive programs being developed.

The Centre organised a professional training
day for all Victorian TAFE Institutes on the
Nelson Campus to assist in the development of
a common and supportive approach to the
introduction of the Visual Arts, Design and Craft
Training Package.

Two staff members completed units in the
Master of Organisational Leadership, one in the
Master of Education, one in the Graduate
Certificate of VET and seven in the Certificate
IV in Workplace Training and Assessment.

Seven staff attended the TAFE Art and Design
Statewide Committee (TADSC) conference at
Daylesford. A jewellery teacher had a paper
accepted for submission to the Australian
Vocational Education and Training Research
Association conference in 2005.

Projects and partnerships
The Certificate IV in Broadcast Television
students developed a series of programs
entitled ‘Future Factory’ showcasing the work
of students at the Institute. These were
broadcast on Channel 31 during the year.

The Centre was again a major sponsor of the
Fringe Furniture Festival.

Staff were successful in rebranding TADSC to
achieve a public profile that was more inclusive
and contemporary.

We extended our secondment relationship for
Entertainment students with the Melbourne
Exhibition and Convention Centre.

The Centre further developed its relationship
servicing customised traineeships with
Bytecraft, which is now showing signs of
filtering widely through the Entertainment
Industry with the Institute regarded as the
preferred provider. This traineeship is
administered by the Centre and delivered by
areas from MDA, Electrical & Refrigeration, and
Automotive & Engineering (Ceylon branch).

LASH, the Lighting and Sound Hire practise
firm, commenced operations this year in
Entertainment. It is not only an innovative and
holistic teaching and assessment activity that
better simulates real-world activities, but has
also provided a useful income stream for the
Centre.

The Centre was a partner in the development
of an electronic Recognition of Prior Learning
system being rolled out by the Institute.

Fashion was one of three areas selected to be
audited for AQTF compliance across the
Institute as part of the reaccreditation of the
Institute. Fashion was complimented by the
auditor for the high standard of its work and
understanding of the quality issues around
teaching and assessment.

The Centre has an Australia-wide exclusive
training agreement with Bytecraft, Australia’s
largest entertainment lighting company, where
we provide an adapted program that is tailored
to their national needs.
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Special events and initiatives
‘Synchro’, a collaborative exhibition by Box Hill
Institute and the Gordon Institute was held at
the Gordon Gallery, highlighting student works
from both Institutes. The exhibition included
sponsorship from Bytecraft and Computers
Now.

‘LAB 3000’, the Victorian Government Digital
Design biennale, was held in November. Two
staff members and our multimedia students
participated in the exhibition.

‘Creating the Collaborative Advantage’ was a
one-day forum and seminar delivered to
management and teachers at the Institute,
including presenters from interstate educational
institutions, and local and interstate industry
leaders. It included presentations from OTTE,
VQA, DIIRD and educational leaders all over
Australia.

Two art teachers led a group of 20 students
during July on a cultural and educational
program into the Kakadu National Park. The
program, which has been running for some
years, was again an outstanding success.

The Centre provided lighting, sound and
technical support for the Annual Institute Black
Tie Ball.

Fashion students were able to display their
outstanding talents at a black-tie function
sponsored by Lexus in November. Visual Arts
students were invited to display their works in
the office of the Minister for Education and
Training, the Honourable Lynne Kosky, from
January to June. The exhibition culminated in a
cocktail night sponsored by the Minister to
which students, parents and teachers were
invited.

Awards - Teachers

Box Hill Institute TBox Hill Institute TBox Hill Institute TBox Hill Institute TBox Hill Institute Teacher of the Yeacher of the Yeacher of the Yeacher of the Yeacher of the Yearearearearear
Sue McFarland

2004 Swan Hill Print and Drawing Acquisitive2004 Swan Hill Print and Drawing Acquisitive2004 Swan Hill Print and Drawing Acquisitive2004 Swan Hill Print and Drawing Acquisitive2004 Swan Hill Print and Drawing Acquisitive
AAAAAwarwarwarwarwarddddd
Rona Green

LLLLLyryryryryrebirebirebirebirebirds Ads Ads Ads Ads Awarwarwarwarwards - Best Dirds - Best Dirds - Best Dirds - Best Dirds - Best Director and Bestector and Bestector and Bestector and Bestector and Best
Lighting DesignLighting DesignLighting DesignLighting DesignLighting Design
Noel Browne

Guild awarGuild awarGuild awarGuild awarGuild awardsdsdsdsds
Nominated for four awards
Noel Browne and Jamie Ivarsen

LAB 3000 - Industry categoryLAB 3000 - Industry categoryLAB 3000 - Industry categoryLAB 3000 - Industry categoryLAB 3000 - Industry category
Simone LeAmon (second)

Teachers Paul Knight and Tony Dyer received
Australia Council grants for international travel.

Awards - Students

Statewide TStatewide TStatewide TStatewide TStatewide Team Achievement Aeam Achievement Aeam Achievement Aeam Achievement Aeam Achievement Awarwarwarwarwarddddd
Television VCAL students

Craft VCraft VCraft VCraft VCraft Victoria Frictoria Frictoria Frictoria Frictoria Fresh Aesh Aesh Aesh Aesh Awarwarwarwarwardsdsdsdsds
Diploma of Arts- Ceramics
Tatiana Gvozdetskia and Michael Kalnins

Box Hill Institute Student of the YBox Hill Institute Student of the YBox Hill Institute Student of the YBox Hill Institute Student of the YBox Hill Institute Student of the Yearearearearear
Matthew Townend (finalist)

TTTTTrash Fashion Challenge (part of the Zerrash Fashion Challenge (part of the Zerrash Fashion Challenge (part of the Zerrash Fashion Challenge (part of the Zerrash Fashion Challenge (part of the Zerooooo
WWWWWaste Waste Waste Waste Waste Week)eek)eek)eek)eek)
Michael Rennie, Jeremy Best and Adam
Coomes (winners)

Australian Fashion Designer of the YAustralian Fashion Designer of the YAustralian Fashion Designer of the YAustralian Fashion Designer of the YAustralian Fashion Designer of the Yearearearearear
Contemporary Designer
Jaye Wearne (finalist)
Fashion on the Field
Bryony Whittaker (finalist)
Picture Perfect
Rachael Nanfra and Kaye Young (finalist)
Traditional Bridal Wear
Francesca Santoro (finalist)

‘Jeans for Genes’ Competition‘Jeans for Genes’ Competition‘Jeans for Genes’ Competition‘Jeans for Genes’ Competition‘Jeans for Genes’ Competition
Bryony Whittaker, Phataraporn Simjaruk,
Francesca Santoro and Stacey Brearley. Kylie
Melville and Lydia Thorold (finalists)

TTTTTextile Institute Competitionextile Institute Competitionextile Institute Competitionextile Institute Competitionextile Institute Competition
Kylie Melville and Sarah Borg (finalists)
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Centre for Off Campus Learning Services

The Centre for Off Campus Learning Services
is a combined teaching and service centre. The
Centre provides a number of courses delivered
off-campus in the areas of business services,
information technology, library skills,
professional writing and editing, financial
services, aviation and real estate. It has strong
industry links to the pulp and paper industry.
The Centre also continued its work in
partnering companies in their management and
leadership systems through the provision of
consultancy services in Australia and Indonesia.

The Centre continued to provide an Institute-
wide service through the International
Extended Campus Unit, which administers the
Institute’s offshore campuses and supports the
Institute’s teaching centres in international
work. The Centre also maintained the Short
Courses Call Centre.

Curriculum development
The Centre developed and delivered off-
campus programs in a number of areas, with
new courses delivered in financial services,
marketing, management and real estate.

Professional development
Centre members undertook professional
development with members of the Off-Campus
Unit understudying the Coordinator. Further
professional development included one
member undertaking a Masters Degree in
Education and another undertaking a higher
degree in management.

Projects and partnerships
Partnerships were continued and developed
with private companies and the vision of
‘Global Educators’ was further developed with
our overseas partners in Indonesia such as the
University of Indonesia, the University of Kristen
Indonesia, Bank Niaga, Bank of Indonesia,
Astra Honda Motor, Mitsubishi Automotive
Industries Indonesia, PTPGN, PTMKM, Kagin,
Multimedia Broadcasting College Indonesia,
Multifunction Training Centre, Adidas, Polman
Astra, PT Mitra and PT Pertimina.

Special events and initiatives
Members of the Centre participated in Institute-
wide projects.

Awards

Short Story CompetitionShort Story CompetitionShort Story CompetitionShort Story CompetitionShort Story Competition
Sponsor: Box Hill Institute – Library & Student
Support
Joanne Smith (Off Campus Student)
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Centre for Performing Arts

The Centre for Performing Arts enjoyed a
successful and productive year building on its
reputation as a provider of high quality training
programs for a diverse student population,
including growing numbers of international
students studying in music programs. There
was growth in both government-funded
courses and full-fee-paying courses particularly
in the areas of audio production and fitness. It
is in these areas that the Centre has seen a
marked increase in interest and need for
specialised, industry-relevant training.

The Centre continued to offer the Diploma of
Dance (Teaching and Management), Diploma
of Music Performance (Jazz/Popular) and
Certificate III in Fitness in its program of
government-funded courses. These courses
saw expanding numbers and demand far
outweighed available places. Fee-for-service
courses also continued to expand, offering the
Advanced Diploma of Music – Performance,
the Diploma of Music Industry (Technical
Production), Certificate IV in Fitness,
Certificates I & II in Music Industry (Foundation),
and short courses in a number of areas
including, voice training, jazz improvisation,
vocal training, acting, belly dancing, guitar, and
turntable artistry.

In a year that heralded significant changes in
curriculum development, technology
advancement and community involvement, the
Centre is well positioned to foster its leadership
role in education and training with support from
industry partnerships, higher education
relationships and management of resources
towards preparing students for a constantly
changing global market.

Curriculum development
In 2004 the Centre developed and had
accredited an innovative Bachelor of Applied
Music. This degree specialises in contemporary
music and has been developed to reflect
industry practice and principles. The degree
program has three streams with a common
core of subjects and a range of specialist
subjects relative to each stream. The streams
are in performance, composition and audio
production. The Centre looks forward to
delivering this degree in 2005.

The Centre also successfully implemented its
new 200 series short courses in Pro Tools hard
disk editing which map directly to the
Digidesign Training and Education

internationally recognised programs. The
courses are a welcome adjunct to mainstream
audio programs and have also been
incorporated into the delivery of units of
competency from the National Music Industry
Training Package. The new computer lab
complete with Logic Audio and Pro Tools M-
Boxes enabled all music students to have
access to current digital technology. The audio
production industry is constantly changing. The
introduction of the degree program, together
with industry support from our partner
Digidesign, paves the way for the Centre to
continue as a leader in this area of training.

Professional development
Professional development undertaken by staff
in 2004 included training in a range of industry-
relevant areas including vocal technique,
fitness, dance teaching, copyright, first aid,
online student resources, management,
education and involvement in the newly-formed
Higher Education Community of Practice. A
number of staff undertook studies in Graduate
Diploma and Masters programs and attended
both national and local conferences. Two staff
members have completed Masters programs
and will take up key positions in the degree
delivery.

A new relationship has been established with
Queensland University of Technology (QUT)
with seven staff involved in Masters program
studies. This relationship will see the
establishment of joint projects in contemporary
music research and will be invaluable to the
Centre in implementing its degree program and
commencing research and development that is
both academically and industry recognised.
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Projects and partnerships
The Box Hill Institute Pro School saw increased
enrolments this year, including the
establishment of arrangements with other
regional TAFE Institutes to share and develop
audio production delivery including Pro Tools
programs. Our Digidesign partnership was
strengthened with industry events and further
implementation of its internationally recognised
training and education programs.

Seven Advanced Diploma graduates were
accepted into the Deakin University
postgraduate Bachelor of Teaching (Primary
and Secondary) for 2004. This year also saw
five of our ex-students graduating from Deakin
as the first graduates to take advantage of this
pathway program. Both Victoria University and
QUT accepted our graduates for places in
courses during 2004.

Special events and initiatives
As a priority initiative this year an alumni event
for Diploma of Dance (Teaching and
Management) graduates was held. This was
part of the Institute’s wider alumni program,
was well attended, and presented an
opportunity for past students to catch up with
friends and staff. As a result of this contact, a
regular set of workshops for graduates has
been organised as part of a lifelong learning
promotion in conjunction with the Classical
Dance Education Board (CDEB). CDEB has
actively promoted a connection with the
Centre, its staff and students in continuing the
work and teachings of patron Laurel Martyn.

A number of other successful events took
place in 2004, which showcased the talent and
organisational skills of the Performing Arts
students. Important events included:
• the annual Spring Concert
• the Laurel Martyn Scholarship Competition
• the Cabaret nights
• public recitals by final year music students –

held at various venues around Melbourne.
• the Annual Dance Concert.

Most events are student-organised and form
part of ongoing assessment tasks incorporated
into the course structure.

Awards - Students

Scholarships for Outstanding MusicScholarships for Outstanding MusicScholarships for Outstanding MusicScholarships for Outstanding MusicScholarships for Outstanding Music
AchievementAchievementAchievementAchievementAchievement
Pablo Narenjo, Sally Rochlin and Natalie
Bartsch

Outstanding Student of the YOutstanding Student of the YOutstanding Student of the YOutstanding Student of the YOutstanding Student of the Year (Vear (Vear (Vear (Vear (Vocationalocationalocationalocationalocational
Category)Category)Category)Category)Category)
Fabrizio Giorgio (Finalist)

LaurLaurLaurLaurLaurel Martyn Chorel Martyn Chorel Martyn Chorel Martyn Chorel Martyn Choregraphic Scholarshipegraphic Scholarshipegraphic Scholarshipegraphic Scholarshipegraphic Scholarship
Jessica Modica

Second YSecond YSecond YSecond YSecond Year Dance Outstanding Achievementear Dance Outstanding Achievementear Dance Outstanding Achievementear Dance Outstanding Achievementear Dance Outstanding Achievement
AAAAAwarwarwarwarwarddddd
Vikki Ellen and Michelle Fitzgerald

First year Outstanding Dance AchievementFirst year Outstanding Dance AchievementFirst year Outstanding Dance AchievementFirst year Outstanding Dance AchievementFirst year Outstanding Dance Achievement
AAAAAwarwarwarwarwarddddd
Yun Hee Jung

A number of success stories by graduates this
year including:
• Shane Wakker (Advanced Diploma of Music

2004) is playing drums in high profile band
Bodyjar touring and producing an album.

• Brett Canning (Diploma of Music 1999) is
currently playing bass for Missy Higgins as
is Michael Barker (Advanced Certificate
1986) playing percussion

• Yuri Pavlinov (Diploma of Music 2002) is
currently playing bass with Renee Geyer

• Dean Papoulis was a finalist in the Nescafé
Big Break Competition

Awards - Teachers

LLLLLyryryryryrebirebirebirebirebird Ad Ad Ad Ad Awarwarwarwarwards (for the prds (for the prds (for the prds (for the prds (for the production of ‘Theoduction of ‘Theoduction of ‘Theoduction of ‘Theoduction of ‘The
Scarlet PimperScarlet PimperScarlet PimperScarlet PimperScarlet Pimpernel’)nel’)nel’)nel’)nel’)
Best Director and Best Lighting Design
Noel Browne
Best Lead Male
Shaun Joseph

Janine DeLorenzo was selected as a musician
in the latest Cirque du Soleil Las Vegas
production.

VVVVVictorian Music Theatrictorian Music Theatrictorian Music Theatrictorian Music Theatrictorian Music Theatre Guild Ae Guild Ae Guild Ae Guild Ae Guild Awarwarwarwarwards (for theds (for theds (for theds (for theds (for the
prprprprproduction of Jekyll and Hyde for Novaoduction of Jekyll and Hyde for Novaoduction of Jekyll and Hyde for Novaoduction of Jekyll and Hyde for Novaoduction of Jekyll and Hyde for Nova
TheatrTheatrTheatrTheatrTheatre Company)e Company)e Company)e Company)e Company)
Best Lighting
Noel Browne

Centre for Performing Arts
cont’d
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Centre for Vocational Access & Education

The Centre for Vocational Access & Education
(VAE) offers a diverse range of programs
designed to meet the needs of many different
members of the community. Students of these
programs include adults and youth returning to
study or seeking vocational change, women
returning to the employment market, overseas-
born professionals entering the employment
market, and people seeking to improve literacy,
numeracy and English skills.

The Centre also conducts the highly successful
Diploma of Arts (Professional Writing and
Editing), which enjoys excellent employment
outcomes for participants in the program.

The Certificate of Employment Development for
Overseas Professionals continues to play an
important role in securing job opportunities for
graduates. Outcomes for these students, and
indeed for all students of the Centre, are
maximised by the dedication and work of all
staff concerned.

Building modifications to the administration area
resulted in much better working conditions for
staff and a new reception window provides a
much more inviting face to the student
population.

Curriculum development
Two staff members were freed up from teaching
in semester two to work on the integrated
learning communities initiative and it is our
intention to implement this program in 2005.
These integrated learning communities are an
holistic approach to education in which
curriculum and pedagogy are restructured by
intentionally linking together subjects to provide
greater curriculum coherence and opportunities
for increased interaction between students and
staff. 

Professional development
All staff undertook professional development in
their area of expertise during the year, for the
most part through professional associations.
Two members from Professional Writing and
Editing continue to develop their individual PhD
research projects in the areas of poetry and the
novel respectively.

A two-day Centre conference in November
allowed time for sharing of views, ideas and the
development of strategies that will enhance the
learning experience of our students.
The keynote speaker was Mr. Roger Holdsworth
who is a Senior Research Fellow at the Youth
Research Centre, University of Melbourne.

Roger provided stimulation and inspiration,
which continued throughout the two days.

Projects and partnerships
The Centre, in collaboration with Kangan
Batman Institute of TAFE and Chisholm
Institute of TAFE, developed and published the
Melbourne 2006 Commonwealth Games Post-
compulsory resource as part of the Classroom
Resources Project for the Commonwealth
Games School Education Program. The CD-
ROM produced contains three sections,
relating to VCE, VET and VCAL. Each section
will identify linkage between the relevant
studies or programs and the Commonwealth
Games as well as providing suggestions for
classroom activities.

Special events and initiatives
The Centre held a one-day festival with the
theme of ‘Word Music: A Writers’ Day’ at the
Institute’s Whitehorse Campus. The day
provided a marvellous inspiration for the
Institute’s Professional Writing and Editing,
Performing Arts and Music students.

Internationally acclaimed novelist and poet
Philip Salom opened the day and lead a
discussion about his new novel ‘Toccata and
Rain’.

Chairing the fiction panel, and also giving the
closing address, was best selling author of
‘Shantaram’, Gregory David Roberts.

Kath Orgovany performed with her band in the
student lounge during the lunchtime break.

Another exciting literary event in the Centre was
the Professional Writing & Editing launch of its
creative writing anthology ‘Inkshed 15’ at
Angus & Robertson’s Box Hill bookstore in
December. The poet and multi-award winning
short story writer Cate Kennedy launched the
book and students and competition winners
read from their stories.

Awards

Box Hill Institute’Box Hill Institute’Box Hill Institute’Box Hill Institute’Box Hill Institute’s Outstanding Student of thes Outstanding Student of thes Outstanding Student of thes Outstanding Student of thes Outstanding Student of the
YYYYYear Aear Aear Aear Aear Awarwarwarwarwardsdsdsdsds
Vocational Student category - Winner
Althea Brooks, a Professional Writing & Editing
student
Althea also represented the Institute at the
Victorian Training Awards for Outstanding
Student of the Year.

Bill Johnson VBill Johnson VBill Johnson VBill Johnson VBill Johnson VAE Student of the YAE Student of the YAE Student of the YAE Student of the YAE Student of the Year Aear Aear Aear Aear Awarwarwarwarwarddddd
Rachel Xi, a Year 12 VCE student
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s College Printing &
Graphic Design

College Printing and Graphic Design provides a
range of printing and photocopying services to
Box Hill Institute. It also provides commercial
services such as typesetting, printing, desktop
publishing and digital copying to a range of
external clients.

During 2004, the Centre managed the re-
tendering for the high-speed digital copiers and
supporting technology for its own print room.

The average on-time delivery for all clients’
work during 2004 was maintained at 97
percent.

Educational Product
Services

Educational Product Services (EPS) provides a
comprehensive set of services to support the
strategic development, implementation and
evaluation of educational processes, systems
and products. The Centre employs educational
designers, graphic designers, programmers,
data entry staff, desktop publishers and
editors. During 2004, each Centre in the
Institute benefited directly from services or
projects provided by EPS.

The Centre is responsible for the:
• design and development of learning

resources in formats including online/web,
CD-ROM and print

• design and development of publicity
materials in print and online formats

• design and development of information
systems to support teaching, learning and
administrative processes

• design and delivery of professional
development activities for Institute staff

• development and maintenance of
� - Box Hill Institute’s website

(http://www.bhtafe.edu.au)
� - StudentWeb portals

(http://studentweb.bhtafe.edu.au)
� - the Institute’s intranet (StaffWeb)
� - the Institute’s content management

system the Distributed Learning
Support System (DLSS)

• production and technical support of a broad
range of special events that require video,
lighting and photography (until September
2004).

2004 Highlights
The main highlights for the year included:
• management and delivery of a large number

of highly successful Learnscope projects
• further development of the Institute website
• installation and testing of the CLI Virtuoso

system and integration of content
• video production of the ‘Sounds of Cinema’

Music Concert
• completion of the innovative Legal

Administration Toolbox incorporating high-
level online workplace simulation

• design and development of learner and
trainer guides and workbooks for a large
Holden induction program

• development and support for the TAFE
Ambassadors’ website including video clips
of participants

• development of the StudentWeb and
Degree portals

• production of resources for the Automotive
Air-conditioning Accreditation course

• video, lighting and photography direction
and staging for many Institute special
events including Student of the Year,
Hairdressing Showtime, Waiter of the Year
and the Black Tie Ball

• coordination and support of an enhanced
internship program for teachers to gain skills
in online learning resource development.

Awards

Box Hill Institute’Box Hill Institute’Box Hill Institute’Box Hill Institute’Box Hill Institute’s Stafs Stafs Stafs Stafs Staff Achievementf Achievementf Achievementf Achievementf Achievement
Recognition PrRecognition PrRecognition PrRecognition PrRecognition Programogramogramogramogram
Leaders in Technology Award
Dominic Pentony
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Facilities Services
Centre

The Facilities Services Centre’s mission is to
provide Box Hill Institute staff and students with
a safe and positive teaching and learning
environment. In 2004, Facilities Services
underwent office relocation from Building 3,
Level 2 to 10 Poplar Street, Box Hill.  This was
to make way for the construction of the
walkway entry between the new Building 8 and
Building 3 on the west side of Elgar Road at
Elgar Campus.

During 2004, Facilities Services was able to
undertake and successfully complete the
following projects from the Deferred
Maintenance Program:
• removing old paving and provide a concrete

surface to the waste management area,
rectifying identified OH&S issues and
improving hygiene around the food store
area

• retiling the steps serving the Victoria
Crescent entry to Building 1 Elgar Campus

• replacing worn gutters and downpipes on
Building 2 Elgar Campus

• replacing worn heating, ventilation and
cooling controller nodes in all buildings on
the Elgar Campus

• completing the provision of roof safety
equipment on buildings at the Elgar
Campus.

Other minor projects undertaken include:
• refurbishment of the Centre for Vocational

Access & Education’s office on the
Whitehorse Campus

• extensive refurbishment works to provide a
new Aveda Day Spa room in the
Hairdressing Centre at Elgar Campus

• replacement of heating, ventilation and
cooling controller nodes at the Nelson
Campus

• refurbishment of a classroom at the Elgar
Campus to provide a facility for the new
nursing course.

Facilities Services staff undertook professional
development in the following areas:
• Certificate II in Asset Management

(Cleaning)  - all cleaning staff
• Elevated Work Platform License course – all

maintenance staff
• Occupational Health & Safety training
• Property Risk Management training.

Through the introduction of new processes and
improved work practices, the Facilities Services
Centre is endeavouring to deliver on a
commitment to provide an improved level of
service to its clients.

Centre for Finance

The Centre for Finance is responsible for
financial management of Box Hill Institute. This
includes ensuring financial transactions are
conducted, recorded and reported in
accordance with Box Hill Institute policies and
procedures. The Centre for Finance provides
the Institute with purchasing, accounts payable,
accounts receivable, cashiering, banking and
investment, fixed asset management, internal
and external financial reporting.

Financial Information Systems
Finance One from Technology One was
implemented in July 2001 and was rolled out to
Teaching and Service Centres during 2002 to
enable Centres to directly input into the finance
system purchase order requisitions and
requests for invoices. In 2004 Finance One was
further enhanced with the purchase of a
reporting and analysis application. This will be
rolled out during 2005 as a management
reporting tool for financial and non-financial
data. Finance One is due for an upgrade to
version 10.2 in early 2005.

Awards

Box Hill Institute’Box Hill Institute’Box Hill Institute’Box Hill Institute’Box Hill Institute’s Stafs Stafs Stafs Stafs Staff Achievementf Achievementf Achievementf Achievementf Achievement
Recognition PrRecognition PrRecognition PrRecognition PrRecognition Programogramogramogramogram
Business Performance Category
Jude Royal, winner
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As part of the construction of Building 8, the
Information Technology Centre was involved in
the installation of sophisticated audio video
equipment, an internet café for students and a
range of other leading technologies including
electronic information kiosks. Detailed planning
was conducted throughout the year with the
installation project commencing in November
2004.

Voice Over IP (VOIP) technology was deployed
in Building 8. This technology allows the
traditional telephony system to be operated as
part of the computing network and unifies the
voicemail and email systems. VOIP is part of a
long-term strategy to converge the Institute’s
voice, data and video delivery over one ICT
infrastructure.

The Institute’s computer replacement program
across its fleet of 2,500 computers was
completed four months ahead of schedule and
delivered a range of upgraded services to
classroom and staff areas. The ICT
infrastructure performed strongly during the
year with minimal downtime across all ICT
services.

The use of the Internet at Box Hill continues to
grow at 50 percent per year. In 2004, a new
agreement for supply of Internet access saw
the Institute contract an unlimited use service
which will enable cost efficiencies and
improved download capabilities for students
and staff.

Researching new technologies was given a
boost this year with a US$20,000 grant from
Microsoft. The grant provided the opportunity for
the Institute to research improved methods of
enrolling students using newer and more efficient
technologies. The research results will be used to
develop solutions to enable the
recommendations of the Institute’s student
management system, business process re-
engineering project.

The Institute’s roll-out of wireless networks for
staff and students was completed and the
coverage of the network extends to all
campuses including all exterior public spaces.
Students can now use their own notebook
computers to access the Institute’s online
learning materials from anywhere on any
campus.

Improving the availability and recoverability of
key ICT infrastructure remains an ongoing
priority and further redundancy in the data
network, additional failover computing
hardware and more significant power reserves
were deployed to increase the availability of
web services, essential Institute systems and
the around-the-clock availability of online
services to students both locally and overseas.

Information Technology Services Centre
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The International Student Office continued to
actively recruit and provide administration and
support services to international students
undertaking ELICOS and formal course studies
at Box Hill Institute.

One thousand and eighty one international
student enrolments from more than 50
countries and territories were registered at the
Institute throughout 2004. While this
represented only a slight overall growth in
numbers, it was a significant achievement at a
time when industry indicators have shown a
market adjustment and a reduction in overall
student numbers coming to Australia. This has
been attributed to a variety of factors including
the high exchange rate of the Australian dollar
against world currencies, shifting socio-
economic factors in traditional markets,
continuing uncertainties in world security and
an increased level of competition from existing
and emerging competitors eg. UK, Malaysia,
China and Singapore.

A multi-pronged marketing approach included
an Institute representative presence at 30
international education exhibitions and agent
interview programs. Participation at a further 12
exhibitions, where local partner agencies were
contracted to represent the Institute, provided
valuable additional exposure in other markets.
Continued brand advertising in 19 different
languages in both printed form and web-based
publications helped to build awareness and
support in country activities in the form of
seminars and interview sessions. Internet
presence was increased to ensure that the
Institute could be easily found by prospective
international students on eight individual
education course search engines and course
locator websites, as well as being visible on the
enhanced Box Hill Institute website.

Building and maintaining strong relationships
with reputable international education agents
around the world, a key element in international
marketing was achieved through joint spot print
advertising, participation in newspaper
educational supplements, cooperation at fairs
and exhibitions and inclusion of Box Hill
Institute in agents’ printed and internet-based
study guides. The international student
promotional materials are also undergoing a
facelift to project a modern image and include
new Degree programs and other exciting new
courses specifically aimed at the international
student market.

A new Centre Manager joined the International
Student Office team in 2004 bringing valuable
experience and leadership skills in a TAFE
international office environment. Experienced
staff provided a high level of support for
international students including:
• airport pick up service to meet and greet

newly arrived students
• accommodation placement service
• three-day orientation Welcome Festival for

new formal course students
• one-day orientation program for each of the

nine ELICOS intakes throughout the year
• a popular ‘Friendship Program’ with

weekend activities and outings for
international students

• expert career and further study counselling.

The International Student Office continued to
attract additional business in hosting a total of
five study tours from Thailand, China and
Vietnam. These programs were tailored to each
individual client’s needs, providing an attractive
and flexible combination of education, tourism
and an insight into Australian culture.

The Institute’s ability to maintain momentum in
the international student market, in a period of
difficult market adjustment, is a reflection of its
positive international reputation for offering the
highest quality courses and support services to
students all over the world.

International Student Office
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The Library held a ‘Future Directions’ day in
October in preparation for the development of
a new strategic plan for the area. Scenarios
outlining future directions for services and
facilities were developed and taken to Institute
staff for their input and ideas. The Library’s
strategic and management plan for next year
will be based on the input collected as well as
the Institute’s Strategic Plan.

In preparation for the introduction of the
Bachelor degrees, Library staff worked with
teaching staff to identify and purchase
resources, including online databases. An
electronic reserve system and an online
induction to the library have been developed.
To ensure that the Library staff are equipped to
work with degree level students, a refresher
training program was developed and
implemented for all Information Services staff.

An emergency response plan was developed
that details the Library’s response to ensure its
policies and procedures reflect current risk
management practices. Emergency response
kits will be available in each library and a
training program conducted in 2005.

Ongoing interest in intellectual property and the
use of copyright materials in the development
of resources prompted the establishment of a
Community of Practice of interested TAFE and
Adult Multicultural Education Services staff
across Victoria. Convened by Box Hill Institute’s
Intellectual Property Adviser, representatives
established their community based on shared
concerns such as the education of Institute
staff, copyright collecting agencies and
licensing agreements.

The Bookshop enhanced its online presence by
promoting special deals through the Institute’s
StudentWeb and by establishing online
ordering. Despite small profit margins across
the campus bookshop industry and changes to
Institute program text requirements the
Bookshop continued to trade well, recording a
surplus.

The relocation of the Centres for Business
Programs, Management and Small Business,
Biological and Animal Studies, and Interior
Decoration has necessitated the relocation of
Library stock and staff to service greater
numbers of students, particularly at the Elgar
Campus. A minor alteration to the entrance of
the Elgar Campus Library and Bookshop was
completed to ensure the relocation has minimal
impact on students.

The Library extended its opening hours on four
Saturdays at the end of each term to enable
students to access library resources and
facilities during the busy exam and assessment
weeks. The extended hours gave teaching staff
the opportunity to use library services with their
Saturday student classes. 
 
At the Institute’s annual Teaching and Learning
Symposium, Library staff, together with Online
Services staff, presented a workshop on
providing support for teaching staff and
students utilising the Distributed Learning
Support System (DLSS). The workshops
continued the Library’s work in supporting the
development of flexible learning programs in
particular, as well as the Institute’s broader
educational goals.

Library and Bookshop
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Marketing (Victorian Region)

During 2004 the Centre staff continued to build
on the Institute’s existing reputation as a first
option for tertiary education. The excellent
result in student enrolment numbers for 2004
reflected the implementation of targeted
marketing strategies over a number of years.

The Centre continued to focus on its objective
to manage the Institute’s domestic marketing
function which includes identifying the needs
and characteristics of target markets,
developing marketing strategies, maximising
recruitment opportunities and developing and
servicing client relationships.

The Centre maximised the marketing
opportunities associated with being named
Victoria’s No 1 Institute at the State Training
Awards and one of the Top 4 Australian TAFE
Institutes at the ANTA Awards.

With the introduction of TAFE degrees at the
Institute in 2005 there was a major focus on the
development and implementation of discrete
degree marketing strategies towards the end of
2004.

Staff were also energetic in working with
secondary schools in the Eastern region of
Melbourne and in the corporate sector. The
Centre nurtured existing sponsorship
relationships and developed significant new
ones. It also continued to work closely in the
community with a number of local Rotary
Clubs.

With the continued work on the Institute’s new
Elgar Campus development and the pending
opening in 2005 a number of the strategies in
the communication plan were implemented.
Such initiatives included the establishment of
the Elgar development website (which includes
time-lapse photography) and support provided
for meetings with residents and subsequent
media interest.

The various success stories about staff,
student and Institute achievements were
managed effectively and were widespread
across all forms of media.

In addition to managing media activity, the
Centre provided writing support for a number of
corporate events including speeches for the
Senior Management team.

Content was also produced for the Box Hill
Institute News Page (Leader Community
Newspapers), the Institute’s internal newsletter
News and Notices, the Business Newsletter
and the Institute’s Website
(www.bhtafe.edu.au).

Content material was also developed for the
Institute’s internal website, known as the
Distributed Learning Support System (DLSS),
to act as a media resource for staff.

The Centre played a significant role in arranging
the third Black Tie Ball in September. The Ball
is now an annual event to raise funds for the
Institute’s House for Homeless Youth project.
The very popular evening gains immense
support from Institute supporters and the local
Whitehorse community with a record
attendance of over 300 this year, and raised
over $10,000.

During the year, staff from the Centre continued
to provide marketing services through close
working relationships with the Institute’s various
teaching centres. A number of marketing plans
were developed for teaching centres for
specific programs.
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The construction of the first House for
Homeless Youth commenced in November and
it is anticipated will be completed by November
2005. The Centre has managed the fundraising
of the necessary $55,000 for the dwelling.
Fundraising for building a second house has
commenced.

Centre staff also managed a very successful
fundraising and network function at Riversdale
Golf Club as a means of raising funds for the
Victorian Variety Club (participation in the Vic
Bash). As a result, the day raised over $5,000
that was donated to the Children’s Ward at the
Box Hill Hospital.

The Centre once again managed the very
popular Business Breakfast program, which
was supported by a large number of corporate
sponsors. The sponsors were:
• Moores Legal
• Haines Muir Hill
• Leader Newspapers
• Toucan Digital Print
• Alzburg Inn Resort and Conference Centre

in Mansfield
• Thrifty Rentacar
• Doncaster Holden
• Strapp Ford
• College Printing
• NOVA FM
• Fountains Licensed Restaurant
• Konica-Minolta
• Quest Serviced Apartments
• Flowers on Elgar.

The speakers for the 2004 Business Breakfasts
were: Jason Lea, Andrew Demetriou, Vinny
Lauwers and Adam Elliot.

Many marketing, recruitment and promotional
activities were implemented during 2004.

These included:
• delivery of approximately 60 Box Hill

Institute tours, 32 school-based expos and
30 school-based talks about the Institute to
secondary college students

• management of the Institute Open Day
• management of the annual Career Advisers

Seminar, attended by secondary college
Career Advisers

• management of the Institute’s Outstanding
Student of the Year Awards

• development of the Change of Preference
campaign

• management of the Institute’s participation
in the Victorian Training Awards where Box
Hill Institute won the prestigious Training
Provider of the Year (Large) Award

• exhibitions in Melbourne and regional
exhibitions and festivals

• assistance for individual Teaching Centres
with Awards/Graduation functions

• management of the Institute Scholarship
Program (including the City of Whitehorse
Scholarship)

• management of the monthly Box Hill
Institute News page which appears in ten
eastern suburban Leader Community
newspapers

• development and management of corporate
sponsorship proposals

• management of a number of launches
• design and development of Box Hill Institute

brochure display stands that were placed in
100 secondary schools across metropolitan
Melbourne.

Marketing (Victorian Region)
cont’d

The Centre for Marketing – Victorian Region is
responsible for the development and
production of many of the Institute’s most
visible and widely distributed marketing
materials.
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The following were produced during 2004:
• General Course Guide
• 2005 Course Handbook
• 2003 Annual Report
• Short Course brochures
• Course brochures
• Degree brochures
• Parent brochure
• Teaching Centre display banners
• Teaching Centre posters
• News and Notices (internal newsletter)
• Business Newsletter (external newsletter)
• Advertisements – generic and also on behalf

of the Teaching Centres
• Corporate merchandise.

Schools Liaison Unit
The Schools Liaison Unit acts as the student
recruitment arm of the Centre for Marketing -
Victorian Region. The Unit has a dual role in
that it services over 500 secondary schools
within Victoria, but also functions as a service
provider to the Institute’s numerous Centres.

The Unit develops campaigns and promotes
the Institute to schools through direct mail and
through the development of long-term
relationships between the Institute and
secondary schools.

In its recruitment role, the Unit aims to inspire
students to take a proactive interest in their
tertiary options. It does this by firstly selling the
idea of TAFE education and then focussing on
the specific benefits of studying at Box Hill
Institute. Students are encouraged to tour the
Institute as a group or on Open Day.

During 2004 the Unit worked with the Institute’s
Centres to assist them in the development of
promotional campaigns into the secondary
school market.

School tours at Box Hill Institute are tailored to
‘best fit’ the careers programs which students
are participating in within their schools. The
Unit conducted 60 tours for secondary schools
in 2004.

The Unit also attended a large number of
school-based career information days
explaining the advantages of a TAFE education
to students ranging from Year 9 to Year 12.
Another component of the school-based
programs is attending career and information
evenings where Unit staff discuss tertiary
options with parents and students to promote
the benefits of a Box Hill Institute education.

In 2004, the Unit gave 32 talks in various
schools and exhibited at 30 career/parent
evenings.

The Tertiary Information Service (TIS) was one
of the Unit’s major programs in 2004, running
from April to August. TIS enabled the Unit to
reach thousands of Year 12 students in
metropolitan and rural Victoria. Staff also
coordinated the Eastern TIS in conjunction with
Deakin University, which was a three-day event
and was attended by approximately 3,000 Year
12 students from the Eastern region of Victoria.
The growing relationships with schools were
strengthened further by the annual Careers
Seminar, which was held in June. Over 80
Careers Advisers attended this successful day.

Other promotions during 2004 included:
• the VCE Resources for Courses Expo held

at the Caulfield Racecourse
• the Herald-Sun Careers Expo held at the

Exhibition Building
• the Age Careers Expo held at the Exhibition

Building
• the Future Options Careers Expo (jointly

sponsored by Box Hill Institute) held at the
Eastland Shopping Centre in August. This
event consisted of 90 exhibitors showcasing
their courses and employment opportunities
to approximately 5,000 visitors.

Course Information Unit
The Information Unit is invariably the first
contact point for prospective students of the
Institute. The Unit provides information on all
available courses. This includes short courses,
government funded courses, full-fee paying,
international student courses, off-campus
studies, traineeships and apprenticeships.

The majority of enquires were received via the
telephone, however the number of e-mail
enquires once again increased. A significant
number of people chose to visit the Information
Unit in person to discuss their career/course
options.

Throughout 2004, the Unit processed more
than 40,000 enquiries.

Staff also travelled to Thailand in March to
attend an educational Expo where they
provided international students with information
about courses and the benefits of studying with
Box Hill Institute.
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Registrar’s Centre

During 2004, the Registrar’s Centre continued
to offer a range of services to students, staff
and other clients of the Institute.

The Centre participated in a number of key
projects within the Institute including the
implementation of Degree courses into the
Student Management System (SMS), the
restructure of the Institute Awards and the
processes around their issuance and the
Business Process Review of student
management processes in the Institute.

During 2004 all statistical submission dates
were met. The results of the ANTA/OTTE
Invalid Enrolment (IE) Audit were successful
with a significant reduction in the Institute’s IE
rate to below one percent for the second year
in a row.

The Registrar’s Centre has implemented and
tested a Business Continuity Plan. In addition,
an OH&S Plan for 2004 has been implemented
and a hazard audit completed. A Registrar’s
Centre-specific Emergency Procedures
Handbook has been produced and each staff
member was issued a personalised copy
appropriate to the area in which they work.

Each staff member participated in more than
one and most attended at least four
professional development activities.

Two staff trained to become the Centres’
OH&S, Ergonomic and Testing and Tagging
Champions. They will assist in the provision of
a safer workplace.

More than 200 Institute staff been trained in the
use of the Student Management System
(SMART).

Once again, information sessions about
Student Administration procedures and
enrolment procedures were well attended at all
campuses.

Whitehorse Student Service Centre
The Whitehorse Student Service Centre
continues to offer a valuable service to staff
and students at the Whitehorse Campus.
In addition to the full range of Student
Administration services they reimburse petty
cash, offer a reception service to the campus,
and offer general information to visitors,
students and staff.

Reception and Mailroom & Central
Registry
The reception area processes nearly 600
incoming calls per day.

In addition, as the central clearing house for
Institute mail, about 3000 items of incoming
and outgoing mail are processed daily.

Approximately 50 items are registered in the
Central Registry system on a daily basis.

Student Administration
Staff in Student Administration once again rose
to the challenge and enrolled and processed
over 37,000 enrolments and around 16,000
certificates and qualifications.

They also contributed to the business process
review of student management processes in
the Institute.
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Following a review of the delivery of support
services for students, in August the new Centre
for Student Support Services was established.
It combines delivery of services to younger
students (Youth Unit), support of Student
Activities and Representative Committees
(SARC), careers, educational and personal
counselling services, disability and learning
support, welfare services and support of
Corporate Communications. The Centre
delivers services from bases at Elgar, Nelson
and Whitehorse Campuses. Its Centre Liaison
Program ensures that each Teaching Centre
has a contact member from the new Centre
whose role is to ensure that services are
delivered in a way that best meets their needs.

An ANTA Learnscope project for staff was
conducted to inform them of the possibilities
for providing student support services to
flexible and online learners. As a consequence
of this project, the staff plan to review their
existing content and incorporate the use of
online communication tools as part of their
ongoing services to students.

The Centre’s Learning Support Teacher
provided assistance to students experiencing
problems with mathematics or English and
worked closely with other staff to collaboratively
address related needs.

The Disability Support team provided a high
level and broad range of support for students
with disabilities. A database system to
administer disability support workers and
services for students with a disability was
developed and implemented. The system,
called ‘Gecko’, also provides information for the
Institute’s acquittal for disability funding and
stores individual student disability support
plans.

Individual Pathways were established by the
Youth Unit for some 130 younger students and
the Unit partnered with Teaching Centres to run
a vibrant Victorian Certificate of Applied
Learning (VCAL). The significantly improved
VCAL student retention rate of 73 percent
reflects the excellent pathways support
provided.

The Welfare Officer provided timely guidance
and support for students with needs in areas
such as accommodation, fees, allowances,
special consideration and benefits, with
enrolment and orientation peak times.

Corporate Communications was an effective
early intervention service for issues arising for a
student or member of the community. The
strength of both the welfare support and the
Corporate Communications service was to take
resources and support to all campuses and to
extend community links.

Counselling services assisted an increased
number of students in 2004 and 67 percent
more group workshops were delivered. Careers
counselling received increased inquiries from
young prospective students in 2004 and played
an important role in helping them identify
appropriate courses or training.

The SARC team ensured the delivery of a great
program of diverse events in 2004. All editions
of the SARC-produced student magazine ‘The
Box’ have been excellent and the first online
version was placed on StudentWeb.  The
quality of the student diary produced for 2005
has been commended by other tertiary
institutions.

Centre for Student Support Services
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Freedom of Information
(FOI) access arrangements

2004 FOI activities
There were five requests for information to be supplied under the Freedom of
Information Act during 2003 to 2004 reporting period.

Identification documents
It is the aim of the Freedom of Information Act to make the maximum amount
of information available to Victorians, promptly and inexpensively. Written FOI
requests should be as specific and precise as possible so they can be
processed efficiently.

Requests for access must contain sufficient details concerning the record to
enable the Manager, Freedom of Information to identify the material required
and should also include the applicant’s telephone number and mailing address
for contact purposes. The applicant may wish to use the request proforma
produced by the Government printer and available from the Institute Manager
Freedom of Information. Information about the subject and the date of the
document sought should be indicated as precisely as possible.

Where a request fails to provide the necessary information to identify the
documents requested precisely, the Institute Manager, Freedom of Information
is obliged to assist the requestor to make a request which will identify the
documents sought.

Office hours and charges
The prescribed $20.50 fee should accompany all requests made under FOI.
Where access is granted to inspect, obtain or purchase material,
arrangements can be made during office hours Monday to Friday 9.00am -
4.30pm. Charges for access to documents will be in accordance with the
Freedom of Information (access charges) Regulation 1983. (Charges will cover
costs incurred for time spent in conducting a routine search for the
documents, the cost of supervising the inspection of a document and the cost
of supplying copies of a document). Where a charge to cover costs is to be
made the applicant will be advised.

Photocopying fee
20 cents per A4 page

Search fees
When the Institute has to identify and locate documents there is a charge of
$20 per hour.

Deposits
A deposit of $25 may be requested before the Institute will grant access where
charges will be substantial.

Maximum charge
A maximum charge of $100 applies; excepting computer stored information,
as per section 19 of the Act.

These charges will be waived if the applicant is a Member of Parliament, if the
information is accessed in the public interest, if the applicant is impecunious or
if, in the opinion of the Manager Freedom of Information, the charges did not
exceed $100.

Requests for access to
documents of Box Hill
Institute under the Freedom
of Information Act, 1982,
are the responsibility of the
Institute Manager Freedom
of Information. Requests for
information must be in
writing and should be
addressed to:

Ms Stephanie
Tomasetti
Manager, Freedom of
Information
Box Hill Institute
465 Elgar Road,
Box Hill 3128
Telephone: (03) 9286 9396

It is Institute policy to
facilitate a person’s access
to his/her own file.
Requests for access need
not be made under the
Freedom of Information
Act. However, if an
applicant is not satisfied, or
if he/she wishes, the
request may be made
formally as a Freedom of
Information request. Any
student may see his/her
personal record by applying
to:

Ms Stephanie
Tomasetti
Manager, Freedom of
Information
Box Hill Institute
465 Elgar Road,
Box Hill 3128
Telephone: (03) 9286 9396

Any staff member may ask
to see his/her personnel file
by applying to:

Mr Wayne
Shevlin
Manager, Human Resource
Services
Box Hill Institute
465 Elgar Road,
Box Hill 3128
Telephone: (03) 9286 9440
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Compliance index

   Reg   Reg   Reg   Reg   Reg PagePagePagePagePage

   4.2 (g) Prepared according to Financial Management Act 1994 vi
4.2 (h) Prepared according to Financial Reporting Directions vi
4.2 (j) Signed and dated by the Accountable Officer vi
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requirements 33
10 Short description 33
11 Ex-gratia payments incurred and written off xxviii

   21 Disclosure of responsible persons and executive officers
remuneration xxvii

21 (1)(a) Responsible persons – a list xxviii
21 (1)(b) Total remuneration of all responsible persons xxvii
21 (1)(c) Responsible persons remuneration in bands of $10,000 xxviii
21 (1)(d) Other sources of income for responsible person xxvii
21 (2)(a) Total remuneration of all executive officers xxviii
21 (2)(b) Base remuneration for executive officers xxviii
21 (2)(c) Accrual principles applied vi
22 Institute’s operations and activities 24
22 Statement on occupational health and safety matters 35
22 Consistent financial information x
22 Additional appropriate or mandated information i-xxxii

   22 Manner of establishment and relevant Minister 13
22 Objectives, functions, powers and duties 13
22 Nature and range of service and committees served 13
22 Organisational chart 16
22 Statement of workforce data and conduct principles 15,36
22 Occupational health and safety performance indicators 35
22 Institute’s objectives, functions, powers and duties linked to

activities, programs and achievements 6
22 Four-year financial results 31
22 Significant changes in financial position 31
22 Operational and budgetary objectives 30
22 Events occurring after balance date affecting operations xxxii
22 Discussion and analysis of operating results and financial

position 32
22 Consultancies > $100,000 and future commitments 32
22 Individual consultancies < $100,000 32
22 Application of the Freedom of Information Act 1982 33,82
22 Compliance with Building Act 1993 35
22 Application of the Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001 25
22 Statement that the information listed is available on request 33
22 Implementation and compliance with National Competition

Policy 33
22 Institute’s environmental performance 35
22 Declarations of pecuniary interests xxviii,33
22 Shares held by a senior officer as nominee xxvii
22 Publications produced and availability 79
22 Changes in prices, fees, charges, rates and levies charged 32
22 Major external reviews carried out 32
22 Major research and development activities 24
22 Overseas visits including objectives and outcomes 33
22 Major promotional, public relations and marketing activities 77
22 Assessments and measures to improve OH&S 35
22 Industrial relations and details of time lost through industrial
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Compliance index

   Reg   Reg   Reg   Reg   Reg PagePagePagePagePage

   23 Name and type of superannuation scheme xxvi
23 Basis for calculating superannuation xxvi

   23 Cost of superannuation scheme xxvi
   23 Outstanding amount of contributions to defined contribution schemes xxvi
   23 Details of any loan to the entity from the scheme xxvi
   23 Superannuation liabilities xxvi
   s. 12I Compulsory non-academic fees, subscriptions and charges 32

Relevant information concerning Institute’s international operations 7,41
49(a) Information required by the Minister v
49(b) Prepared as required by the Minister i-xxxiii
49(c) Present the financial transactions for financial year vii
49(d) Present the financial position at the end of that year 30,vii
49(e) Certified by the accountable officer as required by the Minister vi
4.2 (a) AAS and AASB standards x
4.2 (a) Financial reporting directions x
4.2 (a) Business rules x
4.2 (b) Statement of financial performance vii
4.2 (b) Statement of financial position viii
4.2 (b) Statement of cash flows ix
4.2 (b) Notes to the financial statements xi
4.2 (c) Transactions during the year and the financial position at the end

year presented fairly vi
4.2 (c) Prepared in accordance with this direction and applicable Financial

Reporting Directions vi
4.2 (c) Comply with AAS and AASB standards x
4.2 (d) $10,000,000, the amounts to the nearest $1000 i-xxxii
4.2 (d) $1,000,000,000, the amounts to the nearest $100,000 i-xxxii
4.2 (e) Reviewed and recommended by the Audit Committee i-xxxii
p4.1(a)I, 5.4 Revenues from ordinary activities vii
p4.1(a)ii, 5.4 Expenses from ordinary activities, excluding borrowing costs vii
p4.1(a)iii, p8.1(a) Borrow costs expense vii
p4.1(b)I, 4.2 Result from ordinary activities vii
p5.5 Extraordinary items vii
p4.1(b)(v), 4.2 Result for the year vii
p4.1(c)(iii) Increase (decrease) on adoption of Accounting Standard vii

   p4.1(c)i Net increase (decrease) in asset revaluation reserve vii
   p4.1(c)iii Total revenues, expenses and valuation adjustments recognised

directly in equity vii
   p4.1(a) Current assets viii
   p4.1(c) Non-current assets viii
   p7.1(a) Classes of assets including: cash assets, receivables, inventories,

other financial assets, other assets, intangible assets, property plant
and equipment viii

   p7.3(c) Total assets viii
   p4.1(a) Current liabilities viii
   p7.3(e) Non-current liabilities viii
   p7.1(b) Classes of liabilities including: payables, interest bearing liabilities,

provisions viii
   p7.3(e) Total liabilities viii
   p7.1(c)ii Reserves xvi
   p7.1(c)i Contributed capital viii

p7.3(h) Total equity viii
p5.1 Cash flow statement activities: operating activities, investing activities

and financing activities xxiv
p4.3 Cash at the beginning and end of the year ix
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   p12.2 Financing arrangements ix
   p11.1 Non-cash financing and investing activities ix
   p8.1 Note 1 Statement of significant accounting policies xi

Note 1 policiesNote 1 policiesNote 1 policiesNote 1 policiesNote 1 policies xixixixixi
   p8.1(c) Historical cost xii
   p4.4 Rounding off xii

p5.2(a) Investments xii
   p11.2(a) Depreciation and amortisation xii

p11.2(b) Depreciation methods xii
p10.1 Inventories xiii
p21, 22 Wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave xiii
p52(c) Superannuation xxvi
p8.1(b) Doubtful debts xiii
p7.1, 5.1 p9.1,11.2(a) Leases xiv
p5.1(a), 5.2(b) Valuation of non-current assets xiv
p12.1(a) Cash xiv

Note 2 RevenueNote 2 RevenueNote 2 RevenueNote 2 RevenueNote 2 Revenue xviixviixviixviixvii
p12.2(a) Revenue from operating activities xvii
p12.2(b) Revenue from non operating activities xvii
p12.1(b)iv Investment income xvii
p.12.1(b)vi Dividends n/a
p5.6(a) p12.1(b)vii Gross Proceeds from sale of non current assets xvii
p12.1(b)viii Rent xvii
p12.1(b)x Other Revenue xvii
p12.2(b) Revenue from non operating activities xvii
p12.2(a), (b) ANTA/State current C’wealth/ANTA specific funded programs xvii
p12.2(c) Assumption of liabilities by Government n/a
p12.2(a), (b) ANTA capital xvii
p5.4 Expenses from ordinary activities xviii
P11.2(c) Depreciation & amortisation xviii
P11.1/2 Rent/leasing charges xviii
p5.6 Written down value on disposal of non current assets xviii
p5.2(b) Cash assets xviii
p5.2(b) Receivables xix
P8.1(b) Provision for doubtful debts xix
p10.1(c) Inventories (Current) xix
p10.1(d) Other financial assets (non-current) xix
11(a) Intangible assets (amortisation) xix
p7.6 Non-Current: property, plant and equipment reconciliations xx
p7.6(b) Disposals xxi

   p7.6(c) Net additions through restructuring n/a
   p7.6(d) Revaluation increments (decrements) xxi
   p7.6(g) Depreciation/amortisation expense xxi
   p7.6 Carrying amount at end of year xxi
   p11.2(c) Depreciation xxi
   p11.2(c) Amortisation xxi
   p12.2vii Profit/loss on sale of non-current assets xx
   p5.2(b) Payables xxii
   p5.2(b) Interest bearing liabilities xxii
   p8.3(c)(i) Liabilities - secured and unsecured (Current) xxii
   p8.1(d) Liabilities - assets pledged as securities xxii
   p12.2(a) Liabilities - credit standby arrangements xxii
   p4.1,4.2 Liabilities - borrowing costs capitalised xxii
   p51(a) Provisions (current and non-current) xxii
   p12.5 Equity and movements in equity xxiii
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   p11.1 Leases - finance lease liability xxv
   p11.2 Leases - operating lease commitment xxv
   p17.2 Leases - operating lease receivables xxv
   p8.3(d) Commitments for expenditure xxv
   p5.2a, 5.2.1 Financial Instruments - terms, conditions and accounting policies xxix

p5.4, 5.4.9 Financial Instruments - interest rate risk xxx
p5.6(b), (c) Financial Instruments - net fair values xxxi
p11.1 Non-cash financing and investing activities xxviii
p5.1(a) - (d) Events occurring after reporting date xxxii
3.110 Offshore operations: xvii
4.5.1.1 Members of the Council – skills, knowledge and experience;

meetings attended; training undertaken
Council function; code of conduct; performance and activities;
structure
Council committees functions; members 10-12
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